
CORVALLIS
ENHANCING COMMUNITY LIVABILITY

CORVALLIS

CITYCOUNCIL AGENDA

May 15 2006

12 00 pm and 7 00 pm

Downtown Fire Station

400 NW Harrison Boulevard

COUNCIL ACTION

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

I ROLL CALL

II CONSENT AGENDA

The following items are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion There will

be no separate discussion ofthese items unless a Council member or a citizen through a Council

member so requests in which case the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and

considered separately Ifany item involves a potential conflict ofinterest Council members
should so notebefore adoption ofthe Consent Agenda

A Reading ofMinutes

1 City Council Meeting May 1 2006

2 City Council Special Meeting April 24 2006

3 For Information andFiling Draft minutes may return ifchanges are made by the

Board or Commission

a Bicycle andPedestrian Advisory Commission April 7 2006

b Citizens Advisory Commission on Civic Beautification and Urban

Forestry April 13 2006

c Citizens Advisory Commission on Transit April12 2006

d Committee for Citizen Involvement April 6 2006

e Corvallis Benton County Public Library Board March 1 2006

f Open Space Advisory Commission April 11 2006

g Watershed Management Advisory Commission April 18 2006

B Confirmation ofAppointment to Commission for Martin Luther King Jr Alexander

C Announcement ofVacancy on Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Sandago

D Authorization to enter into and for the City Manager to sign Intergovernmental
Agreements with Benton County for records services and staffmg consolidation

City Council Agenda May 15 2006 Page TBD



E Schedule an Executive Session following the regular noon meeting under ORS

192 660 2 d status oflabor negotiations

Iii iTEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA

N UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A Adoption ofFindings ofFact on an appeal ofa Land Development Hearings Board

decision HPP06 00001 Full Gospel Assembly Church

B City Charter Amendment

C Senior Center Chintimini Park Project Timeline

V MAYOR COUNCIL AND STAFF REPORTS

A Mayor s Reports

1 Proclamation ofNational Police Week May 14 20 2006

2 Proclamation ofGet There Another Way Week May 15 19 2006

3 Proclamation ofNational Public Works Week May 21 27 2006

B Council Reports

C Staff Reports

1 City Manager s Report April 2006

2 Council Request Follow up Report May 11 2006

3 Airport Wetland Mitigation Strategy

VI VISITORS PROPOSITIONS 7 00 pm Note that Visitors Propositions will continue

following any scheduledpublic hearings ifnecessary and if ny are scheduled

VII PUBLIC HEARINGS 7 30 pm

A Apublic hearing to consider a Telecommunications Service Tax

VIII IX STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS ORDINANCES RESOLUTIONS AND

MOTIONS

A Human Services Committee May 2 2006

1 Social Services Second Quarter Report
2 Boys and Girls Club Annual Report
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B Urban Services Committee None

C Administrative Services Committee May 4 2006

1 Economic Development Allocations Orientation

2 Telecommunications Service Tax evening meeting
ACTION An ordinance creating a new Corvallis Municipal Code Chapter

3 07 Telecommunications Service Tax andstating an

effective date tobe read by the City Attorney
ACTION An ordinance relating to telecommunications services and

telecommunications infrastructure located within the public
right ofway amending Ordinance 99 26 as amended and

stating an effective date to beread by the City Attorney
3 Low Income Utility Bill Assistance Program

X NEW BUSINESS

A United Way Transition Process and Benton County Needs Assessment Report

B Corvallis Skate Park Renaming Proposal

C Liquor License Annual Renewals

D Authorization to enter into and for the City Manager to sign a Memorandum of

Understanding with Benton County AFSCME Local 2064 and AFSCME Joca12975
transfer ofrecords employees evening meeting

XI ADJOURNMENT

For the hearing impaired a sign language interpreter can be provided with 48 hours notice prior to the

meeting Please call 766 6901 or TTY TDD telephone 766 6477 to arrange for such service

A LARGE PRINT AGENDA CAN BE AVAILABLE BY CALLING 766 6901

A Community That Honors Diversity
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C I T Y   O F   C O R V A L L I S

A C T I V I T Y   C A L E N D A R

MAY 15 - JUNE 3, 2006

MONDAY, MAY 15

< City Council - 12:00 pm and 7:00 pm - Downtown Fire Station, 400 NW Harrison
Boulevard

TUESDAY, MAY 16

< No Human Services Committee

< Urban Services Committee - 4:00 pm - Madison Avenue Meeting Room,
500 SW Madison Avenue

< Watershed Management Advisory Commission - 5:30 pm - Madison Avenue Meeting
Room, 500 SW Madison Avenue

< Economic Development Allocations Committee - 5:30 pm - Majestic Theatre Community
Room, 119 SW Second Street (presentations)

WEDNESDAY, MAY 17

< Historic Month Activity - 9:00 am - Hull-Oakes Sawmill Tour (space is limited to 20
people; call 766-6918 ext. 6293 for reservations; transportation provided - meet at
360 SW Avery Avenue)

< Housing and Community Development Commission - 12:00 pm - Madison Avenue
Meeting Room, 500 SW Madison Avenue

< Planning Commission - 7:00 pm - Downtown Fire Station, 400 NW Harrison Boulevard
(deliberations:  Schlosser; public hearing:  Industrial Welding Comprehensive Plan
Amendment)

< Citizen Review Board Forum - 7:00 pm - Library Main Meeting Room, 645 NW Monroe
Avenue
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THURSDAY, MAY 18

< Commission for Martin Luther King, Jr. - 11:30 am - Madison Avenue Meeting Room,
500 SW Madison Avenue

< No Administrative Services Committee

< City Council, Benton County Board of Commissioners, Albany City Council - 4:00 pm -
Downtown Fire Station, 400 NW Harrison Boulevard (presentation:  Donovan Rypkema
"Sustainability, Economic, and [Historic] Preservation")

< Economic Development Allocations Committee - 4:30 pm - Majestic Theatre Community
Room, 119 SW Second Street (deliberations)

< Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - 6:30 pm - Downtown Fire Station,
400 NW Harrison Boulevard

< Historic Preservation Month Activity - 7:00 pm - First United Methodist Church,
1165 NW Monroe Avenue (presentation by Donovan Rypkema)

SATURDAY, MAY 20

< Government Comment Corner (Corvallis School District 509J Board Members Kari
Rieck, Donna Keim, Nell O'Malley) - 10:00 am - Library Lobby, 645 NW Monroe Avenue

< Historic Month Activity - 2:00 pm - Wren Community Hall Tour (meet at Wren Community
Hall)

SUNDAY, MAY 21

< Historic Month Activity - 2:00 pm - Franklin Square Neighborhood Walking Tour, Franklin
Square Park (meet at NW 15th Street and NW Taylor Avenue)

MONDAY, MAY 22

< City Council - 7:00 pm - Downtown Fire Station, 400 NW Harrison Boulevard (Land
Development Code Chapter 2.9, "Historic Preservation Provisions")

TUESDAY, MAY 23

< Human Services Committee - 12:45 pm - Madison Avenue Meeting Room,
500 SW Madison Avenue
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WEDNESDAY, MAY 24

< Downtown Parking Commission - 5:00 pm - Madison Avenue Meeting Room,
500 SW Madison Avenue

< Historic Month Activity - 6:30 pm - Historic Downtown Walking Tour (meet at Riverfront
Commemorative Park Fountain on First Street)

THURSDAY, MAY 25
< Historic Month Activity - 7:00 pm - ArtCentric, 700 SW Madison Avenue (Annual

Presentation Awards Ceremony)

SATURDAY, MAY 27

< No Government Comment Corner

MONDAY, MAY 29

< City Holiday – all offices closed

TUESDAY, MAY 30

< City Council - 5:30 pm - Madison Avenue Meeting Room, 500 SW Madison Avenue
(Planning Commission applicant interviews)

WEDNESDAY, MAY 31

< City Council - 5:30 pm - Madison Avenue Meeting Room, 500 SW Madison Avenue
(Planning Commission applicant interviews)

THURSDAY, JUNE 1

< Committee for Citizen Involvement - 7:15 pm - Madison Avenue Meeting Room,
500 SW Madison Avenue

FRIDAY, JUNE 2

< Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Commission - 7:00 am - Madison Avenue Meeting
Room, 500 SW Madison Avenue

SATURDAY, JUNE 3

< Government Comment Corner (Corvallis School District 509J Board Members Helen
Higgins, Sara Gelser, Matt Donahue) - 10:00 am - Library Lobby, 645 NW Monroe
Avenue



CITY OF CORVALLIS

COUNCIL ACTION MINUTES

April 24 2006

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION

Public Hearing
1 LDC TextAmendment Chapter 2 9

Historic Preservation Provisions and
other related LDC Chapters

Deliberations

May 8 2006

Glossarv ofTerrns
LDC LandDevelopment Code
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CITYOF CORVALLIS

COUNCIL ACTION MINUTES

April 24 2006

The special meeting ofthe City Council ofthe City ofCorvallis Oregon wascalled to order at 7 07 pm on

April 24 2006 in the DowntownFire Station 400NW Harrison Boulevard Corvallis Oregon withActing
Mayor Griffiths presiding

1 ROLL CALL

PRESENT Acting Mayor Griffiths Councilors Hagen Brauner Tomlinson Zimbrick Davis

ABSENT Councilors Mayor Berg Daniels Grosch Gandara all excused

Acting Mayor Griffiths explained thatMayor Berg couldnot attend tonight s meeting as she was fulfilling
Governor Kulongoski s duties at another event

II PUBLIC HEARING

A A public hearing to consider a Land Development Code Text Amendment to revise

Chapter 2 9 Historic Preservation Provisions and other related Land Development Code

Chapters LDT05 00001

Acting Mayor Griffiths reviewed the order ofproceedings and opened the public hearing

Declaration ofConflicts ofInterest

Councilor Tomlinson declared a conflict ofinterest because his residence has a Historic

Preservation Overlay Based uponthis situation the City Attorney s Office advised him to

declare aconflictofinterest andnotparticipate in the Councils public hearing proceedings
He left the Council meeting at 7 12 pm

StaffReport

Planning Division Manager Towne referenced material distributed to the Council tonight
including written testimony received after publication ofthe staff report Attachment A

an outline of the extensive staff report Attachment B and an outline of tonight s

presentation Attachment C He proceeded to review Attachment C noting that Land

Development Code LDC Chapters 1 6 Defmitions 22 Development District

Changes and 2 9 Historic Preservation Provisions would be changed substantially
under the proposed LDC amendment other chapters would have minor amendments to

reference new historic preservation standards He reviewed the objectives ofthe LDC text

amendment review project as outlined in Attachment C noting that the City does not

currently conduct public hearings for Historic Preservation Permit HPP applications

Senior Planner Schlesener continued the review ofAttachment C including a review of

historic resource classifications and theproposed historic preservation decision process In
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reviewing the proposed decision process she explained that all City decisions would be

appealable staff decisions would be appealed to the Historic Preservation Advisory Board

HPAB and HPAB decisions would be appealed to the Council

Ms Schlesener explained that Exhibit Iofthe staff report is the most recent draft ofthe

proposed LDC text amendments and incorporates Planning Commission language
amendment recommendations

Mr Towne reviewed from Attachment C the Planning Commission s recommendations He

believes the proposed HPP program would be better than the City s current historic

preservation program and he does not anticipate any additional costs under the proposed
program

Mr Towne reviewed staffs recommendation for the Council s consideration and the

anticipated schedule offuture action regarding the LDC text amendment

Questions ofStaff

Inresponse to CouncilorZimbrick s inquiry Mr Towne explained that the Council would
be required to adopt the LDC text amendments via ordinance The format ofthe HPAB is

outlined in the Municipal Code so any amendments to that format would be approved
through a separate ordinance Staff anticipates the Council rendering tentative decisions

regarding the LDC text amendments and the HPAB s format from which staff would

develop ordinances for the Councils adoption

Inresponse to CouncilorHagen s inquiry Mr Towne said property owners typically confer

with staff regarding the potential levels ofdecision required for their HPP applications
Problems can occur when property owners take actionwithout seeking staff guidance He

noted that staff can direct property owners in achieving their objectives though a process

with a lower level ofdecision and a shorter process or advise them that modifying their

project may qualify it for exemption from HPP requirements Staff can help property
owners preserve their historic resources while meeting their property needs

Public Testimonv

Vincent Martorello ofOregon State University OSU Facilities Services opined that the

recommendation before the Council is good and he commended everyone involved in the

LDC update process for developing a good proposal

Mr Martorello reviewed portions of written testimony he distributed to the Council

Attachment D He opined that the current LDC does not address review criteria for

historic districts or structures within historic districts specifically in terms ofthe visual

character ofa historic district He said the attributes contributing to the character of a

historic district are important in the formation ofthe district Thereafter rehabilitation of

structures within the district is measured against the district s character He suggested
inclusion of language to addresses this concern with historic district character being a

crucial measurement ofrehabilitation within a district His written testimony included



proposed language to transition rehabilitation from a structure centered project to a district

focus

Mr Martorello said OSU will submit to the HPAB a reconunendation for LDC regulations
to address historic preservation within OSDs anticipated historic district State Historic

Preservation Office SHPO HPAB members Planning Commissioners staff and

community members supported OSDs plan for specific LDC provisions regarding OSU as

a historic district He said it is important for OSU to create a distinct historic district to

address its unique needs regarding facilitymaintenance He asked the Council to officially
acknowledge OSD s pursuit ofa historic district designation so OSU can begin working
with the HPAB and neighboring property owners to develop an OSU historic district

Mr Martorello urged the Council to consider specific historic preservation provisions fr
each historic district within the city noting that each district was formed because of its

unique visual character andentities Allowingproperty owners within each district to work

with City staff and the HPAB to develop LDC language specifically addressing their needs

would result in improved solutions to treatment approaches that may be presented tonight
He anticipated that property owners would offer more support to LDC provisions specific
to their historic district He urged developing a stronger voice among property owners

when creating historic districts

Mr Martorello referenced suggested LDC language regarding proposed developments
adjacentto historic districts being subj ect to regulations aboutimpacting thevisual elements

ofthe adj acentdistrict He suggested thatthe language would subj ectnon historic resources

to a potential HPAB review The LDC does not clearly specify the type ofreview that

would occur the criteria that would be used to assess visual impact who would determine

visual impact and how the review process would be implemented He believes the

suggested LDC language would greatly expand the intent and purpose of historic
preservation He asked that staffrespond in writing to the questions outlined in his written

testimony He noted that redevelopment along NW Monroe Avenue would be subj ectto the

visual impact criterion and HPAB review as itwouldbe adjacentto acrossthe street from

the anticipated OSU historic district He suggested reconsidering the new LDC provision
regarding visual impacts

Mr Martorello said a non historic non contributing structure within a historic district

shouldnot be subj ect to aHPAB reviewprior to demolition He speculated that th5 City and

the HPAB are concerned that demolition ofanon historic non contributing resource could

harm historic resources He suggested that the initialreview ofa demolition request could

be made by the Community Development Director Further the City could require a site

plan and construction plan indicating the extent ofdemolition and any mechanisms for

protecting historic resources He believes the City could develop objective criteria against
which the Community Development Director could evaluate a demolition request The

request could be reviewed by the HPAB ifthe Director believes a historic resourG might
be impacted Requiring HPAB review ofall demolition requests could unnecessarily
involve a large amount ofstaff and HPAB time

B A Beierle distributed and reviewed written testimony Attachment E She noted that

the HPAB did not have opportunity to review and discuss theproposed provisions ofLDC
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Chapter 2 9 regarding economically feasible rehabilitation this language waspresented to

the Planning Commission after the HPAB completed its review of the LDC update

Ms Beierle displayed a Civil War sword and noted that the sword like the City s historic

resources satisfies several factors for historic significance it is associated with events that

made a significant contribution to the broad patterns ofpolitical economic cultural or

industrial history it is associatedwith thelifeand activities ofaperson group organization
or institution that made a significant contribution it embodies distinctive characteristics of
a particular type and methodofconstruction it is aprime example ofa style or design and

may represent a type of construction that was once common and is now one of a few

remaining examples and it demonstrates high artistic values in its workmanship or

materials Basedupon theproposed definition of economicallyfeasible rehabilitation the

sword whichhadan Internetvalue this evening ofmore than 2 000 could bereplaced for

100 Underthe defmitionof economically feasible rehabilitation any repair ofthe sword

costing more than 75 would negate the sword s value and would not justify retaining the

original sword She said the sword like the City s historic resources has integrity and

enduring value separate from its fmancial value

Ms Beierle requested that the public record remain open for additional written testimony

City Manager Nelson asked Ms Beierle for suggestions to mitigate her concerns regarding
the proposed 75 percent economically feasible rehabilitation provision Ms Beierle

responded that the economichardship clause could addressher concern and satisfy theCity s

Constitutional mandate She recommendedremoving the single reference to the 75 percent
rate Applicants still have remedies available but the reference to a 75 percent rate

complicates the situation

Inresponse to CouncilorZimbrick s inquiry Ms Beierlenoted that demolition is addressed
in proposedLDC Section 2 9 110 02 onpages 81 through 85 ofExhibit Iofthe staffreport

Mr Towne referred the Council to proposed LDC Section 2 9 90 09 b regarding theundue

hardship appeal on page 67 ofExhibit Iofthe staff report

Dan Brown 3009 NW VanBuren Avenue president of the College Hill Neighborhood
Association CHNA distributed a letter from the CHNA Attachment F He saidresidents

ofhis neighborhood have varying opinions regarding the proposed LDC provisions and

many ofthe residents would like to withdraw from theNational Register ofHistoric Places

NRHP He believes it would be better to create LDC provisions that property owners

would fmd more acceptable as a solution to potential problems

Mr Brown said CHNA members attended all HPAB and Planning Commission meetings
regarding the LDC update and stayed informed of the review process The CHNA

contributed substantial information to the official record regarding the LDC update He

notedthat he suggested initiation ofthe LDC update lastyear andhe believes theproposed
LDC provisions are much better than the existing LDC provisions He acknowledged the

extensive amount of time energy and financial resources City staff and community
members invested in the update process The CHNA appreciates the proposed LDC

improvements
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Mr Brownreferenced Attachment F andwritten testimony theCHNA previously submitted

and urged that the Council adopt the proposed LDC text amendment with modifications

suggested by the CHNA

Mr Brown referenced Mr Towne s earlierreview ofthe purposes ofthe LDC update The

CHNA would like a LDC that encourages property owners to maintain historic properties
while most property owners in the CollegeHill West Historic District CHWHD maintain

their properties several absent landowners have allowed their properties to deteriorate

possibly because ofdiscouragement regarding the historic preservation provisions

Mr Brown said the CHNA would also like all property owners to pursue the HPP process

specified in theLDC as itwould provide the best outcome for property owners andhistoric

preservation He estimated that at least one half of owners ofhistoric resources do not

obtain HPPs citing problems with the existing LDC and the process to obtain HPPs

The CHNA would like more historic districts in Corvallis but he doubts that property
owners would be enthusiastic about creating historic districts based upon the experiences
oftheNorth CollegeNeighborhoodAssociationas theyattempted to seekdesignation under

the existing LDC provisions

The CHNA would likeLDC provisions that would encourage property owners to purchase
and maintain properties in historic areas or to list properties individually in the local or

national register ofhistoric properties He opined that the LDC shouldbe encouraging
rather thanrestrictive

Mr Brown referenced Attachment F and the issue ofneighboring properties He said the

proposed LDC provisions would create historic restrictions on properties not in historic

districts Generally the LDC provisions apply only to designated historic properties He

opined that owners ofadjacent properties would not like the restrictions imposed on them

He questioned whether property owners adjacent to historic districts werenotified ofthe

proposed provisions noting that they would not have reason to expect the proposed LDC

update to affect them

Mr Brownreferenced theissue ofenergy efficient windows and said the CHNAwould like

aCity policy regarding energy efficiency Historic preservation is an important goal ofthe

City however other goals are also important as indicated in the 2020 Vision Statement

He suggested developing apolicywithin the LDC to explain to the HPAB the community s

values regarding livability and energy efficiency

Mr Brown noted that most of the 500 historic properties in Corvallis are located within

historic districts The LDC wasdeveloped based upon the concept of individually listed

properties The CHNA campaigned for LDC provisions for historic districts or even for
each historic district as well as for individual properties He asserted that provisions for

individual properties are being used for properties withinhistoric districts and thissituation

shouldbe corrected

Mr Brown expressed concernthat the defmition of preservation is very limited and is not

what people would typically mean in terms ofhistoric preservation The definition in the
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proposed LDC language does not correlate with the four definition options offered by the

United States Secretary of the Interior He believes the City s limited defmition would
create situations ofconfusion and potential abuse

Tammv Stehr 3560 NW Tyler Avenue Tead a prepared statement Attachment G

Rebecca Landis 2725 SW Morris Avenue concurred with Ms Beierle regarding the

proposed 75 percent economically feasible rehabilitation provision She believes the

provision was intended as a positive compromise but has unintended consequences She
concurred with Ms Beierle thatsome aspects ofhistoric resources cannot bemeasured She

noted that the City can develop clear and objective provisions to an extent and then the

provisions are interpreted bypeople

EdwardL Miller 304 NW 28th Street owns a house builtin 1915 atNW 28th Streetand

NW VanBuren Avenue Mr Miller and his wife are committed to maintaining the original
nature ofthe house but made some modifications enclosed a side porch and added a plant
window in the kitchen before the house was included in a historic district The

modifications weremade carefully to maintain the appearance ofthe house The house is

classified as historic and contributing in the CHWHD which he and his wife voluntarily
joined He expressed concern thatthe proposed LDC amendments would result in a more

stringent processwithgreater effort for property owners He referenced staffs assertion that

the proposedprovisions would result in shorterprocessing times for HPP proposals andhe

would like examples ofhow the procedure would be accelerated

Mr Miller said the proposed LDC update seems greater in scope than was presented to

property owners when they approved formation ofa historic district and he equated it to a

bait and switch situation in which property owners approved creation ofa district with a

general character Property owners within the CHWHD do not wantnew construction that

aesthetically conflicts with theexistingneighborhood however theydonotwant all aspects
oftheir home maintenance efforts scrutinized and regulated He referenced Mr Brown s

testimony regarding LDC standards for individually listed historic properties to ensure their

preservation while districts should beaddressed as aunit He believes that ifthe proposed
LDC provisions were in effect the home owners within the CHWHD would not have

approved formation of the district While he had not reviewed all of the proposed
amendments those he reviewed caused him to sense that the new provisions would be a

greater burden on property owners He would like reassurance that the new provisions
wouldmake historic preservation easier for property owners He suggested that the Council

consider whether theproposed LDC language would discourage formation ofmorehistoric

districts

Deb Kadas 3105 NW Jackson Avenue distributed written testimony Attachment H She

has lived in Corvallis for 30 years has a degree in design and has lived in the CHW1ID for

11 years She received anaward from theHPAB for historically sensitive improvements to

her home and has subsequently designed historic interior remodeling plans for old r

residences

Ms Kadas expressed concern regarding economically feasible rehabilitation She agreed
with the testimony ofMs Beierle and others that the proposed LDC provision may be
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abused because ofdifferent interpretations She supported Ms Beierle s suggestion to

delete the defmition of economically feasible rehabilitation

Ms Kadas questioned use ofthe term historically significant tree as she could not fmd

a defmition ofthe term in the proposed LDC update

Ms Kadas referenced the issue of in kind repair or replacement with energy efficient

windows She explained that the issue was broached in her neighborhood when property
owners discussed becoming a historic district with questions of whether deteriorating
structural features couldbe replaced property owners wereassuredthat replacement would
be allowed She displayed to the Council a Historic Designation ofIndividual Sites Fact

Sheet distributed by the City to property owners the brochure states that routine

maintenance or replacement with similar materials can be approved with aletter ofrequest
and staffreview

Ms Kadas expressed doubt that most people would consider a new wooden window ofthe

same size andnumber ofpanes but double pane rather than single pane as the original to

be achange in materials She encouraged the Council to address this issue which is a major
concern in her neighborhood Since the CHWHD was created three ofher neighbors
changed windows without seeking City approval because theybelieved the City would not

fulfill its earlier promises

Ms Kadas displayed to the Council an e mail that stated that the City permits reasonable

modifications to house exteriors if the modifications are compatible with the historic

character ofthe specific resource and the neighborhood She said the LDC is intended to

allow property owners to continue to use enjoy and modify their properties while

protecting the most valuable historic aspects oftheir houses

Ms Kadas displayed to the Council a brochure from the SHPO that states thatrestrictions

and controls in a historic district are establishedby the local jurisdiction She believes the

City can determine whether energy efficient windows should be allowed She emphasized
that she was speaking only on behalf ofthe CHWHD and not for the Avery Helm Historic

District A HHD orpublicly owned historic buildings

Ms Kadas displayed to the Council a brochure that stated that a permit is required for

replacement ofwindows and doors with dissimilar styles and materials and apermit is not

required when it does not involve a change to the external appearance ofthe property

Ms Kadas displayed to the Council a November 24 2003 document from the City that

stated that routine like for like maintenance that does not result in a visual or material

change in the building exterior including window replacement and re roofmg is exempt
from the permit requirement

Under the proposed LDC provisions window replacements on historic contributing
properties are not exempt or subject to approval by the CommunityDevelopment Director

or the HPAB and are not addressed in the provision Ms Kadas does not believe omission

of window replacement was intended based upon what the City represented to her
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neighborhood She suggested that the City offer fmancial incentives for property owners

to retain their original wood framed windows and screens

Ms Kadas said she did not fmd in the proposed LDC text any provisions regarding re

roofing She suggested that the LDC include examples of like for like exemptions for
different types of maintenance and replacement projects such as roofs sidewalks and

driveways

Ms Kadas concludedby saying the City encouraged the College Hill West Neighborh09d
to become a historic district because of the Neighborhood s historic character Property
owners within the Neighborhood maintained the historic character for nearly 80 years
without ahistoric district status orHPPs Keeping the LDC userfriendly while maintaining
community livability versus maintaining each historic aspect ofstructures would elicit

more participation from the Neighborhood

CouncilorZimbrickreferencedMs Kadas concern regarding in kindrepair andreplacement
with energy efficient windows and cited proposed LDC provision 2 9 70 t regarding
windows on non historic non contributingbuildings In response to his inquiry Ms Kadas

indicated that she did not find a similar provision for historic contributing buildings

Tom Dowling 235 NW 29th Street has lived in the CHWHD since 1978 He and his wife
rebuilt their 91 O square foot bungalow house in the early 1990s and added three bedrooms
and two bathrooms on a second floor the remodeling won an architectural award from the

City and prompted threeneighboring property owners to make similar improvements His

family was honored by the College Hill WestNeighborhood Association for improving a

neighboring non historic non contributing rental property that had deteriorated He is

proud to live in the CHWHD and has fmancially invested in improving property values in

his neighborhood

Mr Dowling referenced his previously submitted written testimony He said many ofhis

neighbors believe theirneeds have notbeen well represented throughout the historic district

formation process and that the City did not keep its promises to the CHWHD property
owners

Mr Dowling speculated that many CHWHD property owners feel they lost their

Constitutional and personal rights to modernize and improve their houses As a property
owner and neighbor he is concerned that property owners will no longer invest in the

CHWHD and willnot construct improvements because ofthe administrative red tape He

said a couple considering purchasing a house near him chose not to do so because the

Realtor indicated that itwould take two years and cost a significant fmancial investment to

make any improvements to the house He does not want historic preservation to diminish

the livability ofthe community or the neighborhood and he does not want people to not

invest in their properties

Mr Dowling suggested that the HPAB not be reformatted to a quasi judicial body He

believes it would bebetter public policy and more efficient to allow HPAB decisions to be

appealed through thePlanning Commission rather thandirectly to the Council He does not

believe the City has the fimds or staff time to investigate issues for Council review He
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expects that under the proposed LDC appeal provisions the Council could become

enmeshed in issues that could be resolved by the Planning Commission

Mr Dowling urged the Council to not decide on updating the LDC until the HPAB

membership issues are resolved The HPAB membership terms wereextended during the

past year to allow the existing members to complete the LDC update process He believes

many CHWHD property owners do not believe the HPAB membership selection process

represents the needs ofeither ofthe City s historic districts

Mr Dowling believes the proposed LDC provision regarding demolition of historic

structures is not associated with economicreality Referencing Ms Beierle s analogy ofthe

Civil War sword he said the sword is not alive does not represent a family and is not a

home in a neighborhood Ifit costs 400 000 to 600 000 to renovate a badly deteriorated

historIc structure that is unsafe it is bad public policy to allow the structure to remain

standing the structure shouldbe subject to the same demolition requirements as any other

structure in terms ofpublic safety He believes it is unfair for anyone purchasing badly
deteriorated properties to be required to make improvements that are economically
architecturally and structurally unfeasible

Mr Dowling alluded to defmition problems in LDC Chapter 1 6 He said several ofhis

neighbors are renovating their properties without obtaining HPPs He considers it bad

public policy for citizens to intentionally avoid and break the lawbecause they believe they
are being subjected to unreasonable and burdensome provisions

Karen Miller 304 NW 28th Street said people refer to livability which implies living a

comfortable20th Century lifewith modern conveniences and structural materials prevalent
in other neighborhoods while enjoying the benefits of a historic home She referenced

recent media discussions regarding global warming and the need to make substantive

changes in howpeople live in order to conserve energy over time She believes everyone
must eventually in therelatively near future face theneed to install solar panels as general
practice or legislative requirements She expressed concern that the City considerhowsuch

requirements might be limited or restricted in historic districts She said solar panels can

be installed on structures in historic districts only ifthey cannot be seen She expects that

property owners within historic districts will have difficulty complying with the City s

policies regarding sustainability and environmental responsibility

Gary Angelo 143 NW 28th Street an officer of the CHNA expressed support for the

written testimony Mr Brown submitted on behalf of the CHNA and the oral testimony
presented tonight by Mr Brown Ms Kadas and Mr Dowling regarding energy efficient

windows He concurred with the suggestion that the issue ofreplacing windows with

similarly sized and designed energy efficient windows be allowed through the LDC by
exemption or Community Development Director approval He said he replaced all the

windows in his house which is in the CHWHD with custom made double pane windows

neighbors only commented that he had painted his windows indicating that it is not

obvious that the windows are not the original structural features Henoted that double pane
windows provide energy efficiency and noise reduction and have greatly improved the

livability ofhis house by reducing noise from outside the house He would not have

Council Minutes April 24 2006 Page 245



invested in replacing the windows if doing so would have required seeking approval from

the HPAB and maintaining the single pane window design

Mr Angelo referenced the differentiation between historic properties and historic district

character as noted in the CHNA written testimony and mentioned during oral testimony
tonight He saidproperty owners presented these concerns to theHPAB during their review

oftheLDC update butthe concerns werenot acknowledged in terms ofLDC amendments

He said historic properties are being treated individually rather than as part of a historic
district and this situation should be addressed through the LDC

Mr Angelo referenced from theCHNAa concernregarding the lefmition of preservation
He said applying thesingle defmition to all instances creates a veryrestrictive LDC thatmay
be abused He urged distinguishing between the United States Secretary ofthe Interior

standards ofpreservation versusthe generic term ofpreservation He emphasizedproperty
owners concern for rehabilitation rather than strictpreservation

Mr Angelo asked that public input be included in revising the composition ofthe HPAB

Acting Mayor Griffiths requested specific written suggestions for reformatting the HPAB

Councilor Hagen inquired how differentiating historic properties from historic districts

would affect the historic preservation program

Mr Angelo responded that the CHWHD asked the City to consider the character ofthe

neighborhood and that modifications alterations and developments within the

neighborhood maintain the character of the historic district rather than applying strict

standards to each property The CHWHD wascreated with theunderstanding that property
owners would maintain the character of the historic neighborhood

Mr Nelson summarized that the context ofa decision shouldbebased upon the appearance
and ambiance of a historic district rather than the regulations as they pertain to each

structure

Nicholas Testa 218 NW 31st Street has lived in his residence since 1991 He concurred

with the testimony of Mr Brown and Ms Kadas He urged that the HPAB not be

reformatted to a quasijudicial body He asked the Council to not include landscaping and

trees as historic elements in historic districts He saidthe issue ofenergy efficient windows
is important to the CHWHD and inquired hownot allowing property owners to make their

houses energy efficient by installing double pane windows would align with Governor

Kulongoski s Executive Orderregarding sustainabilityplans He said not allowing owners

ofhistoric properties to take advantage ofsustainable features for their residenceswould be

inequitable and inconsistent with the cited Executive Order

Carolyn VerLinden 644 SW Fifth Street resides in the A HHD and supports Ms Beierle s

testimony She said she does not understand how the appearance ofa historic district can

be maintained if the appearance of individual structures within the district are not

maintained as the individual structures comprise the district The historic character ofa
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district would not be maintained if individual property owners were allowed to change the

appearance oftheir houses

Ms VerLinden noted that theproposedLDC provisions would allowdouble pane windows
in a non historic structural addition or a location not visible by the public thereby
maintaining the appearance of the historic resource She found that 50 to 75 percent of

energy loss is not through windows older houses tend to leak so heat is lostthroughout the

structure

Ms VerLinden expressed support for theHPAB She said two property owners from within

the CHWHD and one property owner from within the A HHD serve on the HPAB She

believes the City s two historic districts have been well represented during the LDC update
process She said the CHWHDproperty owners wereaware ofthe existing LDC whentheir

district was created the LDC is being revised She believes the HPAB has been very
flexible with the City s historic district property owners and has allowed skylights and

double pane windows She questioned the contentions that the HPAB will reject
applications She said the HPAB is a valuable resource for helping property owners

understand historically sensitive renovations

Ms VerLinden referenced Mr Dowling s statement regarding the extensive time involved

in obtaining a HPP and said many property owners within the AHHD began renovating
their houses after the AHHD was formed Many people have wanted to purchase houses
within the A HHD and renovate them to historical accuracy She noted a problem in her

neighborhood oflandlords allowing property to deteriorate while continuing to collect rent

and she acknowledged that this situation can occur in any neighborhood She believes the

proposed LDC historic preservation guidelines would alleviate this situation

Acting Mayor Griffiths recessed the meeting from 9 05 pm until 9 15 pm

Request for Continuance

No one requested to continue the public hearing

Request to HoldRecord Open

In response to Ms Beierle s request Councilors Brauner and Hagen respectively moved

and seconded to hold open thepublic record seven calendar days for submission ofwritten

testimony The motion passedunanimouslv Acting Mayor Griffiths announcedthatwritten

testimony must be received by the Planning Divisionby 5 00 pm May 1st

ActingMayor Griffiths closed the public hearing

Questions ofStaff

Acting Mayor Griffiths announced thatstaffwillprovide writtenresponses to the Councils

questions as part ofthe May 8th Council meeting packet Staffwill also provide written

responses to testimony presented tonight
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Mr Towne asked that Council members submit their written questions to the Planning
Division by May 1st As was done previously staff will develop a chart analyzing each

question and testimony suggestion

Ms Schlesener noted that pages 190 and 191 of Exhibit V of the staff report contain a

discussion ofthe issue ofwindow replacement which is pertinent to tonight s testimony

Acting Mayor Griffiths said she did not understand how economically feasible

rehabilitation was added as a defmition She referenced testimony regarding all of the

defmitions applying to more than the large issue ofhistoric preservation She understood

that the defmitions are included in several portions ofthe LDC

Mr Towne responded that the proposed LDC update includes new defmitions Some

defmitions suchas thosepertaining to land use procedures involve existingprocedures and

were included in the historic preservation provision portion of the LDC based upon the

Planning Commission s suggestion

Councilor Brauner said he would like the Council to discuss how a quasi judicial body
could still fulfill a valid advocacy role He inquired as to the current HPAB fimctions that

would be lost if the HPAB is reformatted to a quasi judicial body as well as the new

fimctions that would be gained by the reformatting He also inquired whether there are

alternatives to achieve staffs proposed objective rather than establishing a separate quasi
judicial body He questioned how the City could obtain the HPAB s advocacy role ifit is

no longerprovided by theHPAB andhow theHPAB couldprovide the advocacy rolewhile

serving as a quasi judicial body

Mr Towne said staff attempted to identify clearly and objectively exemptions and

decisions that could be made by the Community Development Director Staffhopes these

guidelines will be welcomed andfollowedbyproperty owners thereby reducing thenumber

ofdecisions that must be made by the HPAB Staff hopes that the criteria related to the

HPAB will assist the HPAB in making consistent decisions that probably will not be

appealed to the Council

Mr Towne distributed to the Council his April 24thmemorandum Attachment 1regarding
potential Municipal Code amendments ifthe Council approves reformatting the HPAB to

a quasi judicialbody He explained that the Council s action must be consistent with the

State and Federal requirements ofCertified Local Governments CLG based upon the

requirements staffrecommended some amendments to the HPAB format evenifthe HPAB
is not reformatted to a quasi judicialbody The requirements specify that 12 classifications

of members comprise the majority of the HPAB to the extent these classifications of

potential members are available in thecommunity Community members recommended that

the HPAB include as members people who own property andor reside within arecognized
historic district If the HPAB is reformatted to a quasi judicial body its name must be

changed to indicate thatit is no longeran advisory body Staffrecommended increasing the

HPAB s membership to nine people for purposes ofbreaking tied votes Ifthe HPAB

becomes a decision making body itsmembers shouldbe appointedbythe Council similarly
to appointment ofPlanning Commissioners
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Mr Towne reported that the Planning Commission supported most ofstaffs suggestions
regarding the HPAB and suggested including a representative ofOSU The Commission

expressed concern that HPAB members possess as specified by the CLG requirements a

demonstrated interest competence or knowledge inhistoric preservation The Commission

suggested that a HPAB member should have knowledge of commercial industrial or

institutional buildings whichwouldprobably beprovided by anarchitect The Commission
wasalso concerned abouthow advocacy services would be provided should the HPAB be

reformatted to a decision making body

Mr Towne said the HPAB is developing guidelines for how historic preservation can be

pursued in the community This is an advocacy role but is not related to specific
applications The Planning Commission suggested that the HPAB specify types of

materials amenities and methods that have been accepted and can be used as a

methodology

Mr Towne said staff draftedproposed amendments to Municipal Code Section 1 16250

regarding the HPAB suggesting howrecommendations ofthe Planning Commission and

staff could be incorporated into the Municipal Code

In response to Acting Mayor Griffiths inquiry Mr Towne clarified that the CLG

requirements specify the membership profile ofa quasi judicial form ofthe HPAB SHPO

requirements specify that the majority of HPAB members be preservation professionals
andor persons working in historic preservation related disciplines based upon 12

classifications along with having a demonstrated positive interest in historic preservation

Mr Towne added that the Council does not need to decide tonight regarding the format of

the HPAB Some format changes shouldbe made for compliance with CLG requirements
regardless whether the HPAB is reformatted to a quasijudicial body

Acting Mayor Griffiths announced that the Council will continue tonight s discussion
May 8th

III ADJOURNMENT

The meeting wasadjourned at 9 37 pm

APPROVED

MAYOR

ATTEST

CITY RECORDER
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MEMORANDUM

From Kelly Schlesener Senior Planner

To Mayor and City Council

Date April 24 2006

Re Land Development Code Text Amendment LDT05 00001 to Revise
Chapter 2 9 of the Land Development Code Historic Preservation
Provisions and Other Related Chapters

Additional Public Testimony Submitted Following Completion of
the City Council Staff Report and Prior to 5 00 pm April 24 2006

Attached is the public testimony submitted to the City Council following completion of the
City Council staff report and prior to 5 00 pm on April 24 2006 This testimony includes
the following

Testimony Address

1 April 17 2006 e mail from Marian 226 NW 29TH ST
Carlson CORVALLIS OR 97330 5345

2 April 19 2006 e mail from Chrissy 725 Summer Street NE Suite C
Curran National Register Salem OR 97301
Nominations Coordinator
Oregon State Historic Preservation
Office SHPO

3 April 24 2006 e mail from 234 NW 30th Street
Barbara Ketchum Corvallis OR 97330

L CD Plannlng Oevelopment Review Land Development Code Text Amendments LDT05 Cases Chapter 2 9 Update City CouncilReview Testimony to Council After SRDone coverfor Test Setw SR 5 pm April 24 wpd

ATTACHMENT A
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Towne Fred
esh7o U1j

1

Subject FW CORRECTED VERSION OF PREVIOUS MEMOS

rrom Carlson Marian mailto mcarlson@oregonstate edu
Sent Monday Apri 17 2006 2 12 PM
To fred towne@ci corvallis or us

Cc Dan Brown Dowling Tom COB Charlie Tomlinson Carlson Angela R Carlson Marian
Subject FW Neighborhood

ar Ie n m a year resident in my own home on College Hill
and I feel that we have been bushwhacked misled and sold a bill of goods by a tiny minority of zealots in this

area
and I m none too happy about it I expect at this point it s too late But so be it As I noted in my

memo the transformation over the last three decades of this neighborhood from a hodge podge of rundown
shabby looking poorly maintained houses to a beautiful well kept and well loved neighborhood has been truly
remarkable thanks to the commitment ofthe property owners themselves not layers ofbureacracy reams of
regulations and an Inquisition Board that do nothing for livability

Mark 2006 on your calendar From now on you can look forward to the decline in the condition of homes in this
area If people can t continually modernize and enhance the livability oftheir homes such as by installing
skylights for light and air in the cramped second stories of many houses they ll either neglect them move out or
convert them to rentals What goes up must come down

Sign me totally fed up

Marian Carlson
226 NW 29th St

Original Message
From Carlson Marian
To Charlie Tomlinson
Cc Dowling Tom COB Carlson Anqela R Dan Brown Carlson Marian
Sent Friday Apri 14 200610 35 AM

Subject Neighborhood

Charlie

I m in a terrible rush today but I wanted to register my vigorous opposition to and anger about the movement
on the part of a small minority in our neighborhood to impose a set of property improvement historical guidelines
on us that frankly hardly anyone wants I am speaking from the perspective of a person who claims a degree of
seniority as a neighborhood resident having moved into our house at 226 NW 29th in 1972 At that time our
street was pretty run down for a variety of reasons not the least of which was the fact that practically no
one had the time energy money or interest in upgrading The vigilante committee on historic preservation
would have probably been quite happy to see that nothing waschanging other than that caused by the
relentless deteriorating effects of nature taking its course ie rotting siding peeling paint shabby
windows collapsing porches etc

Thanks to the efforts of the property owners themselves over the last 25 years who moved into this
neighborhood especially on my street Ie 29th Street between Jackson and Van Buren every single house on
the block is now in very good to excellent condition Some which have had 2nd stories added could be
characterized as superb In other words it is the owners themselves who have made this block a truly
outstanding block

a beautiful and immently livable place to be It used to be a ghetto of elderly owners
who couldn t keep up their properties and rental junkers

In particular I want to mention that 2nd stories were added to three houses of the houses on our bloc Under
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the dictatorial guidelines of the Committee of Zealots these additions probably would not have been approved

What a
shame

or rather what a way to ensure that these houses would again like mine 30 years ago

become rundown rentals As it stands now with the expansion in living space in these three houses they have

become far too expensive to serve as rentals Is this good As aperson living on this block I say yes
even if someone who had lived here in 1920 were to come back and exclaim Oh my this isn t the way I

remember that dinky little bungalow

Charlie have we fost all common sense It s property owners like my fine neighbors who make this a

wonderful livable beautiful
neighborhood

not agang ofdo gooders who want to sit in jlJdgement of people

who care about their property their neighbors properties their very neighborhood Please oppose the adoption

of this insanity If you re in any doubt I defy the City Council to take a vote in this neighborhood to see what

people think about this

Enter my comment in the record if you like

Marian Carlson

226 NW 29th St

No virus found in this incoming message
Checked by AVG Free Edition
Version 7 1385 Virus Database 2684 11311 Release Date 4 13 2006
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2
Schlesener Kelly P8h
From
Sent
To
Cc

Subject

Chrissy Curran Chrissy Curran@state or us

Wednesday April 19 2006 12 27 PM
Schlesener Kelly
Stephen Poyser Kirk Ranzetta Roger Roper
Reclass question

Hi Kelly

Steve Poyser forwarded to me your question regarding the
reclassification process within NR districts

Ideally any corrections to NR nominations would be funneled through
you the local government The local govt lets us know in writing
about the mistakes including supporting evidence photos etc if
you are petitioning for a reclassification in a district If we agreewith the reclass the corrections are made with a note in the file and
the local govt is notified that the chang has been made

If for some reason there are numerous corrections in a district we do
a formal amendment to the NR which involves paperwork that goes to
Washington DC Address changes and delisting a lost resource also
require a formal amendment The reason we don t do a formal amendment
for every reclassification in a district is that the National Registeris unconcerned with who is contributing and who is non contributing or
a date of construction that s a few years off or an incorrect style As
long as the character of the district as a whole is maintained they1re
happy They care about the forest not the trees Local governments care
about the trees because they regulate houses in districts on the basis
of their contributing or non contributing status That s why we keep the
records updated here at the state office

If you are consistently finding ambiguities in a district s
classification methodology which can happen in the really old
nominations you may want to consider applying for a CLG grant to do an

update of the nomination

If you have any additional questions feel free to call me

Sincerely

Christine Curran

Architectural Historian
National Register Nominations Coordinator
Oregon SHPO

725 Summer Street Suite C Salem OR 97301
Tel 503 986 0684

Fax 503 986 0793

chrissy curran@state or us

1
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Towne Fred shffO1L 3
From
Sent
To

Subject

Barbara Ketchum bketchum@coas oregonstate edu
Monday April 24 2006 3 56 PM
Towne Fred

Tonight s Meeting

Fred I don t believe that I sent these thoughts to you earlier so I m

sending them now before tonight s meeting Thanks very much
Barb Ketchum

234 NW 30th st
Corvallis OR 97330
752 6840

The role mission of the Board should be to help residents be successful
in
their housing rehabilitation not to be adversarial or to impose strict
regulations The Board should appreciate the need for a balance between
the

modern family and the retention of architectural integrity and history
A
successful board has the ability to blend these elements together in a

complementary way

Rehabilitation renovation encourages property maintenance and
improvement in
a more architecturally mixed neighborhood such as College Hill
Rehabilitation renovation will accomplish more in terms of neighborhood
enhancement than preservation restoration more residents will feel

positive
about the Board the neighborhood and their property if they have some

flexibility with what they can do to their homes

Strict preservation restoration guidelines could result in
1 only a small minority going before the Board and following guidelines
2 majority of residents doing one or more of the following

a doing improvements construction without going before the
Board

b selling property due to frustration over strict Board
guidelines

c doing nothing because guidelines so strict can lead to

property
deterioration

d turning property into a rental can lead to property
deterioration

Unless the Board is made up of professional architects designers and
historic preservationists it should not be making judgment and setting
architectural requirements for residents It should be more of an

advisory
board making suggestions and offering advice for rehabilitation
resources

and techniques

Conservation and energy costs are important in today s environment As
long
as residents are sensitive to the architecture and streetscape they
should
be permitted to incorporate new materials into their renovation It s

not

appropriate to have a strict set of guidelines for College Hill and
another
set for OSU who has been permitted to use energy efficient materials

1
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Refurbishing original materials can be very expensive Many residents
can t

afford the costs associated with preservation restoration

Rehabilitation renovation is the best approach for offering the majority
of

neighborhood residents an opportunity to fix up a home

Safety issues also become a concern when preservation restoration
regulations prohibit the addition of railing to steps stairs for

example
because they re not original to the house And what about features that
accommodate the disabled They are not original to the structure but
need

to be considered There would be too many exceptions needed under the

preservation restoration approach

2
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CHAPTER 2 9 UPDATE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE TEXT AMENDMENT
LDT05 00001

OUTLINE OF VARIOUS PARTS OF THE APRIL 11 2006
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

I ISSUE pgs 1 2

II BACKGROUND pgs 4 9

A Need for Revisions to the City s Historic Preservation pgs 2 3
Provisions

B Process to Date for Proposed Land Development Code Text pgs 3 4
Changes Associated with Revisions to the City s Historic
Preservation Provisions

C Summary ofHPAB Recommendation to Planning pgs 4 9
Commission
1 Chapter 1 1 The City Council and Its Agencies and pg 4

Officers
2 Chapter 1 2 Legal Framework pg 4
3 Chapter 1 3 Enforcement pg 5
4 Chapter 1 6 Definitions pg 5
5 Chapter 2 0 Public Hearings pg 5
6 Chapter 2 2 Development District Changes pg 5
7 Chapters 2 3 2 5 Conditional Development and pg 5

Planned Development respectively
8 Chapter 2 9 Historic Preservation Provisions pgs 6 8
9 Chapter 2 16 Request for Interpretation pg 8
10 Chapter 2 19 Appeals pgs 8 9
11 Chapter 3 31 HPO Historic Preservation Overlay pg 9

District
12 Chapter 4 0 Improvements Required with pg 9

Development
13 Chapter 4 2 Landscaping Buffering and Screening pg 9
14 Chapter 4 7 Corvallis Sign Regulations pg 9
15 Chapter 4 9 Additional Provisions pg 9

III EVALUATION pgs 9 32

Introductory Comments pgs 9 10

ATTACHMENT B
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A Planning Commission Revisions to HPAB pgs 11 28

recommended Materials

1 Global Changes pg 11
2 Chapters 1 1 The City Council and Its Agencies and pg 11

Officers Chapter 2 0 Public Hearings Chapter 1 3

Enforcement Chapter 2 3 Conditional

Development Chapter 2 5 Planned Development
Chapter 2 16 Request for Interpretation Chapter
4 0 Improvements Required with Development
Chapter 4 2 Landscaping Buffering and Screening
and Chapter 4 9 Additional Provisions

3 Chapter 1 2 Legal Framework pg 11

4 Chapter 1 6 Definitions pgs 11 15
5 Chapter 2 2 Development District Changes pgs 15 17
6 Chapter 2 9 Historic Preservation Provisions pgs 18 27

7 Chapter 2 19 Appeals pg 27

8 Chapter 3 31 HPO Historic Preservation Overlay pg 27

District

9 Chapter 4 7 Corvallis Sign Regulations pg 27

B Additional Staff recommended Revisions to Planning pgs 28 32

Commission recommended Materials
1 Section 2 9 70 Exemptions pgs 28 31

2 Section 2 9 100 03 Alteration or New Construction pgs 31 32

Parameters and Review Criteria for a Director Level
Historic Preservation Permit

IV REQUEST pgs 32 33

V EXHIBITS Full Description of Parts of Each Exhibit Starting on Remainder
Next Page of Report

EXHIBIT I Clean Version of the Planning Commission s recommendation with

Additional Minor Revisions Recommended by Staff Staff s Each
additional minor revisions indicated in italics

Exhibit has

EXHIBIT II March 28 2006 Planning Commission Notice of Disposition Order its own

2006 046 page
numbers in

EXHIBIT III Updated Matrices Comparing Existing Historic Preservation the center of
Provisions and Planning Commission Recommendation

the right
EXHIBIT IV Planning Commission Minutes Applicable Excerpts of March 8 and side of the

22 2006 February 8 15 and 22 2006 and January 25 2006 page
Minutes

EXHIBIT V Supplemental Memos from Staff to Planning Commission Post

Release of Planning Commission Staff Report

EXHIBIT VI January 9 2006 Staff Report to the Planning Commission

EXHIBIT VII Testimony Submitted After Completion of Planning Commission

Public Hearing Process
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Exhibit I Clean Version of the Planning Commission s Yellow Color

Recommendation with Additional Minor Revisions Exhibit I

Recommended by Staff Staff s additional minor revisions Pages 1 108

indicated in italics
1 Chapter 1 1 The City Council and Its Agencies and pgs 1 4

Officers
2 Chapter 1 2 Legal Framework pgs 5 8

3 Chapter 1 3 Enforcement pgs 9 10

4 Chapter 1 6 Definitions pgs 11 26
5 Chapter 2 0 Public Hearings pgs 27 30

6 Chapter 2 2 Development District Changes pgs 31 46
7 Chapter 2 3 Conditional Development pgs 47 48
8 Chapter 2 5 Planned Development pgs 49 50

9 Chapter 2 9 Historic Preservation Provisions pgs 51 90

10 Chapter 2 16 Request for Interpretation pgs 91 92
11 Chapter 2 19 Appeals pgs 93 96
12 Chapter 3 31 HPO Historic Preservation Overlay pgs 97 98

District
13 Chapter 4 0 Improvements Required with pgs 99 102

Development
14 Chapter 4 2 Landscaping Buffering and Screening pgs 103 104

15 Chapter 4 7 Corvallis Sign Regulations pgs 105 106

c16 Chapter 4 9 Additional Provisions pg 107

Exhibit II March 28 2006 Planning Commission Notice of Exhibit II

Disposition Order 2006 046 Paqes 1 131
1 Cover Portion pgs 1 4

2 Chapter 1 1 The City Council and Its Agencies and pgs 5 8

Officers
3 Chapter 1 2 Legal Framework pgs 9 12
4 Chapter 1 3 Enforcement pgs 13 16
5 Chapter 1 6 Definitions pgs 17 30
6 Chapter 2 0 Public Hearings pgs 31 36
7 Chapter 2 2 Development District Changes pgs 37 54

8 Chapter 2 3 Conditional Development pgs 55 56

9 Chapter 2 5 Planned Development pgs 57 58
10 Chapter 2 9 Historic Preservation Provisions pgs 59 110
11 Chapter 2 19 Appeals pgs 111 116
12 Chapter 3 31 HPO Historic Preservation Overlay pgs 117 120

District
13 Chapter 4 0 Improvements Required with pgs 121 124

Development
14 Chapter 4 2 Landscaping Buffering and Screening pgs 125 128

15 Chapter 4 7 Corvallis Sign Regulations pgs 129 130

16 Chapter 4 9 Additional Provisions pg 131
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EXHIBIT III Updated Matrices Comparing Existing Historic Exhibit III

Preservation Provisions and Planning Commission Pages 1 40

Recommendation
1 Matrix Comparing How Actual Historic Preservation pgs 1 8

Permit Applications for the Last 5 Years Would be

Reviewed Relative to Current Code vs Planning
Commission recommended Version of Text
Amendment vs HPAB recommended Version

2 Matrix Comparing Current Code vs Planning pgs 9 40
Commission recommended Version of Text
Amendment Relative to How Exempt Director Level
and HPAB Levelltems are Reviewed

EXHIBIT IV Planning Commission Minutes Applicable Excerpts Exhibit IV

Pages 1 66

1 January 25 2006 Minutes pgs 1 8

2 February 8 2006 Minutes pgs 9 16

3 February 15 2006 pgs 17 21

4 February 22 2006 pgs 23 32
5 March 8 2006 pgs 33 46
6 March 22 2006 pgs 47 66
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EXHIBIT V Supplemental Memos from Staff to Planning
Commission Post Release of Planning Commission Staff Report

1 January 25 2006 Memo from Fred Towne to

Planning Commission Re Outstanding Issues
2 January 26 2006 Memo from Fred Towne to

Planning Commission Re Additional Testimony
3 February 3 2006 Memo from Fred Towne to

Planning Commission Re Additional Testimony
4 February 8 2006 Memo from Fred Towne to

Planning Commission Re a Listing of Testimony to
date in order of Code Chapters

5 February 8 2006 Memo from Fred Towne to

Planning Commission Re Additional Testimony
6 February 15 2006 Memo from Fred Towne to

Planning Commission Re Additional Testimony
7 February 22 2006 Memo from Fred Towne to

Planning Commission Re Primary Issues Addressed
by Public Comments

8 February 22 2006 Memo from Fred Towne to

Planning Commission Re Additional Testimony
9 February 28 2006 Memo from FredTowne to

Planning Commission Re Previously Distributed
Testimony

10 March 8 2006 Memo from Staff to Planning
Commission Re Suggested Order of Remaining
Deliberation Items Suggested Solutions

11 March 15 2006 Memo from Fred Towne to Planning
Commission Re Previously Distributed E mail

12 March 17 2006 Memo from Kelly Schlesener to

Planning Commission Re Planning Commission
Changes to Date

13 March 21 2006 E mail from Fred Towne to Planning
Commission Re Three Additional Issues

EXHIBIT VI January 9 2006 Staff Report to the Planning
Commission

Executive Summary
Introductionllssue Background
Process for Legislative Amendments to Land
Development Code and Comprehensive Plan
Proposal Brief Overview
Criteria Discussion Conclusions

L Applicable Review Criteria
A Land Development Code
B Comprehensive Plan Policies
C Statewide Land Use Planning Goals
D Certified Local Government State Land

Use Requirements

Exhibit V

Pages 1 350

pgs 1 6

pgs 7 102

pgs 103 12

pgs 113 144

pgs 145 174

pgs 175 188

pgs 189 194

pgs 195 228

pgs 229 236

pgs 237 254

pgs 255 262

pgs 263 348

pgs 349 350

Exhibit VI

pgs 1 3

pgs 1 5

pgs 5 6

pgs 6 12
pgs 12136

pg 12 25

pg 13 14

pg 14 19
pg 20 23

pg 23 25
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2 Specific Code Provisions pg 25 136

A Chapter 1 6 Definitions pg 27 34

B Chapter 2 2 Development District pg 34 50

Changes
C Chapter 3 31 Historic Preservation pg 51 53

Overlay District
D Chapter 2 9 Historic Preservation pg 53 114

Provisions
E Chapter 2 0 Public Hearings pg 114 120
F Chapter 4 0 Improvements Required pg 120 122

with Development
G Chapter 4 2 Landscaping Buffering pg 122 124

Screening
H Chapter 4 7 Corvallis Sign pg 124 125

Regulations
I Chapter 1 1 The City Council and Its pg 125 127

Agencies and Officers
J Chapter 1 2 Legal Framework pg 128 130
K Chapter 1 3 Enforcement pg 130 131

L Chapter 2 19 Appeals pg 131 132

M Chapter 2 3 Conditional Development pg 133 134
and Chapter 2 5 Planned

Development
N Chapter 2 16 Request for pg 134 135

Interpretation
O Chapter 4 9 Additional Provisions pg 135 136

Outstanding Issues forPlanning Commission pgs 136 137

Issues Identified Prior to Completion ofPlanning
Commission Staff Report
Summary of Recommendations Requested Actions pgs 137 141

for Planning Commission to Consider During Its
Public Hearing Process

HPAB recommended Version of Chapter 2 2 pgs 34 50

Development District Changes as it appeared in the

Planning Commission Staff Report

2 2 10 Background pg 34 37

2 2 20 Purposes
2 240 Quasi Judicial Change Procedures for District

Changes Subject to a Public Hearing

2 240 01 Initiation pg 38 40

2 240 02 Application Requirements
2 240 03 Acceptance of Application
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2 240 05 Review Criteria pg 40 45
2 240 06 Action by the Hearing Authority
2 240 07 Notice of Disposition
2 240 08 Appeals
2 240 09 Effective Date

2 2 50 Quasi Judicial Change Procedures for pg 45 50
Administrative District Changes

2 2 60 Procedures for Reclassifying a Designated
Historic Resource in a National Register of
Historic Places Historic District

HPAB recommended Version of Chapter 2 9 Historic pg 53 114
Preservation Provisions as it appeared in the

Planning Commission Staff Report
2 9 10 Background and Applicability pg 54 56
2 9 20 Purposes

2 9 60 Determining Applicability and Appropriate Historic pg 56 58
Preservation Permit Review Procedure s

2 9 70 Exemptions pg 58 64

2 9 80 Emergency Actions pg 64 66

2 9 90 Procedures for All Required Historic Preservation PO 66 76
Permits

2 9 90 02 Application Requirements pg 66 69
2 9 90 06 Review Criteria pg 69 73
2 9 90 07 Action on Application pg 73
2 9 90 09 Appeals pg 74 75
2 9 90 12 Reapplication pg 75 76

2 9 100 Alteration or New Construction Activities Involvino a PO 76 100
Desionated Historic Resource
2 9 100 01 Definition pg 76 78
2 9 100 02 Historic Preservation Permit Required pg 78 80

for Alteration or New Construction
2 9 100 03 Alteration or New Construction pg 80 90

Parameters and Review Criteria for a

Director Level Historic Preservation
Permit

2 9 100 04 Alteration or New Construction pg 90 99
Parameters and Review Criteria for an

HPAB Level Historic Preservation
Permit

2 9 100 05 Status of Properties for Which an pg 99 100
HPAB Level Historic Permit has Been

Approved to Install a Moved Resource
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2 9 110 Demolition Involvinq a Desiqnated Historic Resource pq 101 108

2 9 110 02 Historic Preservation Permit Required pg 101 104

for Demolition
2 9 110 03 Review Criteria pg 101 104

2 9 110 04 Documentation Required Prior to pg 104 105
Demolition

2 9 110 05 Status of Properties for Which pg 105 106
Demolition Approved

2 9 110 06 Temporary Stay of Demolition Building pg 106 108

Permit for Publicly Owned Historic
Resources

2 9 120 Movinq a Desiqnated Historic Resources pq 108 111
2 9 120 01 Definition of Moving a Designated pg 108 111

Historic Resource

2 9 120 02 Historic Preservation Permit Required pg 109 111

for Moving
2 9 120 03 Review Criteria pg 109 111

2 9 120 04 Documentation Required Prior to pg 109 111

Moving
2 9 120 05 Status of Properties for Which Moving pg 109 111

Approved
2 9 130 Administrative po 111 112

2 9 130 01 Enforcement pg 111 112
2 9 130 02 Ordered Remedies pg 111 112

Overall Conclusions pg 112 114

Page 250 n

L CDPlanning Development Review Land Development CodeText Amendments LDT05 Cases Chapter 2 9

Update City Council Review outline of staff report parts for April 17 CC Overview wpd 8



Attachments
A HPAB Recommended Land Development Code Text

Amendment With Staffs Recommended Changes
Indicated

B Map of Avery Helm National Register of Historic Places
Historic District

C Map of College Hill West National Register of Historic
Places Historic District

D Map of All Designated Historic Resources in the City of
Corvallis

E Existing Land Development Code Chapter 2 9 Historic
Preservation Provisions

F Applicable Review Criteria Land Development Code
G Applicable Review Criteria Comprehensive Plan Policies
H Applicable Review Criteria Statewide Land Use Planning

Goals

I Primary State Laws Pertaining to Local Level Historic
Preservation Programs

J Oregon State Historic Preservation Office Certified Local
Government Program Annotated Performance Standards
and Local Government Participation Procedures

K Chapter 2 9 Update Matrix Identifying Historic
Preservation Permits Reviewed Between 2000 and 2005
and Comparing Review Processes in the Existing Staff
Proposed and HPAB Proposed Historic Preservation
Code Provisions

L Chapter 2 9 Update Matrix Comparing Existing Staff
Proposed and HPAB Proposed Historic Preservation
Code Provisions

M 1995 Federal Secretary of Interior Standards for the
Treatment of Historic Properties Includes Standards for
Rehabilitation and Preservation

N City Attorney Office Memoranda Pertaining to Text
Amendment

o State Historic Preservation Office Correspondence
Pertaining to the Text Amendment

P Minutes and Public Testimony for all HPAB Chapter 2 9
Update MeetingsWork Sessions

Q Other Public Testimony Submitted Following Historic
Preservation Advisory Board Workshops Received
Through January 4 2006

R List of the Historic Preservation Codes From Other
Jurisdictions Surveyed by Staff

S City Council Initiation of Text Amendment Excerpt from
June 20 2005 Minutes

T Memorandum Dated June 9 2005 from Community
Development Director Ken Gibb to Mayor and City Council

Regarding Initiation of Text Amendment

EXHIBIT VII Additional Testimony Received to Date Following
Planning Commission Public Hearinq Process

1 Letter from College Hill Neighborhood Assn
2 Letter from Deb Kadas
3 Letter from Thomas Dowling

Exhibit VII

Pages 1 42

pgs 1 8

pgs 9 40

pgs 41 42
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HANDOUTS FOR THIS EVENING APRil 24 2006

April 24 2006 Memo from Kelly Schlesener containing public
testimony received following completion of City Council Staff Report

Copies of the Overheads for the Staff Report

Copies for the public of the Outline of the Various Parts of the April
11 2006 City Council Staff Report distributed previously to the City
Council on April 17 2006

lAND DEVELOPMENT CODE TEXT AMENDMENT lDT05 00001

BACKGROUND

Update Chapter 2 9 Historic Preservation Provisions and Other

Related Chapters of the land Development Code land Development
Code Chapters 1 1 1 2 1 3 1 6 2 0 2 2 2 3 2 5 2 9 2 16 2 19 3 31

4 0 4 2 4 7 and 4 9

Historic Preservation Provisions last amended in July 2003

principally to establish requirements relevant to established Historic
Districts

Avery Helm formed on January 27 2000 and

College Hill West formed on August 1 2002

Properties currently subject to the City s Historic Preservation

Provisions has increased to just over 500 including the individually
listed resources

LCDPlanning Development Review Land Development Code Text Amendments LDT05 Cases Chapter 2 9

Update Staff Reports CC PH Presentation wpd
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The staffing and the HPAB s work program has shifted to emphasis
on Historic Preservation Permit HPP review

Since 2003 staff the HPAB and affected property owners have

gained experience with the implementation of the new Code

provisions

Grey areas and gaps have been identified regarding which review

procedures should apply to specific development scenarios

GOALS OF TEXT AMENDMENT

PRIMARY GOAL To improve upon the clarity and objectivity of the

criteria and standards that guide land use decisions affecting historic

resources

OTHER IMPORTANT OBJECTIVES

To clarify the appropriate decision maker or decision making
body for different categories of Historic Preservation decision

To provide appropriate review criteria for each type of decision
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To establish the decision maker for Historic Preservation Permit

applications that require a public hearing

The Historic Preservation Advisory Board is proposed to
assume a quasi judicial decision making role for certain

Historic Preservation Permit applications

The existing Code specifies that the Board make

recommendations on Historic Preservation Permits to the

Director and the Director then acts on those

recommendations

In many ways the Board has assumed a de facto decision

making role and it may be appropriate to recognize the
Board as the appropriate decision making body for

discretionary Historic Preservation Permits

The Board s assumption of a quasi judicial decision

making role is consistent with the situation in many other

jurisdictions acting as Certified Local Governments to

carry out local state and federal Historic Preservation

regulations The Oregon State Historic Preservation Office

SHPO which oversees the Certified Local Government

program also supports the HPAB s assumption of a quasi
judicial decision making role

To address state land use requirements For example the Code

changes are intended to ensure that all Historic Preservation

Provision decisions can be acted upon at the local level within

120 days from the date of a complete application Accordingly
some layers of review have been eliminated to guarantee that all
reviews including possible local appeals can be

accommodated within this 120 day period under the existing
Code
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PUBLIC REVIEW TO DATE

The City Council initiated this Text Amendment on June 20 2005

June 22 2005 staff presented a draft package of Historic

Preservation Provisions laying out a basic permit review framework

as a starting point

The Historic Preservation Advisory Board HPAB held eight work

sessions on the proposed Text Amendment between July 7 2005 and

October 12 2005 July 7th July 27th August 4th August 16th

September 8th September 13th October 6th October 12th

The HPAB staff and the public worked hard to create clear

definitions and a clear decision making process The HPAB improved
upon the staff draft and forwarded a recommendation to the Planning
Commission

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on January 25 2006

and February 8 2006 The Commission conducted deliberations on

February 8 15 and 22 and on March 8 and 22 2006

The Commission staff and the public worked hard to further refine

the Text Amendment to meet the goals of the project The

Commission s refinements to the Text Amendment improved the

proposed regulations and are outlined in the introductory memo of

the Council staff report The Commission forwarded a unanimous

recommendation to the City Council for approval of theText

Amendment Exhibits I and II of the Council staff report
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FRAMEWORK OF TYPES OF HISTORIC RESOURCES

Local Register National Register of National Register of Historic
Historic Places Places Historic District

1 Historic Contributing
Individual Individual 2 H istoric Non Contributi ng

Designation Designation
3 Non Historic Non

Contributing

The only time the terms Historic Contributing
Historic Noncontributing and Nonhistoric Noncontributing are used
is in reference to the classification of a resource that is in a National

Register of Historic Places Historic District The classifications are

descriptors of the resource s contribution or lack thereof to the
District itself

Many historic resources have multiple types of designations
Examples include

An individual resource that is in the Local Register and also in a

National Register of Historic Places Historic District or

An individual resource that is in the National Register of Historic
Places and also in a National Register of Historic Places
Historic District or

An individual resource that is in the Local Register in the
National Register of Historic Places and also in a National

Register of Historic Places Historic District etc

L CD Planning Development Review Land Development Code Text Amendments LDT05 Cases Chapter2 9
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DESCRIPTION OF PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDED PROGRAM

GENERAL

Comprehensive description contained in the cover memo of the City
Council Staff report The modifications to most chapters are primarily
housekeeping changes to implement the larger changes associated

with Chapters 2 2 Development District Changes and Chapter 2 9

Historic Preservation Provisions

Chapter 1 6 Definitions incorporates specific definitions for the

terminology used throughout Chapter 2 9 Historic Preservation

Provisions and other affected chapters of the Code At the direction

of the Planning Commission the changes also now include specific
definitions for each land use process identified by the Code

HISTORIC PRESERVATION OVERLAYS MOVED TO CHAPTER 2 2

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT CHANGES

Application and removal of Historic Preservation Overlays was moved

from Chapter 2 9 Historic Preservation Provisions to Chapter 2 2

Development District Changes in recognition that these decisions are

in essence District Change decisions

Introduction of new application requirements and review criteria for

application for or removal of a Historic Preservation Overlay

Introduction of QuasiJudicial Administrative District Change
procedures to address

1 Removal under certain conditions of an HPO from a property
where prior property owner objection occurred to address the

provisions of ORS 197 772 3 and

2 Removal of an HPO under certain conditions from a property
where a Desigated Historic Resource has been legally
demolished
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NEW CHAPTER 2 9 HISTORIC PRESERVATION PROVISIONS DEVELOPED
TO REPLACE EXISTING CHAPTER 2 9

Basic Outline Components of Chapter

1 Background and Purposes Sections 2 9 10 2 9 20

2 Procedural Requirements Sections 2 9 30 2 9 60 and 2 9 90

3 Exemptions from HPP Requirements Section 2 9 70

4 Emergency Actions Section 2 9 80

5 Alteration or New Construction Activities Section 2 9 100

6 Demolition Activities Section 2 9 110

7 Moving Activities Section 2 9 120 and

8 Administrative Enforcement Section 2 9 130

The entire program breaks down into 3 simple types of decisions

EXEM PTIONS DIRECTOR LEVEL HPAB LEVEL

NO HISTORIC HISTORIC HISTORIC
PRESERVATION PRESERVATION PRESERVATION
PERMIT REQUIRED PERMIT PERMIT

Page 250 v
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EXEMPTIONS

Exemptions from HPP Requirements

List of Exempted activities greatly clarified and

List of Exempted activities includes 22 activities such as

Interior Alterations

Routine Maintenance and or In kind repair and

replacement
Certain Repair or replacement of gutters and

downspounts
Certain Accessory Development
Certain Freestanding Trellises

Certain Rear Deck or Patio Additions etc

L CD Planning Development Review Land Development Code Text Amendments LDT05 Cases Chapter 2 9
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DIRECTOR LEVEL AND HPAB LEVEL HISTORIC PRESERVATION PERMITS

Each of the 3 Categories of Historic Preservation Permits has

procedures that determine how the HPP will be processed

Alteration or New Demolition Moving
Construction

1 Director Level

Items not qualifying
as Exemptions but

falling within the H PAB Level HPAB Level
definition of one or All items not All items not
more of the 15 qualifying as qualifying as

different activities Exemptions Exemptions
listed

2 HPAB Level

All items not

qualifying as

Exemptions or

Director Level

The clear and objective review criteria for Director Level HPP s for

Alteration and Construction Activities are embedded within the actual
definition for each of the 15 activities listed

The review criteria for HPAB Level HPP s are outlined within each of
the 3 categories of HPP Alteration or New Construction Demolition
and Moving They can be seen in Exhibit I of the Council staff report
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DECISION TREE FOR ACTIVITIES INVOLVING A DESIGNATED HISTORIC

RESOURCE

Determine what Activity You

Have In Mind

Exemption

I vesl 8

No HPP Required
Decision Tree Stops

Director Level Alteration

or New Construction

I Yes I B
Director Level HPP

Decision Tree Stops

HPAB Level HPP for

1 Alteration or New

Construction

2 Demolition and or

3 Moving

Decision Tree Stops
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PROCESS AND REVIEW CRITERIA FOR TEXT AMENDMENT

legislative decision

Planning Commission recommends action to City Council and City
Council makes final decision

Criteria used to Evaluate This Text Amendment

land Development Code criteria

Comprehensive Plan policies
Oregon Statewide Planning Goals

ORS 197 772

OAR 660 023 200

Oregon SHPO ClG Program
Nation Historic Preservation Act etc implemented by State

Statute Rules etc

Findings addressing these criteria and indicating consistency
summarized on pages 137 141 of Exhibit VI The Planning
Commission staff report
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RECOMMENDATION

Staff proposes a limited number of changes to the Planning
Commission recommended program These limited changes
generally involve minor issues and are outlined on pages 28 32 of the

City Council staff report

Staff believes that the Planning Commission recommended program
as further modified to include the minor issues raised by staff

addresses the City Council s original objectives

It clearly defines different types of development making
identification of the proper decision making process clear

It clearly identifies the activities that are exempt from the

requirement for a Historic Preservation Permit

It clearly establishes the Director Level reviews as non

discretionary administrative decisions for certain Alteration or

New Construction activities

It makes the HPAB a quasi judicial decision making body using
a public hearing process with a framework of more specifically
developed review criteria consistent with state requirements for

discretionary decisions

It generally will result in shorter processing times for

development proposals

In many areas it provides greater incentive for compliance and

will address much of the information distributed by the City in

support of the College Hill West Historic District creation and
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Finally by focusing on clear and objective criteria that can be

implemented through the Exemption category and the Director
level review process and the more specifically defined criteria
that can be implemented through the HPAB Level review

process the City s Historic Preservation Program can be

effectively implemented given anticipated budgetary
considerations

OVERAll RECOMMENDATION

The options for the Council to consider are outlined on pages 32 and
33 of the City Council staff report

From the facts presented staff recommend thatthe City Council
choose Option 2 modifying the Planning Commission s

recommendation and approving the land Development Code Text
Amendment lDT05 00001 as outlined in the Planning Commission s

Notice of Disposition and further modified by the minor changes
recommended by staff Exhibit I subject to the review and approval
of a final order
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NEXT STEPS

Conduct the public hearing

Consider holding the written record open until May 1 2006 The

additional testimony could then go out in the packet for the May 8

2006 Council meeting

Begin deliberations on May 8 2006 and conclude deliberations on

either May 15 or May 22 2006

Consider an ordinance and findings pertaining to the Council s

decision on June 5 2006
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osu Facilities Services 100 Adams Hall Corvallis Oregon 97331 2001

T 541 737 29691 F 541 73742421 http faweb1 baforst edu towow

Oreg n

April 24 2006

Members of City Council
501 SW Madison Avenue
Corvallis Oregon 97331

Dear Members of City Council

On behalf of Oregon State University please accept this letter as written
testimony in response to the City of Corvallis City Council hearing on the
Planning Commission s recommendations regarding LDT05 00001 Update of
City s Historic Preservation Provisions including Chapter 2 9 and related
chapters

General Observation

Chapter 2 9 does not contain any specific criteria that relate to Historic Districts
All the review criteria relate to structures and do not address the overall historic
character of a Historic District It is commonly known that historic resources

within a Historic District are allowed a greater degree of flexibility than individual

listings in rehabilitation treatment since the impact of changes is measured

against the historic character of the District The City needs to include in
Chapter 2 9 criteria that promote the visual character of the district and establish
the visual character as the crucial benchmark when assessing rehabilitation
initiatives within a Historic District Language might include resembles the

existing historic character ofHistoric Districf or does not diminish ornegatively
impact the existing visual character ofthe Historic District By including such

language the City will ensure that the rehabilitation of individual structures within
a district is done in a manner consistent with the character of the Historic
District and that the emphasis placed on a single structure does not supersede
the overall purpose of the Historic District

Historic Preservation Code Language

Oregon State University OSU is currently completing a nomination application
to have a portion of its campus registered on the National Registry of Historic
Places In accordance with this work OSU will prepare zoning code language
for adoption by the City This zoning code language will be specific to OSU and
include historic preservation regulations for OSU s historic resources OSU has
shared its intent to create this zoning code language with the State Historic

1
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Preservation Office City Planning staff the Historic Preservation Advisory Board
and the Planning Commission each has expressed their support

OSU would request that during the adoption of Chapter 2 9 update the City
Council acknowledge its support via a motion for OSU to prepare its own

historic preservation zoning code language OSU will work with the HPAB
and the Planning Commission to prepare the zoning code language prior to
review and adoption by the City Council

Language specific to the need purpose and function of OSU will ensure that
preservation efforts are tailored to the dynamic nature of a major university
campus and its facilities

OSU requests that the City Council strongly consider the benefits of having such
a distinction for HistoriG Districts within the Land Development Code A Historic
District is defined by all the elements features and resourceswithin a specific
geographic area and a particular period of significance

Creating separate and distinct code language for each Historic District within the
City of Corvallis would allow property owners to have input into how their
property will be protected or rehabilitated Most of the properties being
discussed by the City are homes for people as such the City Council should be
particularly interested whether the homeowners find certain preservation or

rehabilitation regulations acceptable Allowing homeowners within a district
input in the creation of code language specificto their district will ensure greater
long term support and compliance

I would volunteer my time and prepare the zoning code language with the
homeowners This will offset the work burden on City staff During your
deliberation of the Chapter 2 9 updates acknowledge support for tllis
concept via a motion The homeowners within the Historic Districts should
have regulations in the code specific to their District and needs

Chapter 2 3 and 2 5

Under the review criteria for each of these sections the following language is
included

If the proposed development is adjacent to a Histone District the

impact of visual elements as described in 8 aJove of the
development on any adjacent designated resource s

2

Page 250 ae



OSU would offer that the City is potentially subjecting non historic resources to
an HPAB review This broadly expands the intent and purpose of historic
perseveration Please answer the following questions in a written response

Which entity within the City will determine the visual impact on a historic district

What criteria will be used to assess the visual impact

What resources will be used to establish an objective review of the visual
impact

Whatrole ifany will the members ofthe HPAB have in the review

If the HPAB has a role in the review will it be advisory or quasi judicial

If quasijudicial then how does the City find this to be an appropriate level of
review if the property in question is not historic

Has the City properly notified all the property owners that would are affected by
such a regulation

Does the City find that the adoption of such code language unnecessarily creates
a hardship for the property o ner who happens to own a home adjacent to a
Historic District

Does the City realize that by having such code language in LDC all
redevelopment efforts along Monroe Street would be subject to this criterion and
potentially a HPAB review since OSU will have a Historic District along Monroe
Street

It appears the City is stretching the parameters of historic preservation review
and as such may subject property owners to an unanticipated hardship OSU
would recommend the City Council delete this new criterion from Chapter 2 3 and
Chapter 2 5

Chapter 2 9 110 02 Demolition Involving a Designated Historic Resource

Section b of this Chapter states that the demolition of
Nonhistoric Noncontributing structures listed in a National Register of Historic

3
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Places Historic District will require a review by the HPAB This presents a

significant problem for asu

A structure designated as Nonhistoric Noncontributing has been identified as a

resource which does not have any contributing historic qualities The HPAB
would like to review such structures under the assumption that the removal of
such structures mayor may not affect Le damage obscure or negatively
impact historic resources within a National Register of Historic Places Historic
District Shouldn t such an effect be determined before review by the HPAB By
writing the code in such a manner the City is presupposing that each demolition
would affect a historic resource perhaps unnec13ssarily subjecting the applicant
to a time consuming quasi judicial review Many properties will be affected by
this requirement that othelWise would not be affected by historic preservation
zoning code

As an alternative OSU would suggest that the City make such a review a

Director Level review This type of review would require a site plan showing the
extent of construction or demolition boundaries truck access to the area staging
area for construction vehicles manner or mechanism for protecting the windows
architectural features etc of buildings immediately adjacent to the building
proposed for demolition By having such information the Director would be able
to review the potential damage

If the Director finds that the demolition has the potential to impact historic
resources then the HPAB would review the application

k you

Vincent Martorello AICP
Interim Director Facilities Services

Oregon State University

4
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City Council ofCorvallis
Written Testimony re 2 9 Updates and related Chapters April 24 2006

BA Beierle

I would like to thank the Preservation Commission for yeoman s work refining the draft
ordinance changes forwarded by the HPAB following their public workshop program Generally
the Commission s work has substantially improved the document with few notable exceptions

2 9 20 c Exhibit 1 page 52 Resources listed in the National Register ofHistoric Places include
individual sites not just Districts Add the language Sites or before Districts

2 9 1 OO 01a Exhibit 1 page 69 This language speaks only to buildings Sites or structures are

also defined as Historic Resources Exhibit 1 page 15 and this proposed language is less
meaningful for non building resources Craft additional language tobetter reflect the scope ofall
the Historic Resources

2 9 1 OO 04 b 3 d Exhibit 1 page 78 This language is in conflict with itself The draft code
stipulates that New additions or new construction shall be smaller than the impacted designated
historic resource In the next sentence the language continues where an addition or new

construction is proposed to be larger than the original designatedhistoric resource To
respect the first statement strike the remainder

Chapter 1 6 Exhibit 1 page 14 definition of Economically Feasible Rehabilitation and its
singular reference in Chapter 2 9 Exhibit 1 page 82 2 9 110 03 c a

The proposed 75 standard while based on Housing and Urban Development practice is
arbitrary and capricious when applied to historic resources While this percentage may appear
clear and objective it is based on an undefmed replacement value Is the replacement value
defmed by a real estate appraisal More than one appraisal Is it based on a fair market
comparison provided by a real estate salesperson Is it the best guess of acontractor who mayor
may not be familiar with respectful rehabilitation or preservation techniques Or is it the
property owner s best guess If an applicant feels a discretionary decision is not economically
feasible the draft code offers an application for an Economic Hardship Appeal in Section
2 9 90 09 b Exhibit 1 page 67 with clear parameters established for determining financial
burden There are too many variables in the language replacement value for Council to let this
language stand

In its only application in the draft code this crude definition of economically feasible
rehabilitation in and of itself permits demolition ofa designated historic resource Demolition is
forever and once this step is taken it can never be called back Consequently as the hearing
body charged with conservation ofthe city s historic resources the HPAB must be

extraordinarily thoughtful in approving demolition This proposed definition makes light ofan

extremely weighty constitutional matter Further if left in the code this language renders the
balance ofthe code meaningless

ATTACHMENT E
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Another concern touches on two matters 2 240 05 c 1a and b removal of ahistoric

preservation overlay Exhibit 1 Page 41 and 2 9110 03 c2 aalternatives to demolishing a

designated historic resource Exhibit 1 page 83 This concernexists in the current code as well
as in the proposed draft In both formats the code cautions property owners that their actions or

inactions may not substantially reduce or diminish adesignated resource In alternatives to

demolition aproperty owner is encouraged toexplore public or private acquisition of the
resource Unfortunately a formidable disconnect exists between the spirit of the code and the
letter of the code If aproperty owner allows a resource to deteriorate beyond rehabilitation and
then finds abuyer the seller has satisfied code by finding an alternative todemolition Since the
deteriorated condition ofthe resource is not the fault ofthe buyer the buyer is then able under
the code to apply for ademolition permit since the deteriorated condition of the resource

occurred prior to his or her watch This disconnect creates a loop hole large enough to drive a

bulldozer through Direct the city attorney to craft language to correct this challenge

Together with the proposed economically feasible rehabilitation definition these components are

a formula for wholesale loss oflong suffering but historically significant resources Failure to

address this concern puts this code at odds with its purposes 2 920 Exhibit 1 page 52 the
established policies in the Comprehensive Plan Article 5 Section 54 and statewide planning
goals and possibly other state land use requirements The economically feasible rehabilitation
definition loses sight of intrinsic historic value that is difficult to defme but easy to demonstrate

I respectfully request that the record remain open

Thank you for your kind and thoughtful attention and consideration

2
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COLLEGE HILL NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION
Dan Brown President 754 8420 Gary Angelo Vice President 753 5789

Christine Stillger Secretary 753 5108 Mike Middleton Treasurer 738 0827

April 24 2006

Dear City Councilors

Finally being able to review the clean draft of the revised historic preservation
language has inspired the following discussion It goes beyond our earlier written testimony
submitted to the City Council and included in your materials as partof EXHIBIT Vll

We askthe City Council to choose OPTION 3

Modify thePlanning Commission s recommendation in some other manner

not identified in Options 1 and 2and approve the Land Development
Code TextAmendment LDT05 00001 subject to the review and approval
of afinal order

Nei2hborin2 Properties

Although the College Hill Neighborhood Association represents many properties in the

College Hill West Historic District we also represent other members who own neighboring
properties We arcconcerned about everyone sinterests and we see both sides ofthe changes
to the LandDevelopment Code in 2 3 30 04k and 2 540 04k These changes would impose
restrictions on changes to non historic properties adjacent to historic resources

AB we see it as amatter ofprinciple incorporating this new language now is abad

idea for the City government These new provisions apply historic preservation standards to

properties that have never been officially designated as historic resources First owners will

naturally question the propriety of such apolicy Second if adopted by the City Council now

this action will be taken without reasonable notice to many property owners in Corvallis who

since they do not live in designated historic structures or in designated historic districts have no

reason to be following the current development of historic preservation regulations Not

informing these people that they will be subject to compatibility review by the new Quasi
Judicial group we suppose wouldbe unfortunate for the City of Corvallis

We recommend that the City Council delete theproposed changes to 2 330 04 k

and to 2 540 04 k

Ener2V Efficient Windows

Historic preservation is an important goal for the City of Corvallis However

it is not the only important goal We believe that energy conservation and livability featured in

the 2020 Vision Statement are equally important Thus as a matter ofpolicy the Land

Development Code should make an explicit compromise in 2 9 to accommodate energy efficient

windows which will make homes quieter and less drafty and save energy

ATTACHMENT F
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We endorsed 2 9 100 03 n in our previous written testimony to the City Council See
EXHIBIT VII based on March 28 2006 draft See EXHIBIT II PAGE 87 However since
then the conjunction and and not or has been inserted into the document between 1 and 2

See EXHIBIT I PAGE 73 now 2 9 100 03m This change makes the resulting policy very
restrictive even if the replacement windows are expensive wood windows with divided lights as

required by section 2

In some previous drafts ofthe proposed code revisions wood double pane windows were

exempt if they were matching the old in all other respects Now under Director Level decisions

matching wood double pane windows are allowed only if notvisib Ie or on Non Historic
additions Further there is no policy on energy efficient windows at the Quasi Judicial level

Particularly in historic districts where many included properties are not museum pieces
in their own right the installation of double pane windows which match the windows they replace
in all other respects is a reasonable compromise between the demands ofhistoric protection and
other City goals

We ask the City Council to either 1 change the conjunction from and to or

thus affirming theDirector Level authority to permit double paned windows
or 2 to insert a statement under 2 9 100 04 to guide the new Quasi Judicial body

about energy efficient windows and 3 to allow such windows to be installed in

historic homes

In addition we ask the City Council to 4 delete either the word fenestration
aLatin wordfor windows in 2 9 100 04 b3c or to delete the phrase windowsJ shall
be retained or repaired unless deteriorated beyond repair 11

The limited written testimony has not scientifically established that modern double pane windows
do not create a net benefit to society and to owners in terms of long run livability and energy

efficiency especially for designated historic structures intended to be preserved indefinitely

Character of the Historic District

Since the beginning of the process to revise historic preservation regulations in 2005

we have argued that historic districts should be separated in the code from individually listed

properties The reason is that there are many significant differences between the two types
By not explicitly separating out guidelines for historic districts the revised historic preservation
regulations are more appropriate for individually listed properties than for those located in

historic districts This is problematic because the district properties by far outnumber those

individually listed

Now we have a prime example ofsw h an error For properties in anational historic
district individual structures do not stand alone Whether historic or non historic and whether

contributing or non contributing the overall purpose is the protection of the historic character of
the district and not aparticular structure This results in some properties being held to a higher
standard and some properties to a lower standard than if they were individually listed
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The criterion of historic character ofthe district has been left out ofthe proposed code

and so the new Quasi Judicial body will not specifically understand the intent ofthe Corvallis

community about historic district properties

In order to guide the decisions ofthe new Quasi Judicial body we ask the City
Council to explicitly include preserve the historic character of historic districts

as a substitute for preserve the structure in 2 9 100 04

Definition of Preservation

In Chapter16 there is a new definition of Preservation which implies only a very

narrow definition to be applied in the Land Development Code

as applied to Designated Historic Resources As used in this Code

See EXIDBIT I PAGE 23

We hope that this problem is merely an oversight Ifnot we take the greatest exception

This new definition along with the definition of Rehabilitation should refer only to tvO

of four alternate treatment possibilities identified by the Secretary of the Interior None is

required under federal law and Preservation certainly is not required Preservation is an

archival quality type of preservation appropriate for publicly owned resources such as

Monticello or Colonial Williamsburg which does not permit additions to homes and requires
repair ofworn out or rotten materials rather than replacement Much testimony from Corvallis
citizens testimony fODn the State Historic Preservation Office and practice in other Oregon
municipalities favors ageneral standard of Rehabilitation over Preservation as a treatment
strategy

The problem comes in the frequent use of preservation in a different general usage

sense in the code

Chapter 2 9 HISTORIC PRESERVATION PROVISIONS

Historic Preservation Overlay

Historic Preservation Permit

Historic Preservation Review Board etc

In the cases above avery different meaning is implied The definition problem can be

corrected in a number ofdifferent ways

We ask the City Council to insert language to clarify that the definitions in

Chapter 16of Preservation and Rehabilitation only refer to Department
of Interior treatment options and not other more general usage
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Definition Conflict for Non HistoricfNon Contributinl Revisited

In our previous written testimony to the City Council See EXHIBIT V1I PAGE 5

we recommended that Chapter 16 be altered to reflect t1e consultant s use of the period of

significance ending in 1945 in addition to being less than 50 years old to determine which

properties were Non HistoriclNon Contributing in the College Hill West Historic District We

would now like to point out that there is anearby precedent in Albany Here are Albany s related

definitions for all of their historic districts

Noncontributing A building or strocture that was originally constructed after 1945 outside the period

ofsignificance Ord 5488 7 1101

Historic Non contributing A building or structure originally constructed before 1946 that retains but

does not exhibit sufficient historic features to convey a sense of history These properties do not

strengthen the historiceharacter ofthe district in their current condition Ord 5488 7 1101

Historic Contributing A building or structure originally constructed before 1946 that retains and

exhibits sufficient integrity materials design and setting to convey a sense of history These

properties strengthen the historic character ofthe district Ord 5488 7 1101

For verification see EXHIBIT VYAttachment n pp 219 and 220 As with the CHWHD

COl1SU ltants Albany felt that the postvar architecturc and devclopment represented a break from

the prewar historic trend
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April 24 2006 Tammy Stehr

Thank you for the opportunity to address you on the Update of the City s

Historic Preservation Provisions I personally attended most of the 8 HPAB

workshops as well as 5 of the 6 Planning Commission meetings on this

matter As a member of the College Hill Neighborhood Association which

overlaps in part with the College Hill West Historic District in which lama

resident and property owner I would like to express my support for virtually all

of the testimony presented by Dan Brown throughout these deliberations over

the course of the last year I also would like to state that I concur with virtually
all of the testimony presented by Deb Kadas I would like tonight to also briefly
reiterate some of the concerns I have raised in the past as well as air some

distress I m experiencing over the health of historic preservation in this town

As I ve stated before I do not see that the proposed provisions

adequately protect public historic resources As the workshops and public
hearings progressed the focus came more and more to rest on the plight and

handling of residential properties whether individually listed or within districts

The County the State the City the School District and the State Board of

Higher Education all own properties which will fall under the jurisdiction of

these revised provisions More accurately stated of course the public owns

the properties in question the County the State the City the School District

and the State Board of Higher Education along with their employees are

the stewards of these public resources And sometimes career ambitions

even outright tunnel vision can impinge on responsible stewardship of these

public resources We have seen in the case of OSU for example in both the

matter of the siting of the Kelley Engineering Building and the Apperson Hall

sign change that other Comp Plan Policies were deemed subordinate to the

mandate of 13 2 1 The University and the City should work cooperatively to

develop and recognize means and methods to allow the University to provide
the mission activities In effect this has meant that if OSU bureaucrats claim

AJTACHMENT G
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April 24 2006 Stehr page 2

they need a waiver from other Camp Plan requirements in order to fulfill any

scheme they claim fulfills its mission in some way some are inclined to roll
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April 24 2006 Stehr page 3

properties There are hundreds even thousands of properties Every blue tab

denotes a Historic District in Oregon Yet here in Corvallis I have realized

during these deliberations over the past year that Historic Preservation has a

very bad name in this town prominent citizens are agitating to reverse the

creation of the College Hill West Historic District horror stories circulate about

the capricious nature of HPAB findings more and more people are ignoring
the Land Development Code altogether and repairing and altering historic

properties without consultation with the city
Why do hundreds if not thousands of other towns make Historic

Preservation work but Corvallis cannot I m really not sure this document

before you contains the answers I do believe it will feed the adversarial divide

that has grown up between the citizens and the HPAB it will further the

hypocrisy of governmental units abusing their positions as stewards of publicly
owned historic resources it will contribute to the degradation of our

designated historic districts and it will cripple the cause of historic

preservation in Corvallis for years to come This code is not clear and

objective rather it creates a great deal of opportunity for the HPAB to render

subjective if not outright capricious decisions Put very bluntly many of my

neighbors are scared of the HPAB and these proposed revisions do very little

to calm their fears I don t have the answer but I am painfully aware of many

problems and would urge you to acknowledge the problems as well and strive

to craft more effective provisions
Thank you for your time and attention in these matters
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To
From

Corvallis City Council
Deb Kadas Homeowner

College Hill West Historic District
Comments regarding LDC TenAmendments Chapter 2 9

April 24 2006

Re

Date

Thank you for this opportunity to provide public input regarding the updating ofLDC Chapter
2 9 and other affected City Codes I have participated in this process since the beginning and I
can appreciate everyone s interest in bringing this to a close

SUPPORT FOR CITY COUNCIL TO CHOOSE OPTION 3

While I too amexhausted and anxious to see afinal version of the Code approved by the City
Council I do NOT support Exhibit I Planning Commission Recommended TenAmendment as

currently written I have several outstanding concerns as outlinedon the nextpage Therefore I
want to encourage the City Council to choose Option 3 make the modifications to the code as

suggested by me my neighbors and my neighborhood association and then approve the code

WHATARE THE PROBLEMS THAT NEED TO BE SOLVED

Before the Council evaluates the 2 9 Code revisions it is worth rememberingwhat current

problems exist Changes to the Code should reflect the intention to solve these problems and
not be to satisfy any extreme minority position As I see it the biggest problems with 2 9 as it
currently exists are

1 The Code needs to be clarified and made objectively verifiable
2 The Historic Preservation Permit process needs stre1m lining
3 The City made promises to the property owners of College HillWest and needs to

keep them in order to maintain trust

4 The City needs aCode that encoUrages widespread compliance and participation
thereby offering maximumprotection of historic resources

S The Cityneeds to do the right thing now so that potential future historic resourceswill
be voluntarily protected

The City of Corvallis slogan on their logo reads Enhancing Community Uvability When
evaluating the Code revisions the question Does this enhance livability should be asked
The need to protect valuable resources should be balancedwith the Citys goals for livability and
economic vitality especially in the case of the many homes in historic districts With respect to
old historic resources agood codewith incentives and flexibility will give the City the greatest
return onits investment

Changing the codenow to be more restrictive will generate mistrust non compliance and could
actually encourage deterioration as property owners become discouraged and decide to do
nothingor sell their old homes to absentee landlords

Balancing the need to maintain livability with the need to preserve character ofneighborhoods
will generate historically sensitive maintenance repairs and additions and encourage
enthusiastic support by resource owners

ATTACHMENT H
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OUTSTANDING CONCERNS RELATED TO 2 9 EXHBIT 1

In addition to the concerns I submitted inwriting onAprilU 2006 I would like to submit the

following additional issues as significant concerns which I hope the City Council will address
and change in the final version of 2 9 I have listed my concerns in order as they appear in the
Code document and not in my order of priority

1 Economically Feasible Rehabilitation pg 4 This definition begs for abuse Who
determines the costs and values of the replacement Aresecond opinions allowed

Required Challenged How and wherewill this definition be applied I am in the
historic remodeling design business and I canguarantee you that I can get you abid on

any replacement and then get another one for DOUBLE sometimes evenTRIPLE the

price Similar quality of construction is extremely vague in the construction business I

recommend completely deleting this definition
2 Historically Significant Tree pg 6 This ishouse keeping matter A2 states that a

tree must meet the definition ofSignificant Tree in 1 6 but I find NO DEFINITION of

significant tree in 1 6 or at least not under s for Significant
3 In Kind Repair or Replacement with regard to Energy Efficient Windows Pg 7

Withoutquestion this has been one of the most debated topics of 2 9 I emphatically
URGE the City Council to include energy efficient windows in the definition IF the
windows match exactly in size material almost always wood number ofpanes etc

The Council should make this change for the following reasons 1 The Citywill be

keeping its promises bothwritten and implied made to homeowners in the College
HillWest neighborhood 2 Double paned windows are energy efficient and fulfill one of
the code spurposes to promote energy efficiency 3 Changing old wood and clear glass
windows to new double paned woodand clearglass windows does NOT involve a

change in materials unless of course the Cityconsiders argon gas an unacceptable
replacement for air and 4 replacing deteriorated windows does NOT diminish the
historic character of the neighborhooQ which was THE primary goal whenwe formed
our district From the sidewalk very few people can tell the difference between an old
double hungwood sash window and anew double hung double paned wood sash
window I CAN ASSURE THE COUNCIL THAT IF THIS RULE WAS IN PLACE AT
THE TIME OF THE NOMINATION THE COLLEGE HILLWEST NEIGHBORHOOD

WOULD NOTHAVE AGREED TO BECOME A HISTORIC DISTRICT Currently
neighbors left and right are circumventing the system completely sometimes putting in

cheap vinyl windows Encouraging property owners to participate in the permit process
and put in bigh quality woodwindows is farpreferable to owners not complying and

putting in windows that DO look plastic and inappropriate IF the City Council wants

some measure beyond exemption for energy conserving windows thenplacing this

particular In Kind Replacement would be acceptable at the Director Levelpermit
process Finally I recommend the City consider incentives to motivate property owners

to KEEP their original windows by offering rebates for having wooclframecl storm

windows screens made to fit their oldwindows Similar to the washing machine
rebates A listofproviders would also be helpful like the City lists for sidewalk repairs
and tree vegetationpruning along rights of ways
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Note I have no problem with astricter more Preservation oriented approach for
windows on public buildings that are maintained with public dollars I also have no

problem with our friends in the Avery Helm Historic District preferring the stricter
Code language as it applies to their district I amspeaking about this issue on behalf of
myneighbors in the College Hill neighborhood only

4 Routine Maintenance and or In Kind Repair or Replacement pg 55 See argument
made above In addition I suggest clearer language specifically listing the following
most common repairs replacements as exemptions acomposition roofneeding
repair replacement with anew composition roof visible and non visible rottenwood
siding with new wood siding crumbled cement driveways with new cement driveways
and old wood doors andwindows with new wood doors and windows Remember this
is ALL with the clear understanding that it does not involve a change in the design style
dimension ormaterial of the resource

5 Re roofing pg 59 If not specifically stated in In Kind Repair or Replacement then
replacing old composition roofing with new composition roofing should surely be
mentioned here under exemptions to HPPs Various forms of re roofing are mentioned
in Exempt Director level and HPAB level but no where is replacing an old composition
roofwith anew composition roof specified

6 Application Requirements pg 61 Although the Director or his appointee may
waive certain items requiring an applicant to submit detailed information on 15 different
points is OVERKILL and unreasonable especially for Director Levelpermits This will
discourage participation Unless the Citystaff can guarantee that every applicant
coming to the counter will leave after hisher first visit with aclearunderstanding of all
the waivers to their particular application Is it really necessary for a resource owner

wanting to attach asign or install a freestanding trellis to complete an application of IS
items that includes anarrative ofwhat theyhope to accomplish anarrative description
regarding how their request complies with applicable review criteria asite plan drawn
to scale showing the location of structures driveways and landscaped areas on the site
setback

dimensions
etc I recommend simplifying the Director Level application to

Items I 6 with additional items 7 IS specifically noted for a few very certain Director
Level permits

7 Repair or Replacementof Windows pg 73 If replacement ofold windowswith
new energy efficientwindows is not covered under like for like circumstances but it
should ifthe law is followed to the letter then Director review of the replacements
for matching inmaterial design size number of divided lights and shape should surely
be allowed This wouldbe the place in the Code to specify replacement with energy
efficient windows is allowed ifthe like for like criterion is followed This can easily be
accomplished by replacing the word and with the word or in between items number I
and 2 In fact the word and was inserted since the last version of the code without
discussion
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CONCLUSION

The College Hill West neighborhood was encouraged to become aHistoric District by the City
because of its historic character as aneighborhood Residents of ourneighborhood maintained
the historic character very well for almost 80 years without HistoricDistrict status or Historic

Preservation permits Property owners have generally done the right thing for over 80 years
because they love theirhomes and they love how livable the neighborhood is

What motivated College Hill to allow the City to create our historic district was NOT the desire
tomicro manage our neighbor s orworse yet Avery Helm s window replacements patio
constructions or evencontrol their plastic fences even though wemight agree they lack
historic integrity What motivated me and my neighbors was the desire to maintain the historic
character of the neighborhood This meant reviewing the designs of additions new construction
ADD s garages etc to make sure they weregenerally compatible with the historic character of
the neighborhood This meant no T ill siding ormetal sliding windows This meantHarding
Schoolwould likely be spared the wrecking ball and the trees on Harrison would likely be

preserved

I urge the City Council to take whatever time necessary to write thebest code possible Please
consider the Citys slogan Enhancing Community Livability when reviewing the code and

please consider the fact that property owners in the College Hill neighborhood did NOT sign up
to be a300 home Preservation Project We want a Code that protects the character of our

neighborhood withoutmaking every old home a living museum at the owner s expense

Historic Preservation s best chance for success in Corvallis is through positive partnership
Rules regulations enforcement and fines will not encourage future preservation Enthusiasm
incentives advice and education cooperation and flexibility willall gomuch further in

advancing our cause Personally I would enjoy being an enthusiastic voice in the Historic

Preservation movement in Corvallis if extreme positions are avoided if the Code remains clear
and objective and ifexpectations for private property owners are kept reasonable I hope our

City Council chooses this positive direction and becomes amodel for future success

Most Sincerely

Deb Kadas
3105 NWJackson Avenue Corvallis
754 6611
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MEMORANDUM

From Fred Towne Planning Division Manag

To Mayor and City Council

Date April 24 2006

Re Potential Amendments to Municipal Code Section 1 16 250 Regarding the
Historic Preservation Advisory Board

1 Issue

As the City Council considers the recommendation from the Planning Commission to adopt
LDT05 00001 which would amend the City s Historic Preservation provisions it must

recognize the need for some changes to the Municipal Code to respond to such an

amendment The primary issue is the change of responsibility forthe Historic Preservation
Advisory Board HPAB from that of an advisory broad to a decision making body Other
issues to address are ensuring the make up ofthe body is consistent with state and federal
requirements for Certified Local Governments CLG deciding if the body should be
required to include members of established Historic Districts deciding on the size of the
body and deciding whether the Mayor or the full Council appoint the members

11 Background

To date the HPAB has been an advisory board for the Community Development Director
on many decisions affecting Designated Historic Resources In this role applicants
present proposals to the HPAB describing modifications proposed to be made The HPAB
makes a recommendation to the Community Development Director regarding these
applications often with recommended Conditions ofApproval that are intended to maintain
a resource s Historic Integrity The final decision is made by the Community Development
Director based on public comment staff expertise and the recommendation from the
HPAB In most cases the Community Development Director s decision has reflected the
HPAB s recommendation Because of this situation the HPAB has become a de facto
quasi judicial decision maker on the Historic Preservation Permits that come before it
With this type of decision comes a need to meet strict State mandated public meeting and
decision making process standards The proposed amendments to the Land Development
Code contained in the Planning Commission recommendation LDT05 00001 recognize
and formalize this decision making authority Should the City Council choose to adopt
LDT05 00001 consistent with this part of the Planning Commission recommendation
amendments to Municipal Code Section 1 16 250 will be needed Following that initial
decision the specifics of those amendments can be considered

L CD Planning Development Review Land Development Code TextAmendments LDT05
Cases Chapter2 9 UpdatelMuni Code Changes Cover muni code change wpd Page 1 of 10

ATTACHMENT I
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J1 Discussion

Amending Municipal Code Section 1 16 250 focuses on five key areas

A State and Federal Requirements for Certified Local Governments with

Respect to Representation on Historic Boards

Oregon State Historic Preservation Office SHPO requirements state that

the majority of the members on Historic Boards should be preservation
professionals and or persons working in historic preservation related

disciplines based on the following category headings

1 Archaeology a Pre istoric Archaeology Graduate degree in

Anthropology or Prehistoric Archaeology plus 2 5 years full

time professional experience or b Historic Archaeology
Grad uate degree in Anthropologyor Historic Archaeology plus
2 5 years full time professional experience

2 ArchiteCtural History a Graduate degree in Architectural

History or a closely related field plus 2 years full time

professional experience or b an undergraduate degree in

Architectural History or a closely related field plus 4 years full

time professional experience

3 Conservation a Graduate degree in Conservation or a

closely related field plus 3 years full time professional
experience or b an undergraduate degree in Conservation or

a closely related field plus 3 years full time apprenticeship in

the field

4 Cultural Anthropology a Graduate degree in Anthropology
with specialization in Applied Cultural Anthropology plus 2

years full time professional experience or b an

undergraduate degree in anthropology with specialization in

applied cultural anthropology plus 4 years full time

professional experience

5 Curation a Graduate degree in Museum Studies ora closely
related field plus 2 years full time professional experience or

b an undergraduate degree in Museum Studies or a closely
related field plus 4 years full time professional experience

L CDPlanning Development ReviewlLand Development Code Text AmendmentslLDT05
Cases Chapter 2 9 UpdatelMuni Code ChangeslCover muni code change wpd Page 2 of 10
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6 Engineering a State Government recognized license to

practice Civil or Structural Engineering plus 2 years full time
professional experience or b a Masters of Civil Engineering
degree with course work tn Historic Preservation or a closely
related field plus 2 years full time piOfessional experience or

c a Bachelors of Civil Engineering degree with one year of
graduate study in Historic Preservation or a closely related
field plus 2 years full time professional experience

7 Folklore a Graduate degree in Folklore or a closely related
field plus 2 years full time professional experience or b an

undergraduate degree in Folklore ora closely related field plus
4 years full time professional experience

8 Historic Architecture a State Government recognized license
to practice Architecture plus 2 years full time professional
experience or b a Masters ofArchitecture degree with course

work in Historic Preservation or a closely related field plus 2

years full time professional experience or c a Bachelors of
Architecture with one year of graduate study in Historic
Preservation or a closely related field plus 2 years full time
professional experience

9 Historic Landscape Architecture a a State Government

recognized license to practice Landscape Architecture plus 2

years full time professional experience or b a Masters
degree in Landscape Architecture with course work in Historic
Preservation ora closely related field plus 2 years full time
professional experience or c a four or five year Bachelor s

degree in Landscape Architecture plus 3 years full time
professional experience

10 Historic Preservation Planning a State Government
recognized certification or license fn Land Use Planning plus
2 years full time professional experience or b a graduate
degree in Planning with course wo k in Historic Preservation or

a closely related field plus 2 years full time professional
experience or c an undergraduate degree in Planning with
course work in Historic Preservation or a closely related field
plus 4 years full time professional experience

L CDPlanningIDevelopment Review Land Development Code Text Amendments LDT05
Cases Chapter 2 9 Update Muni Code Changes Cover muni code change wpd Page 3 of 10
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11 Histqric Preservation a Graduate degree in Historic

Preservation or a closely related field plus 2 years full time

professional experience or b an undergraduate degree in

Historic Preservation or a closely related field plus 4 years full
time professional experience or

12 History a Graduate degree in History or a closely related

field plus 2 years full time professional experience or b an

undergraduate degree in History or a closely related field plus
4 years full time professional experience

These are also the Federal standards The State CLG regulations require
and the Federal regulations encourage appointment of individuals with these

qualifications to the extent that they are available in the community Both

the State and Federal regulations state that if a reasonable effort has been

made to obtain the services of such individuals but they are not available

members of the general public may be appointed instead The Board s

make up with regard to these categories is a change to Municipal Code

Section 1 16 250 that the City Council should consider whether LDT05

00001 is approved or not

a Specific Inclusion on the HPAB of Owners residents from Recognized
Historic Districts

During both the HPAB workshops and the Planning Commission public
heE ring regarding these Historic Preservation provisions public testimony
was offered recommending that the Historic Board resulting from this effort

should include owners and or residents of the recognized Historic Districts

In those meetings staff pointed out that decisions regarding the Historic

Board s make up were not directly included in the Land Development Code

itself Instead they would be taken up during any Municipal Code

amendments Council believes are needed to address the LDT05 00001 Text

Amendment This is also an issue that could be taken up whether LDT05

00001 is approved or not

C Change in the Name of the Historic Preservation Advisory Board

Should the Council choose to approve the Planning Commission s

recommendation that the HPAB become a quasi judicial decision making
body the term Advisory Board will no longer be appropriate Any number
of names might be chosen Consistent with the quasi judicial decision

L CDPlanning Development Review Land Development Code Text Amendments LDT05

Cases Chapter 2 9 Update Muni Code Changes Cover muni code change wpd Page 4 of 10
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making character of the Planning Commission Historic Preservation
Commission may be appropriate

Change in Number of Board Members

Council may wish to change the number of members on the Board It is

currently an 8 member Board and decisions are made by a majority vote or

five members Should Historic District residents owners be designated as

members an increase to nine members similar to the Planning
Commission may be appropriate Since this majority of 5 must also be

qualified yet the number in the majority does not increase for a body of
either 8 or 9 members those positions are no more difficult to fill Again this
is a choice that could be made whether the Council approves LDT05 00001
or not

E Change in Method of Appointment

Currently the Municipal Code states that unless otherwise provided by
ordinance all commission and board members shall be appointed by the

Mayor subject to the advice and consent of Council The HPAB is currently
appointed in this manner however the other primary quasi judicial decision

making body the Planning Commission is appointed by the Council With

approval of LDT05 00001 the Council may wish to change the appointment
method consistent with that of the Planning C mmission

IV PlanninCJ Commission s Comments

At its April 19 2006 meeting the Planning Commission discussed these issues indicated
a general agreement with the identified direction and offered the following suggestions
First the Commission was generally supportive of the inclusion of owners residents from
the Historic Districts on the new decision making body It was thought that given the many
Historic Resources on the OSU Campus consideration also should be given to having
someone associated with OSU appointed However the Commission was concerned that

any such appointees should meet the CLG requirement that members have a

demonstrated interest competence or knowledge in historic preservation or as the State
standards state members shall have a demonstrated positive interest competence or

knowledge in historic preservation This level 9f expertise was seen as a good way to

avoid any potential for bias Another concern was the need to revisit this requirement if
additional Historic Districts are formed

L CD Planning Development Review Land Deveiopment Code TextAmendments LDT05
Cases Chapter 2 9 Update Muni Code Changes Cover munl code change wpd Page 5 of 10
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The Planning Commission also believes that it is important for a person on the body to
have knowledge ofcommercial industrial and institutional buildings and howtheyoperate
Most of the Historic Resources in the community are residential with the exception of

OSU but this perspective is one that would be valuable in the review of permit requests
for non residential resources

The Planning Commission is aware that the decision making body will no longer be able
to fill the advisory role currently identified in its charter The Commission is also aware of

the Historic Preservation Guidelines that the HPAB has initiated work on and that these

guidelines should be helpful to future applicants for Historic Preservation Permits It was

suggested however that a library of accepted materials amenities and methods based
on previous approvals might also be of help This is beyond the immediate scope of this

project

IV Proposed Update to Municipal Code Section 1 16 250

Should the Council choose to make the changes identified above staff has drafted the

following amendments to Section 1 16 250 Historic Preservation Advisory Board

Section 1 16 250 Historic Preservation Ad visorOoard Commission

1 A Historic PreservationAd visory Doard Commission is hereby created for the

City

2 This Doard Commission shall consist of nine eisht members as described in a

throuqh e below All Commission members shall have a demonstrated positive

interest competence or knowledae in historic preservation An individual appointed

to the Board mav represent both a and UP to one of the other cateaories in b

throuqh lid below However an individual appointed to the Board may not be

counted to satisfy representation for both d below and either b or c In addition

a member of the Planninq Commission shall serve as an ex officio member of the

Commission with all the riohts and privileoes attendant thereto except the rioht to

vote

a At least five mMembers shall meet one or more of wttIthe follovYing
knovv ledge Federal Historic Preservation Professional Qualification

Standards listed in 1 12 below qualifications to the extent that these

members are available in the community If a reasonable effort has been

made to fill thesefive positions and members meetinq the qualifications are

unavailable the positions mav befilled bv persons meetinq the Qualifications
in b throuqh 8 below and or experience shall be appointed to sere on

the Doard 1 historic resources protection 2 building industry 3 fire life
and safety codes 4 licensed architect and S representative of the Denton

L CDPlanning Development Review Land Development Code Text Amendments LDT05

Cases Chapter 2 9 Update Muni Code Changes Cover muni code change wpd Page 6 of 10
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County Ilistorical Society An individual appointed to the Doard may
repregent no more than t rolo of these area L Once all of these areas of
interest are represented additional members maY be appointed to the Doard
vvho repregent the general public In addition a member of the rlanning
Ccmmigsion shall gerve as an ex officio member of the Doard vvith all the
rights and pri vileges attendant thereto except the right to vote

1 ArchaeoloQV a Prehistoric ArchaeoloGY Graduate dearee in
Anthropoloay or Prehistoric Archaeoloay plus 2 5 years full time
professional experience or b Historic Archaeoloay Graduate
dearee in Anthropoloay or Historic Archaeoloay plus 2 5years full
time professional experience

2 Architectural History a Graduate dearee in Architectural History
or a closely related field plus 2 years full time professional
experience or b an underaraduate dearee in Architectural History
or a closely related field plus 4 years full time professional
experience

3 Conservation a Graduate dearee in Conservation or a closely
related field plus 3years full time professional experience or b an

underaraduate dearee in Conservation or a closely related field plus
3 years full time apprenticeship in the field

4 Cultural Anthropoloav a Graduate dearee in Anthropoloay with
specialization in Applied Cultural Anthropoloay plus 2years full time
professional experience or b an underqraduate dearee in
anthropoloay with specialization in applied cultural anthropoloay
plus 4 years full time professional experience

5 Curation a Graduate dearee in Museum Studies or a closely
related field plus 2 years full time professional experience or b an

underaraduate deoree in Museum Studies or a closeIv related field
plus 4 years full time professional experience

6 Enaineerina a State Government recoonized license to practice
Civil or Structural Enqineerina olus 2 years full time professional
experience or b a Masters of Civil Enaineerino dearee with course

work in Historic Preservation or a c10selv related field plus 2 years

full time professional experience or c a Bachelor s of Civil
Enqineerina deqree with one year of araduate study in Historic
Preservation or a c10selv related field plus 2 vears full time
professional experience

L CD Planning Development Review Land Development Code Text Amendments LDT05
Cases Chapter 2 9 Update Muni Code Changes Cover muni code change wpd Page 7 of 10
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7 Folklore a Graduate deoree in Folklore or a closely related field

plus 2 years full time professional exoerience or b an

underoraduate deoree in Folklore or a closely related field plus 4

years full time professional experience

8 HistoricArchitecture a State Government recoanized license to

practice Architecture plus 2years full time professional experience

or b a Masters of Architecture deoree with course work in Historic

Preservation or a closely related field plus 2 years full time

professional experience or c a Bachelor s of Architecture with one

year of araduate study in Historic Preservation or a closelY related

field plus 2 years full time professional experience

9 Historic Landscape Architecture a a State Government

recoanized license to practice Landscape Architecture plus 2 years

full time professional experience or b a Masters dearee in

Landscape Architecturewith course work in Historic Preservation or

a c10selv related field plus 2 yearsfull time professional experience

or c a four or five year Bachelor s deoree in Landscape

Architecture plus 3years full time professional experience

10 Historic Preservation Plannina a State Government recoanized

certification or license in Land Use Plannino plus 2 years full time

professional experience or b a qraduate dearee in Plan nino with

course work in Historic Preservation or a c10selv related field plus

2 years full time professional experience or c an underaraduate

dearee in Plannina with course work in Historic Preservation or a

closelv related field plus 4 years full time professional experience

11 Historic Preservation a Graduate dearee in Historic Preservation

or a closely related field plus 2 years full time professional
experience or b an underaraduate dearee in Historic Preservation

or a closelv related field blus 4 years full time professional

experience or

12 Historv a Graduate dearee in History or a closely related field

olus 2 years full time professional experience or b an

underqraduate dearee in History or a c10selv related field plus 4

years full time professional experience

b At least one member from each established Historic District These Historic

District representatives must be propeliv owners and residents of the

Historic District that they represent
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g At least one member that is a representative of Oreqon State University If

an Oreqon State University Historic District is eventuallv established this
member requirement will no lonqer be needed as an OSU representative
would alreadv exist throuoh b above and

d Additional members representinq the qeneral public as needed to fill the
Commission s nine positions

3 The Doard Commission shall be a quasi iudicial decision maker for matters that
include the followinq

a District Chanqe decisions reqardinq the application or removal of a Historic
Preservation Overlav in cases where a public hearinq is required bv Land
Development Code Chapter 2 2 Development District Chanqes

b HPAB Ievel Historic Preservation Permit decisions and

g Appeals of Director level Historic Preservation Permit decisions

4 The Commission shall advise and assist Council the Planning Commission and the

Community Development Director in altmatters pertaining to historic and cultural
resource preservation Such matters shall include

a Recommendations concerning applications fer alterations demolitions
additions modifications or changes of use for any structure listed on

Corvallis Register of Ilistoric Landmarks and Districts

gb Recommendations concerning amendments to sections of the Land

Development Code pertaining to historic preservation
ge Recommendations concerning the nominations of sites or structures for the

National Register of Historic Places

d Recommendations on additions or deletions to the Corvallis Register of
lligtoric Landmarks and Districts

e Cncouraging Recommendations concerninq additional inventories and or

surveys of Corvallis historic sites and structures
f Coordinating Coordination of public information or educational programs

pertaining to historic and cultural resources

g4 If a site or structure on the Corvallis Register of Historic Landmarks and Districts is
to be demolished insofar as practicable and as either public or private funds are

available the llistoric rreserv ation Ad v igorDoard Commission shall obtain a

pictorial record of the site and structure with such additional data as it may obtain
In addition insofar as practicable and to the extent that public or private funds are

avaHable the Iligtoric rreservation Ad vjsory Doard Commission shall obtain
artifacts from the structure or site which it deems worthy of preservation such as

carvings cast iron work or other materials it deems of artistic or historical
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significance Such pictorial records and artifacts shall be made available for display
in public buildings and buildings open to the public including but not limited to tel

buildings eS the Corvallis City Hall the Benton County Historical Museum the

Corvallis Arts Center and the Horner Museum

ID Upon expiration of a term orvacancy a public announcementofthe openinq
will be announced in a newspaper of qeneral circulation in the City The

notice shall contain the qualifications for appointment in subsection 2 and
a list of the qualifications of existinq commissioners After receivinq

applications Council may conduct interviews If more than one application

is submitted Council shall hold a ballot vote conducted by the City Recorder

Any person receivinq a maiority vote shall be appointed to the Historic
Preservation Commission If no person receives a maioritv vote the two

receivinq the most votes shall be voted upon aqain The one then receivinq
the maioritv vote shall be appointed to the Historic Preservation Commission

The Municipal Code changes identified above are for information only at this time Once
the Land Development Code provisions for Historic Preservation are agreed upon these

provisions can be refined further as needed

V Request

Following an initial approval of the proposed amendments to the Corvallis Historic
Preservatbn Provisions in LDT05 00001 should approval occur staff requests that the

Council adopt the above referenced changes or portions thereof to Section 1 16 250

Historic PreselVation Advisory Board of the Corvallis Municipal Code as appropriate
Staff will draft ordinances accomplishing both tasks which can then be adopted
consecutively

Review and Concur

1Jy
n S Nelson City Manager
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CITY OF CORVALLIS

COUNCIL ACTION MINUTES

May 1 2006

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION

Agenda Item Information Held for Dec ionsARecoDllDendations

OnIy FurtherReview

Consent Agenda
Pages 257 258

New Business

1 EPA Green Power Community Yes
Presentation

Pages 258 259

Unfinished Business
1 Full Gospel Assembly Church Uphold LDHB deny

Deliberations application to remove HPO
passed 7 0 2 abstain

Pages 259 260

Mayor s Reports
1 Proclamation ofPublic Service Proclaimed

Recognition Week May 1 7 2006

2 Proclamation ofAdopt a Homeless Proclaimed
Animal Day May 7 2006

3 Proclamation ofBuilding Safety Week Proclaimed

May 7 11 2006

4 Proclamation ofDrinking Water Week Proclaimed

May 7 14 2006

5 Proclamation of National Historic Proclaimed
Preservation Month May 2006

6 Proclamation of Older Americans Month Proclaimed

May 2006
7 Proclamation ofNational Mental Health Proclaimed

Month May 2006

Page 260

Council Reports
1 MPO and CWCOG Contract Update Yes

Griffiths
2 Corvallis Sister Cities WeekActivities Yes

Gandara
3 Ward 5 Battle ofBands Gandara Yes

4 Spring Garden Festival Tomlinson Yes

5 Corvallis Sustainability Project Hagen Yes

6 DisDoSine Electronic Waste Haeen Yes
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Information Held for Dec ionslRecommendations
Further ReviewOnly

7 Citizens Review Board Public Outreach Yes

Hagen Grosch
8 OSU Lake Shasta Alternative Hagen Yes

9 Day Without an Immigrant Boycott Yes

Grosch
10 CNHS andLCAH Merger Griffiths Yes

Pages 260 261

Staff Reports
1 Historic Preservation Presentation Yes

2 Council Request Follow up Report Yes

Apri127 2006

3 LDC Phase IAppeal Order Yes

Page 261

Items of HSC Meeting ofApril 18 2006
1 Majestic Theatre Annual Report Contract Accept AnnualReport

negotiations passed U

2 Municipal Code Revisions to Chapter Repeal Chapter 10 06
10 06 Downtown Tree Management passed U

Program
3 Municipal Code Chapter 8 11 Social Affirm Chapter 8 11

Gaming AnnualReview passed U

4 AlcoholNeighborhood Livability Approve Action Plan

Strategic Action Plan passed U

Pages 262 263

Items of ASC Meeting ofApril 20 2006
1 daVinci Days Loan Agreement Status Accept Annual Report

Annual Report passed U
2 Allied Waste Services Annual Report Yes

3 Fire Fees Legislation ORDINANCE 2006 10

passed U

4 Nuisance Fire Alarm Response Fees ORDINANCE 2006 11

passed U

Pages 263 264

Other Related Matters
1 Municipal Judge Pro Tempore Lacy RESOLUTION 2006 14

passed U

Page 265

Executive Session
1 Potential Land Acquisition Yes

2 LDC PhaseillAppeal Yes

3 Pending Litigation Alberti Yes

Paee 265
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Agenda Item Information Held for Dec ionsARecommendations

Only Further Review

V itors Propositions
1 Van Buren Bridge Alternatives Yes

Lampton Van Vliet Howell

Pages 265 267

Public Hearings
1 CDBGHOME Investment Partnerships Approve Action Plan

Program FY 2006 2007 Action Plan authorize Mayor Berg to

sign HUD application and

certification documents

Approve HOME Program
allocation as tentative
CHDO reservation to CNHS

2 City Charter Amendment City Council

May 15 2006

P apo f7 7f

Glossarv ofTerms

ASC Administrative Services Committee

CDBG Community Development Block Grant

CNDO Community Housing Development Organization
CNHS Corvallis Neighborhood Housing Association

CWCOG Cascades West Council of Governments

EPA EnvironmentalProtection Agency
FY Fiscal Year

HPO Historic Preservation Overlay
HSC Human Services Committee

HUD Housing andUrban Development
LCAH Linn County Affordable Housing
LDC Land Development Code
LDHB Land Development Hearings Board
LUBA Land Use Board ofAppeals
MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization
OSU Oregon State University
U Unanimous
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CITYOF CORVALLIS

COUNCIL ACTION MINUTES

May 1 2006

The regular meeting ofthe City Council ofthe City ofCorvallis Oregon was called to order at 12 01 pm
on May l 2006 in the Downtown Fire Station 400 NWHarrison Boulevard Corvallis Oregon with Mayor
Berg presiding

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1 ROLL CALL

PRESENT Mayor Berg Councilors Brauner Tomlinson Griffiths Zimbrick Daniels Grosch

Davis Gandara Hagen

II CONSENT AGENDA

Councilors Tomlinson and Zirnbrick respectively moved and seconded to adopt the Consent

Agenda as follows

A Reading ofMinutes

1 City Council Meeting AprilI7 2006

2 City Council Work Session April I7 2006

3 For Information and Filing Draft minutes may return if changes are made by the

Board or Commission

a Airport Commission April 4 2006

b CitizensAdvisory Commission on Civic Beautification andUrban Forestry
March 13 2006

c Housing and Community Development Commission March 8 and 9 and

April 5 2006
d Open Space Advisory Commission March 14 2006

e Parks and Recreation Advisory Board March 16 2006

B Announcement ofVacancy on Advisory Commissions Commission for Martin Luther

King Jr Collision Citizens Advisory Commission on Transit Warloe

C Announcement ofAppointment to Commission for Martin Luther King Jr Alexander

D ConfirmationofAppointments to Advisory Commissions Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory
Commission Upton Watershed Management Advisory Commission Strong

E Schedule a public hearing for June 5 2006 to consider a possible appeal of a Planning
Commission decision PLD05 00019 SUB05 00007 PCR05 00009 Seventh Street

Station

F Schedule public hearings for June 5 2006 to consider State Revenue Sharing Funds for

Fiscal Year 2006 2007 and a Fiscal Year 2006 2007 budget
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G Authorization to enter into and for the City Manager to sign an Intergovernmental
Agreement with Oregon State University for recreational programs services

H Authorization to enter into and for the City Manager to transfer real property

I Schedule an Executive Session following the regular noon meeting under ORS

192 660 2 e h status ofrealproperty transaction status ofpending litigation or litigation
likely to be filed

The motion passed unanirnouslv

III ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA None

X NEW BUSINESS

A Presentation by Environmental Protection Agency green power community

Teresa Bodwell of the Renewable Northwest Project introduced Matt Clouse

Environmental Protection Agency EPA Director and Green Power Partnership Co

developer Mr Clouse oversees EPAprogram operations andworks with utilities and green

power marketers to encourage large organizations to move toward green power

Mr Clouse congratulated the Mayor and Council for choosing to use more electricity from

clean renewable energy He recognized Corvallis as the first Northwest Green Power

community andthe third in thenation to join the partnership and meet the EPA procurement
bench marks More than ten percent oflocal businesses and residents are purchasing green

power which represents almost three percent ofannual electricity use Corvallis choice

to buy more renewable energy will be used as an example to inspire other communities

Although clean energy resources are capable ofsupplying a large amount ofthe country s

electrical supply Mr Clouse said less than two percent comes from non hydro renewable

energy sources The maj or component ofEPA s GreenPower Partnership is to increase the

amount ofelectricity supplied from renewable resources such as solar wind biomass and

landfill gas

Mr Clouse said it is unusual for the Green Power Partnership to work with an entire

community instead ofone ofthe 600 organizations currently enrolled The Partnership
purchases more than four billionkilowatt hours ofrenewable energy annually enough to

power approximately 300 000 homes

Mr Clouse presented two street signs to Mayor Berg recognizing Corvallis commitment

to green power

In response to Councilor Tomlinson s comments Mr Clouse said the EPA will provide
stickers to update the signs each year He saidthe dates confirm that Corvallis is continuing
to meet the requirements ofthe program Councilor Gandara suggested the sticker identify
that Corvallis has been meeting the requirements since 2006
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Councilor Griffiths said she was impressed with the diversity of local participants in the

Blue Sky program

In response to Councilor Tomlinson s inquiry Mr Clause said Moab Utah and Boulder

Colorado are the other two communities that have joined the Green Power Partnership and

met standards Ten cities are ready to begin participation in the partnership and many more

cities have indicated interest

Councilor Tomlinson said Corvallis has committed to purchasing Blue Sky blocks and

recognized Public Works Director Rogers Public Works Administration DivisionManager
Steckel and Customer Services Manager Krieg for taking a leadership role in the City s

purchasing ofrenewable energy

IV UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A Deliberations on anappeal ofaLand Development Hearings Board decision HPP06 0000I

Full Gospel Assembly Church

City ManagerNelson reported thatno additionaltestimony wassubmitted for consideration

Councilors Brauner and Gandara both reported that they were absent during the public
hearing related to this matter and had not listened to the recorded meeting therefore they
will abstain from voting

Declaration ofEx Parte Contacts since Avril 7 Public Hearinf None

Deliberations

Councilors Griffiths and Grosch respectively moved and seconded to uphold the Land

Development Hearings Board decision to deny the Historic Preservation Permit application
HPP06 000I subject to review and approval offormal fmdings and a fmal order thereby
denying the request to remove the Historic Preservation Overlay applied to the Full Gospel
Assembly Church property and denying the request to de list the property from the

Corvallis Register ofHistoric Landmarks and Districts

Councilor Griffiths said it was well documented that the property owner did not take any
action to request removal ofthe historic preservation designation Although she empathizes
with the property owner it washis responsibility to followup with staff about what he did

or did not want for his property

Councilor Griffiths said during the Aprill7 public hearing the property owner stated that

hewas not planning to do anything to the building thatwould not be allowedby the historic

preservation designation The property owner s argument about the decrease in property
value was not substantiated

Councilor Daniels said she will support the motion based on the fact that the permit
application does not comply with the criteria for removing a historic designation noted in

Land Development Code 2 9 60 04 and for the reasons stated by Councilor Griffiths
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The motion passed seven to zero with Councilors Brauner and Gandara abstaining

V MAYOR COUNCIL AND STAFF REPORTS

A Mayor s Reports

1 Proclamation ofPublic Service Recognition Week May 1 7 2006

2 Proclamation ofAdopt aHomeless Animal Day May 7 2006

3 Proclamation ofBuilding Safety Week May 7 11 2006

4 Proclamation ofDrinking Water Week May 7 I4 2006

5 Proclamation ofNational Historic Preservation Month May 2006

6 Proclamation ofOlder Americans Month May 2006

7 Proclamation ofNational Mental Health Month May 2006

Mayor Berg briefly discussed each proclamation

B Council Reports

Councilor Griffiths referred to the memorandum she drafted to the Metropolitan Planning
Organization MPO related to the MPO budget and contract She reported that the MPO

Board agreed to a three year service contract with the Cascades West Council of

Governments CWCOG that includes additional language to allow eitherparty to revise the

conditions of the contract The MPO has requested a three year projected budget from

CWCOG for fall budget discussions The concern is increasing administration costs

Councilor Gandara reported that this week represents Corvallis Sister Cities Week
Activities include Uzhgorod Sister Cities Organization speakers onMay 2 Gondar culture

history and silent auction presentation on May 4 a flower basket sale on May 7 Touch

Project speaker on May 2I and an annual members meeting on June 20 in the Library

Councilor Gandara announced thatthe sixth annual Ward 5 Battle ofthe Bands will be held

at The Union formerly AJs May 11 13 This year s theme is Czech My Republic and

bands are encouraged to sing about freedom and America

Councilor Tomlinson reported thatthe Madison Avenue Task Force is holding their annual

SpringGarden Festival at ArtCentric on May 7

Councilor Hagen met with Oregon State University OSU graduate student David Lane

regarding his project detailing Corvallis sustainability She alsomet with an OSU business

student aboutmarketing a business to dispose electronic waste A presentation willbe made

by the student to Council at a future meeting
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Councilor Hagen reported thatshe attended the fIrstpublic outreach meeting about forming
a Citizens Review Board Councilor Grosch added that 25 to 30 people attended the fIrst

meeting

In response to Mayor Berg s inquiry Councilor Hagen confmned that OSU has formed a

Lake Shasta alternative task force to develop local activities

Councilor Grosch recognized the Day Without an Immigrant boycott to honor service

workers He said there is an ongoing national debate regarding House Bill 4437 an anti

immigrant bill The bill victimizes immigrants currently working and paying taxes in the

United States and makes no distinction between who is hiring and who is working
Councilor Grosch said prior to last week there had only been two businesses in the United

States charged with employing illegal immigrants within the last five years Mayor Berg
noted that demonstrations wereplanned for Salem and Portland

Councilor Griffiths reported that Corvallis Neighborhood Housing Services and Linn

County Affordable Housing have decided to pursue a merger of the two non profit
organizations She said they are committed to continue providing current services and

ensuring that local resourcesstay local A memorandum ofunderstanding has been signed
and a steering committee is working out the specifics ofthe merger

C StaffReports

Mr Nelsonreferred to a memorandum from Associate Planner Richardson Attachment A

related to ahistoric preservation expertpresentation onMay 18 A special meeting with the

presenter has been scheduled in the DowntownFire Stationfrom 4 00 to 5 30pm for elected

officials and staff from Corvallis Benton COlmty and Albany The public presentation is

scheduled for 7 00 pm at the First United Methodist Church

1 Council Request Follow up Report April 27 2006

Mr Nelson briefly reviewed the Report

2 Stipulated Order for Phase IAppeal ofthe Land Development Code Update

Mr Nelson said the order was submitted by the City to the Land Use Board of

Appeals LUBA When a response is received from LUBA staff willreturn with

an implementation strategy for Council consideration

VIII IX STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS ORDINANCES RESOLUTIONS AND

MOTIONS

A Human Services Committee April 18 2006

1 Majestic Theatre Annual Report

Councilors Daniels andTomlinson respectively moved andseconded to acceptthe

Majestic Theatre Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2004 2005
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The motion passed unanimouslv

Councilor Daniels reported that Majestic Theatre Management Inc MTM is in

contract negotiations with the Parks and Recreation Department Currently the

City allocates monies to MTMfrom interest earnedon an endowment fund MTM

requests the contract language be amended to provide an annual allocation of

48 000 for stable funding in lightofdecreasing interest rates Councilor Daniels

said contract amendments are usually referred to the Administrative Services

Committee ASC however since the Human Services Committee HSC reviews

the annual report and has already discussed this issue HSC requests keeping the

contract discussions at HSC prior to Council consideration

Councilor Griffiths expressed concerns about the requested funds She said more

information is needed aboutMTM s investmentstrategies ofthefunds they control

The implied six percent equaling 48 000 would be on afund of 800 000 about

double the amount ofthe endowment Councilor Griffiths said she is not in favor

ofpursuing this late budget request

Mr Nelson clarified thatcontract negotiations are betweenMTM and theParks and

Recreation Department Aspecific request willbe brought back to Council through
the committee level This request is to confrrm that the process stay with HSC

As Chairofthe ASC CouncilorBrauner agreed that the issue remain with the HSC

and Council concurred

2 Municipal Code Revisions to Chapter IO 06 Downtown Tree Management
Program

Councilor Daniels reported that this Chapter is no longer needed due to recent

language additions and changes adopted in Chapter 2 19 Tree and Park Strip
Planting

City Attorney Fewel read an ordinance repealing Municipal Code Chapter 10 06

Downtown Tree Management Program

ORDINANCE 2006 09 passed unanimouslv

Municipal Code Chapter 8 ll Social Gaming Annual ReviewJ

CouncilorDaniels reported thatthere have not been any significant problems related

to this Chapter At staff s request the Committee reviewed interpretation of the

language related to advertising and awarding prizes The Committee agreed with

staff interpretation

Councilors Daniels and Hagen respectively moved and seconded to affrrm

Municipal Code Chapter 8 II Social Gaming
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Councilor Gandara said approximately six months ago a business owner inquired
about making minor revisions to the Social Gaming Chapter Councilor Gandara

requested Council delay action on affirmation ofthis Chapter untilhe could contact

the business owner

Councilor Tomlinson suggested that Council move forward with the affirmation

which would not preclude the business owner from approaching the HSC at any
time to request amendments

The motion passed unanimouslv

4 AlcoholNeighborhood Livability Strategic Action Plan

Councilor Daniels commended Police ChiefBoldizsar Community Policing Forum

Chair Wershow and the task force for addressing alcohol abuse and negative
interactions between students neighborhoods and merchants with apositive well

developed plan She reviewed the four objectives of the five year plan

Councilors Daniels and Tomlinson respectively moved and seconded to approve
the AlcoholNeighborhood Livability Strategic Action Plan

The motion passed unanimouslv

B Urban Services Committee None

C Administrative Services Committee April 20 2006

1 daVinci Days Loan Agreement Status Annual Report

CouncilorBrauner reported thatthe City approved a 20 000 loan for daVinci Days
lastyear with payments to be made from excess revenues Because no profits were

realized last year no payments were made to the City daVinci Days is

implementing changes and hopes to be more successful with the next festival They
have included a 1 000 payment in their budget as a sign of good faith

Councilor Brauner added that the new director and board are making positive
efforts in turning the festival into a self sustaining event

Councilors Brauner and Zimbrick respectively moved and seconded to accept the

2005 daVinci Days Annual Report

Councilor Tomlinson said as the daVinci Days liaison he has observed the new

board making great strides in fmancial reporting and standings He said he is

confident they will make this festival successful

The motion passed unanimouslv
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2 Allied Waste Services Annual Report

Councilor Brauner reported that Allied Waste ofCorvallis AWe is exploring the

use oflarge commingle recycling bins similar to the yard waste bins that would

be emptied every two weeks Besides increasing the amount ofcollected recycling
materials the bins will help control loose materials from blowing around the

neighborhood This issue waspresented for information only no council action is

needed

Fire Fees LegislationJ

Councilor Brauner explained that this proposal provides the Fire Department with

a way to recoverresponse costs for special rescue services from those who do not

pay taxes in Corvallis The issue was discussed during the budget process andthe

language has beendrafted from successful plans in other cities Councilor Brauner

estimated the revenue to be 25 000 to 45 000 millually

Mr F ewel read anordinance related to the recoveryofservice costs provided to non

City ofCorvallis Corvallis Rural Fire Protection District residents creating a new

Municipal Code Chapter 7 l 0 Non Resident Service Cost Recovery and stating
an effective date

ORDINANCE 2006 l0 passed unanimouslv

4 Nuisance Fire Alarm Response Fees

Councilor Brauner reported that the Fire Department receives a high number of

false fIre alarms that occur due to mechanical failure malfunction improper
installation andor lack of proper maintenance Responding to these nuisance

alarms takes staff away from real emergencies and costs the City an estimated

I200 per call The proposal institutes escalating fees for three or more

occurrences in a consecutive 12 monthperiod

Mr Fewel read an ordinance related to fees for multiple nuisance fIre alarms

creating a new Municipal Code Chapter 7 11 Fees for Multiple Nuisance Fire

Alarm Responses and stating an effective date

ORDINANCE 2006 1 Ipassed unanimouslv

D Other Related Matters

1 A resolution appointing PatriciaLacy as Municipal Judge Pro Tempore for May 2I

2006 for the purpose ofperforming a wedding ceremony

Mr Fewel read a resolution appointing Patricia Lacy as Municipal Judge Pro

Tempore for May 2I 2006 for the purpose ofperforming a wedding ceremony
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Councilors Tomlinson and Griffiths respectively moved and seconded the

resolution

RESOLUTION 2006 14 passed unanimously

The Council enteredExecutive Session at 1 12pm

Parks and Recreation Director Conway briefed Council about a potential land acquisition

Deputy City Attorney Brewer briefed the COlmcil about the Land Development Code Phase illappeal He

expects adecision from the Land Use Board ofAppeals in September

Mr Brewer and Finance Director Brewer briefed the Council regarding the status ofpending litigation
involving a land dispute between the City and John Alberti

Mayor Berg recessed the Council at I 36 pm and reconvened the Council at 7 00 pm in the Downtown Fire

Station 400 NW Harrison Boulevard Corvallis Oregon

1 ROLL CALL

PRESENT Mayor Berg Councilors Brauner 7 04pm Tomlinson Zimbrick Daniels Grosch

Davis Gandara

ABSENT Councilors Griffiths and Hagen excused

VI VISITORS PROPOSITIONS

Pat Lampton 2323 SW 45th Street testified about maintaining pedestrian access on the historic Van

Buren Bridge Mr Lampton said although he is a member ofthe Downtown Corvallis Association

and the Van Buren Bridge stakeholders group he is not representing either group Mr Lampton
referred to a memorandum and attachments from himself Tony Van Vliet and Tony Howell

Attachment B

Mr Lampton said during the last bridge public hearing various alternatives were presented
including removing the approaches and leaving the steel trusses Mr Lampton compared this plan
to a similar project that occurred in Grants Pass and referred to the pictures included in the

attachment Mr Lampton encouraged the Council to take necessary steps to ensure continued use

ofthe existing historic Van Buren Bridge for pedestrian travel

Tonv Van Vliet I530 NW 13th Street testified that the Riverfront Commission always considered

using theVan BurenBridge as a connectionfrom theRiverfront to the east side ofthe riverwith the

eventual development ofgreenway paths The Oregon Department ofTransportation ODOT will

be rehabilitating the historic bridge and bringing it up to its current level of service until the new

bridge is built Itwill remain safe and functional for bike and pedestrian uses indefmitely with a

reasonable investment inannual maintenance and25 year paint projects eligible for federal funding
ODOT is ready to make a decision about the future ofthis historic bridge Mr VanVliet encouraged
Council to adopt a resolution in support of the re use ofthe bridge and approaches as a pedestrian
facility under the ownership and maintenance ofODOT
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Tonv Howell 2030 SE DeBord Street said from a transportation planning point ofview a new

bridge would not be pleasant or encouraging for pedestrian traffic The plans for the east side ofthe

river move slowly but there is still a vision to develop a pedestrian connection across the river

There is an opportunity that fits the federal mandate for ODOT funding that works with continuing
use ofthe Van Buren Bridge as a pedestrian facility It is in the community s interest to have that

crossing as an enhancement to the Riverfront Mr Howell saidthe key to the proposal is to include

the bridge and approaches in the environmental analysis phase

In response to Councilor Daniels inquiry about the state transportation planning rule requirement
that all jurisdictions working with state funds provide alternative modes of transportation Mr

Howell said his testimony wasnot specific to that requirement He saidthe Harrison Bridgehas two

lanes no bicycle lane and typical sidewalks It is very loud and frightening to use as a pedestrian
bridge The Van Buren Bridge is less frightening because it is one lane and the vehicles move at a

slower rate Ifthe new bridge is wider with a bicycle lane separating the direction oftraffic or a

multi modal bridge separated by a concrete divider it will not be attractive for pedestrian traffic

Mr VanVliet said any federal highway bridge project is required to have a pedestrian and bicycle
path ODOT originally felt that putting a pedestrian and bicycle path on the new bridge would be

sufficient and they could remove the use of the Van Buren Bridge Most bridge bicycle and

pedestrian paths are builtfor fast paced workcommuters whereas the VanBuren Bridge has always
beenviewed as a leisurely way to cross the river for those who want to continue their walk along the

river front

In response to Councilor Daniels inquiry Mr Lampton said the Council needs to move forward on

this issue soon

Mayor Berg noted the transparency ofthe project She said is there is not enough funding to easily
do what everyone wants

In response to Mayor Berg s inquiry about the thirdbullet on the memorandum Mr Van Vliet said

the paragraph refers to his understanding that ODOT will bring the VanBuren Bridge up to an

almostnew standard That maintenance will lastmany years and future maintenance would be low

ifthe bridge is to be maintained as a pedestrian crossing The ODOT Bridge Preservation Unit has

indicated that ODOT will be able to provide funding for future maintenance

Mr Lampton opined that the real choice is the third bullet ofthe memorandum or a bridge view

similar to the Grants Pass bridge ODOT wants to limit possible liability in the long term however

having a project similar to the Grants Pass bridge would not be a good entrance to Corvallis

In response to Councilor Tomlinson s inquiry about referring this issue to committee

Councilor Grosch said the issue would normally be reviewed by the Urban Services Committee

Mr Nelson reported that he and Public Works Director Rogers met with the ODOT regional and

district engineers to discuss these concerns and others Messrs Nelson andRogers plan to meet with

Mayor Berg and Councilor Brauner as members ofthe stakeholder and management groups and

with the ODOT engineers again He suggested providing an update to Council during the second

meeting in May
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Councilor Grosch concurred as long as Council has an opportunity to make arecommendation prior
to the next stakeholders meeting

Councilor Gandara said his concern is that Council make a statement by mid June In regards to the

Grants Pass bridge he opined that the letter ofhistoric preservation wasmet but it is a shadow of

what historic means

Mr VanVliet said he will be meeting with ODOT and Senator Morse next week He will discuss

the outcome ofthat meeting with Mr Nelson

VII PUBLIC HEARINGS

A A public hearing to consider the Community Development Block GrantHOME Investment

Partnerships Program Fiscal Year 2006 2007 Action Plan

Mayor Berg reviewed the order ofproceedings and opened the public hearing

StaffReDort

Housing Division Manager Weiss said Council conducted the fIrst oftwo required public
hearings in January and a request for proposals RFP process was conducted to seek

projects providing capital services or other funding The Housing Division staff and the

Housing and Community Development Commission HCDC reviewed and evaluated the

proposals for consistency with theConsolidated Plan Goals and compliance with the federal

regulations applicable to the CDBG and HOME programs Mr Weiss said of the 15

presentations heard 11 were from human service agencies and all II are recommended for

funding The recommendation also includes funding for the Corvallis Neighborhood
Housing Services CNHS microenterprise program CNHS operations as a Community
Housing Development Organization CHDO for the City s HOME program and initial

funding for a joint development project with CNHS and the Center Against Rape and

Domestic Violence CARDV that will provide transitional housing for victims ofdomestic

violence Mr Weiss explained that the CNHS CARDV project is not included in the

financial action plan because the monies needed were identified in a prior action plan for

housing activities

Mr Weiss referred to the staff report that includes a budget summary overviewofactivities

scheduled for Fiscal Year 2006 2007 detailed explanations ofthe activities and a draft

Action Plan The Action Plan details each activity and funding levels Minutes from the

HCDC meetings held to consider the proposals are included in the Action Plan

Mr Weiss said the purpose ofthe public hearing is for Council to consider the staff report
and Action Plan review activities for the next fiscal year approve the submission to the

United States Department ofHousing and Urban Development RUD and to consider

approval ofa Fiscal Year 2004 2005 HOME program allocation in the amountof I05 555

for the initial fundingofthe proposed transitional housing project under a CHDO project
set aside agreement

Questions ofStaff None
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Public Testimonv

Jim Moorefield CNHS Director referred to a copy of the City s Vision 2010 Statement

prepared in 1989 which estimates the population ofCorvallis in 20IO to be 62 500 and

includes riverfront drawings with terraces promenade and a river boat Mr Moorefield

quoted a portion ofthe Statement Nonprofit housing development corporation and rental

rehabilitation loans ensure a decent supply ofaffordable housing for low income families

He said many things came to fruition from that vision including the creation ofCNHS in

1991

Mr Moorefield stated appreciation for the financial assistance the City has provided to

CNHS in thepast for the inclusion offunding in theFiscal Year 2006 2007 Action Plan for

the microenterprise program its fmancialliteracy program and the operations ofCNHS as

a CHDO for the City s HOME Program

Nancv O Mara CARDV Executive Director said the joint CNHS CARDV project for

transitional housing for survivors ofdomestic violence will make a profound difference to

those wanting to sustain a life away from violence Safe affordable transitional housing
along with education skill building and support are keys to creating a safer community

Barbara Ross CNHS Board Member said the CNHS CARDV joint project fills a gap in

services by providing 8 to IO units to house survivors after their initial time in the shelter

While in the transitional housing they will receive support and guidance on issues such as

findingj obs and daycare working through financial difficulties mending relationships with

families and friends and begirming anew healthy lifestyle Ms Ross referred to the Action

Plan attachments that include January testimony about this project

Ms Ross reported that the public meetings about the Community Land Trust concept were

attended by IOI individuals She identified members ofthe policy development group
established to explore the concept further

In response to Mayor Berg s inquiry Mr Moorefield clarified that the CNHS CARDV

project goal is to provide 8 to 10 units Ms O Mara opined thatthe units would always be

at capacity The support services connected to the transitional housing will help the

survivors learn to sustain an independent life when in most cases they have not been the

wage earner She saidwhathas prevented some women from taking the fIrst step away from

a violent relationship is wondering what will happen to them in three or six months

Councilor Gandara inquired aboutthe microenterprise program He saidhe has participated
in theprogram and is excited about its progress Mr Moorefield saidthe program is offered

in two counties andbeing able to serve Corvalliseffectively is dependent on raising money
to serve both counties He reported that the Benton County Commissioners sponsored an

application to the State for CDBG funding thatwillprovide approximately 60 percent ofthe

micro enterprise program funding Mr Moorefield was recently notified thatthe program
was successful in obtaining the funds Councilor Gandara noted that the program is well
attended by individuals who have good ideas and positive energy
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In response to Mayor Berg s inquiry Mr Moorefield confmned that CNHS has been

discussing a merger with Lirm County Affordable Housing He will update Council as

details develop

Darlene Kav Osburn Circle ofHope Drop in Center thanked the Ecumenical Advisory
Group who supports Circle of Hope along with others connected to people who are

homeless low income mentally ill and disabled Circle ofHope offers amail stop phone
messaging system and long distance calling for employment opportunities and family
contact They provide transportation to detoxification facilities hospitals pharmacies
social security offices County mental health and court They provide for pregnancy testing
hotel accommodations andhelp families attempt to removetheir children from foster care

She said the Circle ofHope provides a place for the homeless to socialize without the need

for association with drugs or alcohol Ms Osburn reported that Circle ofHope is working
to help establish a homeless shelter for men

In response to Mayor Berg s inquiry Ms Osburn said most ofthe individuals seen at the

Circle ofHope are not allowed to receive overnight shelter at Community Outreach due to

their drug and alcohol policies

Pauline McGinty said her main function as a volunteer at the Circle ofHope is to help
process the monthly reports and write grants She commended the Housing Division staff

for their help in report processing Ms McGinty said the Circle ofHope served more than

6 000 meals to 2 000 people last quarter

Councilor Daniels noted that Ms Osburn also spent an entire day working with the

corrections mental health transition work group on a long range strategic planning effort

A large percentage ofthe Circle ofHope clientele come into contact with corrections and

also suffer from mental illness

JudvHecht thankedCouncil for CDBG funding support for the South CorvallisFood Bank

Currently the food bank is serving 200 households per month Volunteers continue to see

the numbers of individuals requesting help increase Having the food bank in South

Corvallis allows clients to walk and or ride bicycles to the bank which would be difficult

ifit was located away from South Corvallis The food bank uses CDBG funds to rent the

current location while they are continuing to work on obtaining a permanent location

Mayor Berg closed the public hearing

Deliberations and Final Decisions

In response to Councilor Tomlinson s inquiry Mr Weiss said administrative costs for

CDBG funds are capped at 20 percent The HOME Program is capped at IO percent
CDBG and non federal Revolving Loan Fund monies are used to subsidize the HOME

Program administrative costs As federal funding allocations have decreased in recentyears
there has been a trend for Administrative Services Risk Management and Management
Information Services charges to increase This combination of trends is reflected in the

higher percentage ofoverall administrative costs within the Revolving Loan Fund
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Mr Weiss said theConsolidatedPlan Housing Goals listed on page three ofthe Action Plan

are aggressive and it is doubtful the City will obtain the first goal to create 250 new owner

or renter housing opportunities by Fiscal Year 2007 2008 The goals were based on

assumptions ofsmaller unit costs andthe ability to provide more fIrst time homebuyer loans

than the City is currently seeing Other CDBG and HOME program managers around the

state have reported that they are also struggling with this type ofgoal especially as it relates

to the first time home buyer loans and increasing housing costs

Councilor Tomlinson said a Community Land Trust would provide housing affordability
over the long term and not subsidize mortgage payments for unaffordable houses whenthe

subsidies are decreasing as a percentage and the home price is rising dramatically
Mr Weiss saidtheLand Trust concept would beeligible in the plan as a housing acquisition
activity

Councilor Daniels said as the Council liaison to HCDC she attended the meetings related

to the CDBG and HOME Programs but did not participate in decision making or voting

Councilor Davis said he is on the CNHS Board ofDirectors however he believes he can

make a fair and impartial decision

Councilors Tomlinson and Daniels respectively moved and seconded to approve the

Housing and Community Development Commission s proposed Fiscal Year 2006 2007

CDBGHOME Program Action Plan authorize theMayor to sign the HUD application and

certification documents to be included in the Plan and direct staff to submit the Plan to

HUD for review and approval

The motion passed unanimouslv

Cotmcilors Tomlinson and Zimbrick respectively moved and seconded to approve the

Fiscal Year2004 2005 HOME Program allocation ofat least I05 555 as a tentative CHDO

project reservation to Corvallis Neighborhood Housing Services to support its creation of

transitional housing units for victims ofdomestic violence and their families The project
will return again to theHCDC and Council for further consideration and approval ofafmal

funding amount as it becomes more clearly defmed in the future

The motion passed unanimously

B A public hearing to consider a City Charter Amendment

Councilor Brauner explained that Council set a goal to review the City Charter for diversity
issues and consistency with State law During the fallof2005 the Administrative Services

Committee ASe developed a process to bring tlle goal forward by soliciting public
comment through three focus group meetings The meetings were well attended and

valuable comments were received On March 13 the ASC hosted a public forum for

additional comments and on March 23 the ASC reviewed all testimony and gave staff

direction on drafting changes which was reviewed by the ASC on April 6
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Councilor Brauner said during the review of the testimony the ASC attempted to sort

through what is appropriate for Charter changes and what might be placed in policy and

ordinances to carryout the Charter Although all ofthe testimony received was taken under

advisement it was not all brought forward into the recommended changes

Councilor Brauner added that Council will take under advisement any testimony heard

during this public hearing butwill nottake any action today On May 15 Council will give
staff direction related to Charter changes and on June 8 ASC will review draft ballot title

language which is scheduled to be approved by the Council on June 19 This time line

allows for filing deadlines to place the proposed changes on the November election ballot

Mayor Berg reviewed the order ofproceedings and opened the public hearing

Public Testimonv

Clinton Downs testified as the Co Chair of the Basic Rights Action Team Corvallis

BRATC Mr Downs said BRATC is committed to enhancing Corvallis in making sure

lesbian gay bisexual and trans people feel welcome comfortable and supported in this

community BRATC is also committed to its allies people who have supported BRATC in

the past and who will support them in the future who may also be under represented or

disenfranchised Mr Downs added that several people will be testifying about their

experiences and specific proposed language Attachment C

Keisha Merchant Chairperson Oregon National Organization for Women NOW Task

Force for the Elimination ofRacism read her prepared statement Attachment D

Prudence Miles I002 NW Polk said she was on the Council when itpassed the civil rights
ordinance in 1992 and was later employed by the City to implement the policy and

investigate discrimination complaints

As an employee of Oregon State University OSU Ms Miles recently helped add gender
identity to listed protections at OSu After that experience she decided to pursue having
the City include gender identity to its list ofprotected people She originally thought this

process would be simple housekeeping until she discussed the issue with members of

BRATC and Alex Johnson She believes it is more appropriate to look at the City s

founding document the City Charter

Ms Miles said she is in support ofmore comprehensive language than what was proposed
by the ASC She appreciates what has been recommended but hopes the City will think

about the responsibility to rid barriers ofparticipation in the community

In response to Mayor Berg s inquiry Ms Miles said the City has anAffIrmative Action Plan

for hiring but the BRATC s proposal for Chapter 5 is specific to appointments to Boards

and Commissions She said it is critical that the City commits to diverse appointments
including geographic andethnic diversity The proposed language will make the Boards and

Commissions look a little more like the community
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Brenda McCune said she is not protected as a transgender person under the language that

exists in many work places Language related to gender identity and expression is very

important to people like her their families and colleagues Gender expression and sexual

orientation are different Ms McCune said she currently works at OSU and has found

Corvallis and the OSU community to be very welcoming and open She has been

discriminated in afew instances butnot often and notalways overtly Including BRATC s

proposed language would make her feel more secure in this community

Ms McCune said decisions are often made by committees without malice or prejudice that

sometimes affect people from traditionallymarginalized groups Those decisions might not

be made quite the same way ifthose groups were represented on the committee making the

decision Consequently having a broader representation in the decision making process
would provide more security for groups who have been traditionally marginalized
Including the language would be a step forward in the progress ofan inclusivesociety that

is transparent and available to all citizens

Mayor Berg said the opportunity to participate inCorvallis is great and anything anyone can

do to encourage participation is appreciated She added that it is difficult to fill more than

200 Boards and Commissions appointments

Mr Downs opined that somewhere between the initial diversity discussions ofprotection
access and representation and the fmal recommendation to Council language proposals
were missed That is what prompted BRATC to submit the proposed language

Mr Downs said ordinances to address representation development and support for

volunteers not familiar with meeting process is welcome however the Charter language
needs to drive the valuestatement thatdiversity matters including representation and access

to Boards and Commissions

Mr Downs reviewed the four sections recommended by BRATC

Section 3a Responsibility ofCity govemmentto support diversity Adds action

to A Community That Honors Diversity
Section 3b Power for the protection of citizens Same as the ASC

recommendations

Chapter 5 Section 21 Mayor Insert second sentence toensure thatfuture Mayors
understand their responsibility for diverse appointments
Chapter 9 Public Improvements and Environmental Justice Insert new section

to ensure protection for Corvallis values and be attentive to communities in

development and land use

Mr Downs defmed Environmental Justice Identify and address disproportionately high
and adverse human health or environmental effects ofprograms policies and activities of

minority and low income populations

Mr Downs said there is a local team ofindividuals working to meet with people across the

City to define why it is important to amend the City Charter The group supports the City s

willingness to take this amendment to the voters and is committed to what has been

proposed during this hearing
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Inresponse to CouncilorGandara s inquiries Mr Downs clarified thatthe proposed Section

3a language is in addition to the ASC recommendation that proposed Section 3b includes

the addition bfthe word representation and Chapter 9 language would be a new section

Discussion ensued on the formatting ofSection 3 between current Charter language ASC

recommended language and BRATC s proposed language Mr Downs confIrmed that

BRATC is proposing three sub sections for Section 3 general power language current

responsibility BRATC proposal 3 a and protection BRATC proposal3b

Councilor Tomlinson inquired whether the language proposed by BRATC in Chapter 5
Section 21 limits the appointments by demographics Ifthe appointments werepatterned
after Corvallis demographics 93 percent ofthe Boards and Commissions would be Anglo
Ms McCune said the intent was not a proportional representation but arepresentation of

the points along the spectrum ofdiversity within the community Councilor Grosch added

that the statement is a philosophy that says Corvallis will have all groups within the City
represented Councilor Tomlinson opined that without the language being specific to the

stated interpretation someone in the future could interpret it to mean demographics

Mayor Berg said despite her best efforts she has never been able to appoint enough
individuals from marginalized groups to reduce the 90 percent Anglo representation

Mayor Berg recessed the meeting from 8 59 to 9 IO pm

In reference to the proposed language in Chapter 5 Section 2I Mr Downs said it is the

intent that diverse people be represented and BRATC does not believe the language is

limiting

Councilor Tomlinson said the City operates under the laws of the State and Federal

governments He inquired what protect from incursion means as stated in the BRATC

proposal for Chapter 9 Mr Downs responded thatthe intent is for Corvallis to stand up for

its values such as diversity land use and environmentaljustice Councilor Tomlinson said

Council refers to that as protecting from local pre emption

Mayor Berg requested an example ofenvironmental injustice inCorvallis Mr Downs said

no one wants environmental injustice to happen in Corvallis He said the creation of

Interstate 5 through Northeast Portland increased asthma rates in poverty stricken areas

The issue wasnot taken into consideration during the decision of interstate placement

Councilor Grosch said one ofthe issues Council has looked at is increasing density A

negative consequence to increasing density is the impact on land value Increasing density
increases land value which decreases the ability to create affordable housing

Councilor Daniels said a large number ofpeople voted against the County s effortto locate

ajail in South Corvallis because they thought it was discriminatory

CouncilorZimbrick saidthere were three public forums a public hearing and several ASC

discussions about proposed City Charter language He is familiar with some ofBRATC s

proposed language in Sections 3a 3b and Chapter 5 Section 21 He does not recall ever
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hearing about the proposed language for Chapter 9 Mr Downs saidthe issue wasbrought
up during discussions about land use decisions or other planning decisions that affect

marginalized communities He said this is an issue of representation and protection of

communities that lack having a voice The actual language may be new however it was

based on elements from other proposals

Councilor Brauner said inclusive language means listing everything or everyone the

language pertains to otherwise it could be interpreted not to include certain things or

people BRATC s proposed language for Chapter 9 only refers to one way of

discrimination which makes it special Councilor Brauner inquired whether the language
needed to include every type of discrimination Ms McCune said many forms of

discrimination are one on one and personal Environmental injustice affects communities

that have an identity oftheir own Ms McCune opined that it is important enough to single
it out in the language She said AffIrmative Action language does not address a

disenfranchised community

Councilor Brauner said the debate is in determining what should be Charter changes and

what should be emphasized and implemented through ordinances Although he does not

disagree with the issue he is questioning why this specific form ofdiscrimination rises to

thelevel ofCharter amendments A Charter lasts for a longtime is not easily amended and

needs to be a strong statement ofensuring protection treatment and representation Issues

that can cause problems and change through time may be better dealt with through
ordinances

Mr Downs said these discussions help everyone understand how public policy affects the

operations of the City Environmental justice is an important issue of our time The

discussions need to continue after the amendments are approved Councilor Brauner

inquired why some of these discussions could not occur during ordinance and policy
debates

Councilor Gandara stated that traditionally this language is about individuals not being
discriminated BRATC s proposal incorporates groups ofpeople andpolicy decisions that

impact not only individuals but groups ofpeople withinthe community He opined that the

Charter would have more power if BRATC s Section 3b read equal protection
treatment and representation for individuals and groups ofpeople

Tina Empol National Association for the Advancement of Colored People NAACP
Political Chair said she supports the five language proposals submitted by BRATC and

believes the proposals are appropriate for the Charter She cited proposed language
important to communities ofcolor

assess barriers that limit opportunities
exercise government power to ensure equal protection and

assure appointments that reflect Corvallis diversity

In reference to Chapter 5 Section 2I Ms Empo 1 said the language is specific to limit the

Mayor from appointing all white wealthy men or all women ofa certain political party
By placing the proposed language in the Charter it states that the Mayor respects the

diversity in Corvallis and lives up to the principles ofa community that honors diversity
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Ms Empol said during a public meeting she spoke about Corvallis having annexation

language within the Charter When the State attempted to pre empt annexation Corvallis

reported to the State leaders that annexation is a part of the Corvallis Charter because it is

a principle important to the identity and livability ofthe people ofCorvallis Ms Empol
opined that the proposed language for Chapter 9 is of the same importance

Steven Leider OSU Pride Center said he has felt welcome and included in the Corvallis

community since arriving eight months ago He said although he has never been
uncomfortable in front ofthe Council it might be considerably different for a person of
color filing a complaint Very rarely is there an opportunity to revisit and examine the City
Charter and there are a limited number ofopportunities to get it right from one generation
to the next Demographics continually change andCorvallis is on the cutting edge ofbeing
inclusive The City s motto is an aspiration and it is imperative that Council seriously
consider BRATC s language proposals

Alex Johnson 2705 SW Pickford said on behalf of Terryl Ross the OSU Office of

Community and Diversity is willing to work with the ASC to help fmalize Charter changes

In response to Councilor Gandara s inquiry Mr Johnson clarified that the intent is to help
draft language educate citizens and help implement the language Councilor Gandara

opined that the real work will be interpretation ofpolicy

Councilor Daniels said if the Charter amendments do not pass she hopes some ofthese

issues can be worked on through ordinances

Mayor Berg thanked Mr Johnson for his efforts in organizing and facilitating the Charter

public outreach meetings and closed the public hearing

The Council briefly discussed process for CityCharter deliberations scheduled for May 15
Councilor Brauner suggested that the Council move on the proposal recommended by the

ASC and then consider motions to amend based on subsequent testimony The Council
concurred

Councilor Daniels commended the ASC for working through a very involved issue with

dignity and openness

XI ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 9 49 pm
APPROVED

ATTEST MAYOR

CITY RECORDER
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Memorandum

To Mayor and City Council

From Bob Richardson Associate PlanneRW
Date May 1 2006

Subject Multi jurisdictional worksession with Historic Preservation expert

On May 18 2006 Historic Preservation expert Donovan Rypkema will give a

presentation entitled Sustainability Economics Preservation This presentation
designed for the general public will begin at 7 00 p m and will be held at First United
Methodist Church 1165 NW Monroe Avenue Corvallis

On March 6 2006 the City Council expressed interest in participating in a special
worksession with Benton County Commissioners and members of the Albany City
Council to hear a separate a presentation by Mr Rypkema also on the topic of

Sustainability Economics and Preservation but tailored to issues facing local decision

makers Based on the interest expressed by the Council staff from Benton County and
the cities of Corvallis and Albany organized a special joint worksession with Mr

Rypkema This memo is to confirm that the joint worksession is scheduled for

Thursday May 18 2006 between 4 00 5 30pm in the Corvallis downtown fire station

Benton County Commissioners the Albany City Council and the State Historic
Preservation Office have been notified of this worksession It is expected that between
8 10 representatives from Albany including staff and up to 5 representatives from the

County including staff would attend It is also possible that a small number of

representatives from the State Historic Preservation Office will be present It is
understood that scheduling conflicts will prevent a number of Corvallis Councilors from

attending this meeting but those that are able to attend are encouraged to do so
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Memorandum

To Mayor and City Council

From Pat Lampton Downtown representative to Van Buren Bridge Stakeholders Group
Tony Van Vliet Corvallis Riverfront Commission

Tony Howell

Date May 1 2006

Subject Maintaining pedestrian access on historic Van Buren Bridge

As you know ODOT will soon be finalizing which alternatives for the construction of a new

bridge will be reviewed in the Environmental Analysis phase of its planning Alternatives that do

not undergo an Environmental Analysis will in all likelihood be excluded from later consideration
The Stakeholders Group meeting planned for this week is being rescheduled to June and it will

likely be their last meeting before the alternatives are finalized by the Management Team

We would like to encourage the Mayor and Council to take all necessary steps needed to
ensure that the continued use of the existing historic Van Buren Bridge for pedestrian travel be
included in the design of one or more alternatives that undergo ODOTs Environmental

Analysis The following is a brief list of factors supporting this recommendation

It is consistent with the current recommendations of the Corvallis Riverfront Commission and
Parks Recreation Advisory Board with the position of the City Council in 1993 and with

the Riverfront Park Plan

Utilization of the historic bridge for vehicle travel during construction of a new bridge
provides a significant cost savings over building a temporary bridge

According to Ray Bottenberg of the ODOT Bridge Preservation unit ODOT will be

rehabilitating the historic bridge bringing it up to its current level of service until the new

bridge is built It will remain safe and functional for bike ped uses indefinitely with a

reasonable investment in annual maintenance and with paint projects every 25 years that

are eligible for federal funding

Federal highway funding regulations Section 4 f require the re use of historic bridges
when prudent and feasible Re use of the bridge as a pedestrian facility appears to be
both prudent and feasible as well as desirable from the community s perspective Under
this interpretation ODOT would maintain responsibility for the bridge

OOOT has recently proposed maintaining the historic bridge but removing the approaches
to the bridge and not allowing pedestrian access This was done with the Richardson

Bridge in Grants Pass see attached photos They have presented the argument that the

approaches may not be part of the historic bridge and therefore ODOT is not obligated to

maintain them

We do not want to see the community s investment in the Riverfront diminished by an

inaccessible bridge skeleton when it has such a wonderful potential as a safe enjoyable
passage to the east side of the river as well as an incomparable place to pause and view the

city
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Maintaining pedestrian access on historic Van Buren Bridge
May 1 2006
Page 20f2

As much as they would like Corvallis to assume the cost it appears that OOOT is obliged under
federal funding requirements to re use the bridge for pedestrian uses and to maintain

ownership and maintenance responsibility The approaches to the historic bridge whether or

not they have been altered over time are acritical element to the re use of the bridge and must
be part of the final design Even if this point continues to be debated it must remain in the
alternatives forwarded to the Environmental Analysis

If desired by the City Council the following is a possible motion to assist in accomplishing this

MOTION The City Council supports the re use of the historic Van Buren Bridge including its

approaches as a pedestrian facility under the ownership and maintenance of OOOT consistent
with Federal highway funding requirements The Council through its representation on the
Stakeholder Group and Management Team will actively pursue its inclusion in the alternatives

undergoing the Environmental Analysis
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Comprehensive Diversity Proposal to the City Council to amend the City Charter

ASC Proposes
Section 3 A

Power for the protection ofcitizens
The City shall exercise its power to ensure the equal protection and treatment of all

persons without discrimination including but not limited to age citizenship status color

disability gender identity or expression marital status national origin race religion
religious observaJce sex and sexual orientation Corvallis is acommunity that honors

diversity and diverse interests and aspires to be free ofprejudice bigotry and hate

We Propose
Sec 3a

Responsibility of city government to support diversity
In its actions city government shall assess barriers that limit oppOliunities or

dispropOliionately impact historically marginalized persons including but not limited to

age citizenship status color disability mental or physical gender identitr or

expression marital status national origin race religion religious observance sex sexual

orientation and source of income

Sec 3b

Power for the protection of citizens

The city shall exercise its power to ensure the equal protection treatment and

representation of all persons without discrimination based on age citizenship status

color disability mental or physical gender identifsr or expression marital status

national origin race religion religious observance sex sexual orientation and source of
income Corvallis is a community that honors diversity diverse interests and aspires to

be free of prejudice bigotry and hate

Chapter 5 Section 21

Mayor
The mayor shall appoint the committees under the rules ofthe council S he shall

undeliake all reasonable methods to assure that herhis appointments to boards

commissions and committees reflect Corvallis s diversity including geographic and

ethnic diversity

Chapter 9
Public Improvements and Environmental Justice

It is the responsibility of the City of Corvallis to provide and protect from incursion from

the State and Federal govenunent the city charter municipal code and land use

development codes It shall be the business ofthe Corvallis City Cmillcil to ensure

environmental justice being especially attentive of economic and geographic
displacement of marginalized communities
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April 30 2006 9 42p m

To Whom It May Concern

Tonight We Must

Justice denied anywhere diminishes ustice everywhere Martin Luther King Jr
1

In the end anti black anti female and all forms ofdiscrimination are equivalent to the

same thinz anti humanism 2

Shirley Chisholm quotes American Politician the firstAfrican American to seat in

Conzress 1924
3

The very ink with which all history is written is merely fluid ore udice
Mark Twain quotes American Humorist Writer and Lecturer 18354

Tonight I pondered over the ideas ofwhy is it urgent and important to reconstruct

the language ofthe Corvallis City Charter In my efforts to explainmy three major
concerns will testify why I am writing to all officials and officers to implement BASIC

Rights methods of performance to transform our City s charter platform to ignite the

stand against discrimination and the elimination of institutionalize racism sexism class

ism and other forms of oppression e J1lust become asensitiv based society under one

rule the common of all humanity interconnectedness diversity

Therefore we should examinetbeflrstpriority ofthecity s evaluation My
testimony is to evaluate what has been proposed by the city versus the activist

performance of expertise and standard In order to evaluate we must first ask ourselves if

an approved doctor or lawyer came today they would testify in a language of expertise
Regardless ofthe councilor charter language they would be deemed worthy of approval
of their expertise in law and medicine These experts would solidify the method of the

necessary process due to their validation without question and so the officials would

comply with their requests in order to bring sensitive information to the forefront As so

the BASIC Rights have civil expertise Thus we should comply for that reason as a

doctor and lawyer

1
www thinkexistcom

2
www thinkexist com

3
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Let Us Not Ignore And So Become Ignorant InOur Decision Making

In addition the question that I have presented today is EQUAL in expertise
These civil activists are experts in their field like minded as the doctor in medicine and

lawyers in law The civil agenda of diversity begins in the grassroots framework These

pioneers and activists begin the diversity trail blaze Thus as a city councilor charter

the advisoryboard in making decisions would not depend on lawyers or doctors but

activists to create a framework that is time sensitive information as language method

andprocess Therefore the formula ofour evaluation is this Who is the expert what

are their language and their method And so Let us use their advice Finally we

conclude the adoption to these experts process

The WinWin Solution The Experts Platform

p

Second I would like to mention iQuality is anumber one asset My
testimony is this if adoctor performs a surgery does the expert use the language of a

lawyer to perform and does alawyer use a doctor method to perform a hearing Nor

would I expect a city charter to perform a civil language without the expert implementing
the proper procedure ofits document Thus this brings me to if I amnot mistaken the

purpose of our city officials are to demonstrate the ability to reflect the demands and

needs oftheir constituents the city at large In addition the language therefore must

reflect the whole rather a few to increase success ofits regulation

Likewise doctor performances rely on its expertise in language and methods Our

rights are ignored because ofthe language and methods used so therefore do we hold our

officials accountable ofnegligence and improper procedures as doctors who do not

perform their duties appropriately As a social system our culture faces the decision to

evolve or to regress Those are the only two decisions we have as members ofit There

is no stand still al1l1roach The officials and its officers depend on the experts ofthe

systems as an advisory board in making proper decisions upon a social society This

accountbrings me omYfi11 LC01ige111thatasapri6rityour city charter is areflection of

tl1fJir ambassadors iAs the Declaration ofIndependence this document was a reflection

of the heart integrity and pathway of that culture As so we too find ourselves entering
into another phase of transition Our position we cannot ignore that we must not

underestimate the power ofwords We cannot ignore that these men that signed the

Declaration of Independence fell in love with their slaves their black women and black

children In order for these documents to include independence for all we are faced with

the truth that their minds were open tothe possibilities of including an interconnectedness

diversity into their framework It was the suggestion of their invisible force that

transform their writings It was the people who did not get recognition who developed
their articulate document It was their desire to eliminate dependence on prejudice and

so we take it to the next level today
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Let UsNot Ignore the Power of Words

civil surgeons develop
plan to fail or plan to succeed but

every detail is precise and refined Let us not ignore the details It is evident that what
has spoken in the past is neither qualified nor fit for the future Let us not fall asleep and
miss an opportunity as this Our civil surgeons are equipped to strategize a plan for our

city vision for the future and there is success in their regimes Diversity is amust in
order for our culture to withstand the disease of mortality decay of injustice and

prejudice We must foreshadow our steps

a lawyer oflaw and precision
and so let our method as acivil system qualify to practice our surgery on your
documents You be the civil notary ofthose documents Like ajudge you may judge our

work but carefully consider the ofour

EtemaUy

R i Keisha L Merchant D D
Universal Life Church Monastery
Independent Universe and Global Issues

21st
Century Activist Coach
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Activism is the next advisory committee in order for us to survive let us listen to the experts
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Draft
Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Commission

Minutes
April 7, 2006

Present
Susan Nelson, Vice Chair
Rosie Toy
Andrew Ross, Vice Chair
Jack Schubert
Josh Storer
George Grosch, City Council
Joel Rea

Absent        

Staff
Joe Whinnery, Public Works
Steve Rogers, Public Works 
Lt. Jon Keefer, Police Department
Jon Katin, Public Works

Visitors
Walt Prichard, Mid-Valley Bike Club
Tam Peterson, Benton County Health Dept.  
Greg Alpert, Bicycle Transportation Alliance
Brad Upton, BPAC Subcommittee

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION

Agenda Item
Infor-
mation
Only

Held for
Further
Review

Recommendations

I. Call Meeting to Order/Introductions X

II. Approve March 3, 2006 Minutes Approved, as amended. 

III. Visitors Comments X

IV. Old Business

• Vision Clearance in Urban

Core/Follow- up from DPC

X

V. New Business
• Report from Subcommittee on

Education and Enforcement
• Discussion of Speed Limit

Enforcement on Pedestrian/Vehicle
Crash Outcomes

X

X

VI. Information Sharing X

I. Call Meeting to Order/Introductions

The meeting was called to order and introductions were made.

II. Approve March 3, 2006 Minutes

Under Visitors Comments, the bold section “Education”, question 1, the word “advertising”
shall be replaced with “marketing”.  

Commissioners Storer and Toy, respectively, moved and seconded that the March 3, 2006
minutes be approved, as amended.  The motion passed unanimously. 
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III. Visitors Comments

Greg Alpert, Corvallis Safety Instructor for the Bicycle Transportation Alliance (BTA),
attended as part of a campaign to introduce himself to the various advisory commissions.  Mr.
Alpert is a regular bicycle commuter and is concerned about sandwich boards located on City
streets which present a potential hazard to bicyclists and motorists.  Steve Rogers said the City
does not have a code enforcement officer, so complaints regarding sandwich boards and the like
are handled on a complaint basis only.     

IV. Old Business

• Vision Clearance in Urban Core/Follow-up from DPC

Joe Whinnery reported the issue of vision clearance problems at several downtown intersections
was presented to the Downtown Parking Commission (DPC) at its March meeting.  DPC voted
four to one to support BPAC’s recommendation to convert four spaces at selected intersections
to motorcycle-only parking.  Downtown Corvallis Association (DCA) opposed the
recommendation because it feared the loss of motor vehicle parking could hurt business in the
urban core.  Michael Ronkin, ODOT’s Bicycle/Pedestrian Program Manager, said that with the
low speeds in the urban core, the removal of parking may hurt downtown business.  He said on-
street parking is often an asset in bicycle/pedestrian safety.  

Mr. Whinnery said the advantage of converting the spaces to motorcycle-only, rather than
eliminating the spaces, is to lessen confusion over which vehicles will be permitted to park in
the spaces.  

Commissioner Storer said in areas like South 3  Street, there is a need for additional buffersrd

to protect bicyclists and pedestrians. 

Mr. Rogers added that employees are not permitted to parking in the Downtown Free Customer
Zone.  Some parking meters outside of the Downtown Free Customer Zone have been removed
from some parking spaces near Safeway on SW 3rd Street.  It is hoped that by allowing
employees to park without charge in these spaces, spaces in the Downtown Free Customer Zone
will be freed up for customer parking.  This should more than offset the loss of the four spaces.
If a resident lives within the urban core, he/she is eligible to park in front of downtown
businesses.  

V. New Business

• Report from Subcommittee on Education and Enforcement

Commissioner Storer reported the subcommittee has met three times.  The focus is pursuance
of a short list of concrete recommendations, to be presented to the Commission and then to City
Council, for reducing crashes between motor vehicles and pedestrians/bicyclists and to create
a safer environment for cycling and walking.  The City  recently purchased a radar speed trailer
to use in various parts of the City.  Commissioner Storer anticipates the subcommittee will
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continue meeting for approximately six more weeks.  The subcommittee will update the
Commission at the May meeting.  

Brad Upton said he and Eric Urbikeit met with Lt. Jon Keefer of the Corvallis Police
Department to discuss ideas for education and enforcement programs.      

• Discussion of Speed Limit Enforcement on Pedestrian/Vehicle Crash Outcomes

This agenda item was a result of the fact that any crash involving a motor vehicle and either a
pedestrian or bicyclist nearly always results in more damage to the pedestrian or bicyclist than
to the motor vehicle.  Lt. Keefer was previously tabbed to lead this discussion but was not
present at the meeting.  Mr. Whinnery said the subcommittee’s scope includes this item and its
findings will address it.  Lt. Keefer indicated that he had not had the opportunity to complete
his analysis, but would give a full report to the committee as soon as that occurred.

VI. Information Sharing

• The Commission cleaned up trash from its adopted trail.  There will be a vegetation pruning
event held the first week in May.  The date will be agreed upon via email.  

• Mr. Rogers distributed a notice for a conservation plan workshop sponsored by the Green Belt
Land Trust, to be held Saturday, April 29.   

• The pedestrian safety project on South 3rd Street is approximately 50% complete.  Some poles
are already in place on the medians that will hold pedestrian crossing signs with flashing lights
below and above the signs.  The lights will be pedestrian-activated.  

• The Brooklane Drive project, to add bike lanes, bid on April 6.  The engineer’s estimate was
higher than available dollars, the lowest bid was even higher than the engineer’s estimate.
Despite that circumstance, the project is expected to move forward this summer.  Bike lanes
will be added to Brooklane between Philomath Boulevard and Chintimini.  A full overlay will
also be added.  

• CTS ridership for March set an all-time high with a 19% increase.  This was the second-highest
monthly ridership ever recorded.  Route changes go into effect April 17.  Changes were
implemented to address on-time performance.     

• The City co-sponsored a day-long bike symposium in Eugene last week as part of the
Governor’s Conference on Tourism.  The goal of the symposium was to find ways to enhance
the availability of information through a central clearinghouse which would encourage tourists
to visit Oregon to bicycle tour.  

• The City’s requests for grants were submitted.  Rulings to move forward on the grants will take
place by April 10th.  Final applications are due by June 30th.  One grant submitted was the 35th
Street project which contained modifications suggested by ODOT.  The other grant was one
that was originally submitted by Benton County but did not pass the initial screening.  The grant
is to create bike paths linking Corvallis and Albany.  The City’s part of the project would
connect Circle Boulevard with Conifer Boulevard, then travel through Village Green Park and
across Cheldelin School grounds to the edge of the City’s property.  “Trails With Rails” would



Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Commission Minutes
April 7, 2005
Page 4 of 4

then pick up the County’s portion and continue to Albany.  The City has met with
representatives from Benton County and City of Albany in conjunction with the proposal.  Julee
Conway of the City’s Parks and Rec Department said that if ODOT were unable to fund some
of the County’s portion, perhaps there could be a recreational trails grant program which could
provide funding.  

• Get There Another Way Week is May 15-19.  There will be an Employee Transportation
Coordinators (ETC) discussion and planning meeting April 18th.  Planning for the August in
Motion celebration began with a meeting April 6.  Historically, the Commission has hosted a
breakfast booth at Central Park to coincide with one of these events.  The Commission agreed
to discuss before the next meeting what, if any, events it will host at either or both of these
upcoming events.  

• Commissioner Rea asked how far along is the Sidewalk Safety Program work.  Mr. Rogers
answered the work was approximately halfway complete.  Commissioner Rea worried that
unfinished work areas could potentially create a safety hazard for bicyclists and pedestrians.
Mr. Rogers said he would look into solutions to these types of problems and discuss it with the
contractor.     

Next meetings: May 5, 2006, at Madison Avenue Meeting Room, 7:00 a.m.
                          June 2, 2006, at Madison Avenue Meeting Room, 7:00 a.m.



CITY OF CORVALLIS 
MINUTES OF THE CIVIC BEAUTIFICATION AND URBAN FORESTRY 

COMMISSION 
APRIL 13, 2006 

 
Attendance 
Kent Daniels 
Betty Griffiths, Council Liaison 
Ray Harris 
Merritt Jensen 
Bill Johnson 
Ross Parkerson 
Mike Riddle, Vice Chair 
Maria Tomlinson 
 
Absent/Excused 
Helen Ellis, Chair 
Lori Hendrick 
David Sandrock, OSU Liaison 
 

 
Staff 
Julee Conway, Director 
Mark Lindgren, Recorder 
Becky Merja, Urban Forester 
 
Visitors 
Jay Neil, Pacific Power 
Fred Towne, Community Development 

 
SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION 
 

 
Agenda Item 

 
Information  
Only 

 
Held for  
Further  
Review 

 
Recommendations 

II. Review of Minutes  
       X 

  

 
III. Visitors’ Propositions 

 
       X 

  

 
IV. City/ OSU Staff Reports 

 
        

  
Motion passed to support the decision of Forester Merja regarding  
denial of a tree permit to remove two Sweetgum trees, subject to  
additional information from property owner. 
 

 
V. Committee Reports 
 

 
       X 

  
 

 
VI. Old Business 
 

 
       X 

  
 

 
VII. New Business 
 

 
       X 

  
 

 
VIII. Adjournment 

 
       X 

  
The next Civic Beautification meeting will be at 8 a.m. May 11,  
2006, at the Parks and Rec Conference Room. 
 

 
CONTENT OF DISCUSSION 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: Vice-Chair Mike Riddle called the meeting to order at 8:02 A.M.  
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II. REVIEW OF MINUTES. Ross Parkerson moved and Merritt Jensen seconded to approve Mar. 9, 2006 
minutes as presented; motion passed.  
 

III. VISITORS’ PROPOSITIONS. Jay Neil, Pacific Power, related he had noticed city had been planting 
inappropriately tall tree species in Dixon Creek riparian areas that were under power lines. He stated he 
would like to identify shrubs that were more appropriate for planting in riparian areas with overhead 
power lines. Forester Becky Merja suggested they work together with the City engineer on those 
projects to clarify tree setbacks for such plantings. Kent Daniels added that Public Works Director 
Steve Rogers had presented at the previous CBUF meeting, citing the need for more riparian plantings.  
 
Neil added that the landscape architect for the Corvallis High School project specified Zelkova trees (50-
80’ tall) under the 30’ power lines there. Merja added that Neil wrote a letter to the school district, 
explaining PUC requirements relating to tree size and pruning; she concurred with what he had written 
and forwarded the letter to Planning, which will probably contact the architect. Parkerson observed that it 
appears the trees are being prepared to be removed.  
 

IV.  CITY/OSU STAFF REPORTS. Merja highlighted Arbor Day proclamation scheduled to be read at 
the April 17 City Council meeting. The City will be receiving Tree City USA Award and Tree City 
USA Growth Awards, for work done on the ordinance revisions and the Tree Walk brochure.  

 
On April 18, the Human Services Committee will review the Downtown Tree Management ordinance; 
she will ask for a revision of the ordinance; she asked for a CBUF representative to come speak in favor 
of the action. On April 22, CBUF will have a booth at the Earth Fair event; there will be a tree raffle.  
Merja reported the sequoia at 15th and Harrison, discussed at the previous CBUF meeting, is scheduled 
for removal April 15; she highlighted the informational sheet being distributed regarding the removal. 
CBUF will have a booth at the May 7 Spring Garden Festival.  
 
She related she was alerted to Willamette Graystone topping trees in landscaped beds that were part of 
the requirement of development. The manager wanted more clearance of signs being obscured by 
growing red maples. She discussed how tree topping is not appropriate tree pruning with the manager 
and reported the matter to the Planning Department; the two already-topped trees will be replaced.  
 
Merja related that two months ago the Edward Jones office at 5th and Adams requested a tree removal 
permit to remove and replace two Sweetgum trees in front of the office. The primary concerns cited 
were sidewalk damage and concern that older clients could slip on the round ball-like seeds. She 
inspected the site and found minimal sidewalk damage, though there was some evidence of previous 
grinding. She related that these were two of the best-behaved Sweetgum trees in Corvallis. They are 
some of the largest trees in the area and are growing in an eight-foot park strip, showing relatively little 
root disturbance. There are non-powerline utility cables overhead.  
 
Her estimation was that repairs could happen to the sidewalk and the trees could remain in place; 
therefore, she denied the permit request. Bill Mercer of Edward Jones would like to appeal the permit; 
he had stated an office representative would be present at today’s meeting. He is working with a 
landscaper to redo the park strips. She has asked Mercer to submit the appeal in writing. She reviewed 
the appeal process. She added that there is not an approved street tree list yet. She noted that Sweetgum 
trees have often become problematic in narrower park strips around town.  
 
Parkerson asserted that Forester Merja had made the right choice and cited the importance of mature 
trees in the streetscape and the district. Council Liaison Betty Griffiths asked if there was a possible 
compromise. Discussion eventually dismissed the possibility of using a chemical application (Florel) to 
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suppress flowing buds (and thus production of seeds) due to concern regarding chemical drift. Ray 
Harris suggested that regularly sweeping the seeds from the sidewalk is not onerous. Daniels noted 
there are many Sweetgums in park strips around Corvallis with similar problems. While they would not 
now be placed on an approved street tree list for planting, CBUF is not advocating they be cut down in 
numbers simply because they are messy. 
 
Merja, upon review, noted the appeal process had been left out of the revised ordinance. She read, 
“…the City Manager may, in his or her discretion, issue a permit or permits, to the property owner or 
authorized designee, to plant, prune or remove trees, shrubs or vegetation from the park strip”. She 
clarified the Forester acts on behalf of the City Manager in these matters.  
 
Griffiths noted that because property owners are liable for the sidewalk in front of their office or home, 
she suggested checking the City’s liability, in the case that someone does trip and the owner then claims 
it is the City’s fault for preventing him from cutting down the tree.   
 
Kent Daniels moved and Parkerson seconded to support the decision of Urban Forester Merja; 
motion passed. Merja stated she will inform Mercer of CBUF’s decision to keep the trees and invite 
him to come to CBUF with more information, as his representative was not present at the meeting 
today.  
 
Liaison Griffiths invited members to attend the Greenbelt Land Trust’s conservation planning workshop 
April 29; Mid-Willamette Valley growth scenarios and projections are among the topics. She thanked 
Merja for her work with the neighborhood association in regard to the proposed removal of the sequoia 
tree at 15th and Harrison. Griffiths related that following the outreach, residents seemed to understand 
the necessity of removing the tree.  
 
Griffiths related the Administrative Services Committee will review the proposed telecommunications 
tax this evening and encouraged members to attend. Landline franchises now pay 7%; wireless services 
pay nothing. The proposed tax would initially fund replacement of fire vehicle reserves; FAQ’s are 
posted at the City website.  
 
Merja highlighted coupons for the Papa’s Pizza benefit for the department Family Assistance Program.  
 
Harris reported he distributed fliers to residents regarding the removal of eight large cottonwood trees 
adjacent to the Sunset Park ball fields. Merja added the trees were sold for pulp; there were no 
complaints before or after their removal last week.  
 

V.  COMMITTEE REPORTS. Daniels reported the Planning/Ordinances/Partnerships Committee met 
and discussed the revised 2006-2008 priorities list and agreed on dates. He asked that an item for how 
to develop a CIP program for street trees be placed on the next meeting’s agenda.  
 
Riddle expressed concern that early in the review process, no tree species are indicated; however, by the 
time it comes for final review and the planting plan is there, it is very difficult that late in the process, 
when things are so fully developed and developers are ready to go, to point out that particular trees may 
not be appropriate. It is costly for developers to make the changes at that point. He stated he wanted to 
discuss with Director Conway whether it was possible to indicate tree varieties on the initial plan, so 
they can be reviewed at that time, and changed if necessary, early in the process.  
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Daniels related he had discussed the matter with Director Conway; also, Dan Carlson indicated that the 
check-off process is being reviewed. Merja noted that currently she sees the conceptual drawings, but 
not the final plans.  
 
Planning Division Manager Fred Towne related that there have been problems, such as having trees 
proposed for locations over water meters. The department is trying to coordinate up front to avoid such 
issues. Riddle suggested Planning could encourage developers to identify trees earlier on by noting that 
doing so could avoid delaying a project.  
 
Harris expressed concern regarding the poor quality of fill sometimes placed by developers in park 
strips. Bill Johnson observed the industry currently does not support amending tree holes.  
Merja noted that where there is not adequate planting volume for tree roots, the longevity and size of a 
tree is compromised. Also, soil can be badly compacted during construction; probably the soil should 
be broken up by a backhoe before planting. She related that a Planning Department staff representative 
relayed that there are no specifications for tree planting and soil volume and compaction. She will 
check specifications from other cities. She suggested the P/O/P committee also follow up on the 
standards issue.  
 
Towne added that the department tries to address the issue partly with three-year planting and 
maintenance bonds. He supported adding precise planting standards based on using industry standards. 
Also, engineers could receive training on tree planting. Riddle suggested bringing the Forester on ride-
alongs with the City engineering inspector to provide advice and input.  
 
Daniels set the next P/O/P committee meeting for April 27.  
 
Harris reported Green Gable Farms has offered access to greenhouses, media and soil for propagation 
of materials for Parks and Rec. They are available in spring and summer for uses such as making root 
cuttings. Merja responded that the department will likely be recruiting for an ornamental horticulture 
position; once that person is on board, that opportunity could be explored.  
 
Merritt Jensen praised the G-T ad for Arbor Day, sponsored by Pacific Power (Right Tree, Right Place). 
He acclaimed the new trees planted on 5th Street, between Jefferson and Madison, in the Concrete for 
Trees program, in cooperation with Public Works.  
 
Maria Tomlinson reported that the Education/Outreach/Volunteers committee has not met. Merja stated 
advertising for the CBUF grants has been in the City Newsletter and will be in the June issue; she 
suggested placing an ad in the G-T. Riddle suggested Director Conway inform CBUF regarding what 
grant funds are available at the next meeting.  
 
Tomlinson suggested a June 1 deadline for submitting photos for the Civic Beautification Award 
nominations; she encouraged submission of digital photos, if possible. She noted that while she has 
coordinated the process in the past, her term expires June 30, 2006; she won’t be extending her tenure.  
 
Harris reported he met with John Hinkle and Jackie Rochefort regarding redesigning the bulbed 
intersections on Madison. More appropriate plants will likely be planted in the future.   
 

VI. OLD BUSINESS. Fred Towne, Community Development Planning Division Manager, presented on 
Land Development Code Chapter 2.9 updates, regarding historic trees. He related the Historic 
Preservation Advisory Board did a great job updating the standards, based on review of other 
jurisdictions and past actions. There was a series of eight workshops and a number of public hearings, 
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during which the document was modified and reorganized; staff made additional modifications. The 
Planning Commission took the document through additional public hearings.  
 
The new document adds a limited set of street tree protections, primarily for those on historic properties 
and defines historically significant trees. There will be a public hearing April 24, followed by several 
City Council meetings on the matter. A removal of a tree meeting historic tree criteria must be approved 
by the HPAB. He related the appeal of the Phase III of the LDC to the Land Use Board of Appeals has 
been dismissed; an appeal will probably be dismissed by the Court of Appeals as well, in the near 
future. He emphasized that the ordinance does not address Landmark Trees. Riddle noted the document 
incorporates a lot of issues that CBUF is concerned with.  
 

VII. NEW BUSINESS. Tomlinson reported that a committee is planning for the 150th anniversary of 
Corvallis, with the theme, “Lasting Legacy”. The committee is asking that boards and commission, over 
the next year, use the theme and logo in their publications and activities.  
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT: Meeting adjourned at 9:30 A.M. 
 



DRAFT
CORVALLIS CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMISSION ON TRANSIT

MINUTES
April 12, 2006

Members Present
Stephan Friedt
Bob Lowry, Chair
Brandon Trelstad
Lita Verts, Vice-Chair
Robert E. Wilson

Absent
Scott Carroll
Emily Hagen, City Councilor
Annie McMahon
Bjorn Warloe

Staff
Jon Katin, Public Works
Michelle Rhoads, Public Works

Visitors
Paul Morgan
Stewart Wershow
Abe Drabkin

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION

Agenda Item

Infor-
mation
Only

Held
for

Further
Review Recommendations/Action

I. Introductions X

II. Approval of Minutes-
March 8, 2006

Approved, as amended

III. CACOT/Visitor’s
Comments

X

IV. Follow-up to
Citizen’s Request for
CTS Buses to Operate
on SE Bethel between
SE Lilly and SE
Crystal Lake

X

V. Follow-up on Spare
Ratio of Vehicles for
Back-up

X

VI. Update on Wheelchair
Lift Failures

X

VII. Information Sharing X

VIII.Adjournment X
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CONTENT OF DISCUSSION

I. Introductions

Introductions of Commission members, staff and visitors were
made. 

II. Approval of Minutes- March 8, 2006

Page 2, item III, paragraph two, sentence two, should read
“There were, by the driver’s count, sixty-seven riders on
board.” 

Commissioners Friedt and Trelstad, respectively, moved and
seconded that the Commission approve the March 8, 2006
minutes.  The motion passed unanimously.  

III. CACOT/Visitor’s Comments

Paul Morgan said he recently noticed an increase in 
cigarette smoking inside bus shelters at the Transit Mall. 
He said the “No Smoking” decals previously affixed to bus
shelters are no longer there.  He suggested establishing
designated smoking areas.  

Mr. Morgan said he recently activated the wayside sign at a
bus stop and was given bus information based on the
scheduled time and not the actual bus status.  The Route 5
bus that Mr. Morgan was waiting for was twenty-five minutes
late.  Because that bus was within 5 minutes of the
following Route 5 bus, the wayside sign acknowledged only
the second bus, confirming its on-time status.  Ms. Rhoads
said beginning April 17, Route 5 will be paired with Route 6
in an effort to improve on-time performance.  The standby
bus was not available because recent on-time improvements
have made the standby bus unnecessary.  Ms. Rhoads also said
the wayside signs are not set up to handle that statuses of
two buses running so close together.  

Chair Lowry said he has noticed smokers gathering at the
shelter nearest to Monroe Avenue because this shelter is not
currently used as a bus stop.  Ms. Rhoads said smoking is
prohibited within a certain distance of City buildings.  Bus
shelters are classified as City buildings.  Any exception to
this would need to be approved by City Council.  Ms. Rhoads
said she would check into the “No Smoking” decals missing
from the bus shelters.  
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Mr. Wershow noted that there is a new ban on smoking in
Central Park.  Mr. Katin urged caution to the Commission in
any recommendations regarding establishing a smoking area
because it may lead to confusion about where smoking is
allowed and where it is not allowed.  

On Monday April 17, Chair Lowry will give a historical slide
show presentation at The Museum in Philomath on logging
railroads of the past.     

IV. Follow-up to Citizen’s Request for CTS Buses to Operate at
15 mph on SE Bethel between Lilly and Crystal Lake

Background: 

At the March CACOT meeting there was a citizen’s request to
remove bus routes from SE Bethel.  Since the City and CACOT
do not see that as an acceptable option at this time, the
alternative suggested by the citizen was a 15 mph speed
limit for buses on SE Bethel between Lilly and Crystal Lake. 

Discussion:

Ms. Rhoads attended both CTS drivers meetings during March
and provided notice to drivers of the 15 mph speed limit on
SE Bethel.  The drivers agreed that this was a good policy
and that there is a “natural tendency” to slow down through
that area anyway due to the constriction.  There have been
no complaints from citizens since the policy took effect.   

V.  Follow-up on Spare Ratio of Vehicles for Back-up

The trolley is a vehicle that is used as a last resort back-
up because it is not meant to be used as a regular use-
commercial grade vehicle.  There are eight Gillig buses
available for route use and six buses on the road at any
given time.  By inter-governmental agreement with the City
of Philomath, the City of Corvallis is obligated to provide
a spare bus to Philomath if need be.  To recap, there are
ten vehicles in the fleet including the Philomath bus, with
seven buses needed at any one time. Therefore, there are two
spare Gillig buses and the trolley in case of additional
breakdown or failures.  

Lately, there have been a rash of bus transmission problems
which have forced the spare buses into serviced.  One bus is
currently being serviced for a transmission leak.  



CACOT Minutes
April 12, 2006
Page 4 of 7

The City has a grant with FTA to assist in funding
replacement of one of the buses and within the next year
another grant will help pay for another replacement bus.  It
is anticipated that the first replacement bus will arrive in
January, 2007 due to the nearly one year lead time in
receiving a new bus.   

Commissioner Wilson asked what is the average age of a CTS
bus.  Mr. Katin said the average age is 8.1 years.  Chair
Lowry commented that when ODOT was offering bus replacement
funds during the last discretionary grant process, other
transit agencies in the state were seeking funds to replace
20+ year old buses.  

It was mentioned that during the week prior to this meeting,
a CTS bus had a mechanical failure while at Hewlett-Packard. 
There was an approximate forty minute wait for a replacement
bus.  Rhoads will follow up with Laidlaw on the incident and
length of time for response.

VI. Update on Wheelchair Lift Failures

Ms. Rhoads said the City is reviewing Laidlaw’s maintenance
practices.  ADA regulations require the City to provide
accessible vehicles in fixed-route service and complementary
paratransit service.  Wheelchair lift failures seem to have
occurred several times on the same bus even though that bus
has received maintenance or work on it several times.  Chair
Lowry said Laidlaw’s maintenance staff faces a dilemma in
that the buses are of various ages and therefore have
various lift features.     

VII. Information Sharing

Commissioner Trelstad distributed pamphlets which outlined
OSU campus shuttle route revisions.  Information on the
revisions were distributed through various media outlets as
well as on buses and bus stops.  Despite these attempts to
inform the public, many were still unaware of the revisions
and when they were put into effect.  The extensive revisions
were made in large part to better interface with CTS routes
and to de-emphasize free parking on and around campus.  The
intersection of 15th Street and Jefferson Way is now a major
transfer point.  In the future, it is the desire of OSU to
make the parking lot, which is now both staff/faculty and
student visitor parking on the northeast corner of 15th and
Jefferson, into a transit hub by decommissioning about half
of the available parking.  CTS, Linn-Benton Loop and the OSU



CACOT Minutes
April 12, 2006
Page 5 of 7

Shuttle would then be able to provide transfers without
having to wait in the right-of-way.  The route revisions
will also provide accessible transportation along Jefferson. 

Commissioner Wilson asked Commissioner Trelstad why OSU
Shuttles no longer travel through the parking lot of Reser
Stadium.  Service is now provided adjacent to the parking
lot.  Because there is free parking on the south of the lot,
it is a short walk to the shuttle stop.  

Commissioner Verts asked why the parking lot between the
Memorial Union and the Library is now a pay lot for
visitors.  Commissioner Trelstad said it was changed to a
pay lot years ago in at attempt to minimize traffic because
the lot is in the middle of campus.  It is the desire of OSU
to have visitors use the campus shuttle or park in the lot
near LaSells Stewart Center.  

Commissioner Friedt said he has heard from some drivers that
the new pairing of Routes 3 and 4 will have difficulty
staying on time.  Ms. Rhoads said if any of the routes have
on-time issues, the system will be adjusted to address the
issues.  

Ridership records were set for March.  Ms. Rhoads was asked
what factors are most responsible for the recent increase in
ridership.  Ms. Rhoads cited it is likely due to multiple
factors including customer service by drivers, the redesign
of the CTS schedule two years ago, a slight population
increase, a hike in gas prices and promotions and
advertising done by CTS.  Commissioner Verts added OSU
parking restrictions to the list of factors.  Commissioner
Wilson asked if there have been any changes made to
ridership collecting or reporting methods.  Ms. Rhoads
responded these are currently being handled in the same
method.  

Chair Lowry said he spoke to a driver who mentioned that the
left turn onto NW Elks Drive from northbound 9th Street for
Route 2 is a safety issue.  

Ms. Rhoads said there is a travel training and nylon strap
installation event scheduled to last two hours on April 22. 
Volunteers were solicited to greet and register
participants.  

Mr. Katin said he met with Annie McMahon and other ASOSU
representatives to discuss the Beaver Bus.  When ASOSU first
considered a Beaver Bus operation and possibly partner with
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Laidlaw to use two school buses, it was to run the buses
three nights per week for six hours per night.  Hours of
operations would be Thursday-Saturday from 9:00pm-3:00am. 
One bus route would run from the Downtown Transit Center
along 9th Street and the other would run from the Transit
Center to Monroe Avenue, Kings Boulevard and Timberhill,
then return.  Each route would run one hour trips.    

The City Budget Commission was solicited for $21,000, the
Corvallis business community will be solicited for an
additional $21,000 and OSU will be asked to provide the
remaining $21,000.  Mr. Katin asked ASOSU why CTS was not
asked to perform the transportation services for the Beaver
Bus.  ASOSU told Mr. Katin that CTS would be considered. 
ASOSU will work with the Police Department to ensure all
citizen rights and rules are followed regarding control of
unruly passengers.  ASOSU also agreed to ensure cleanliness
of the bus.  

ASOSU will update this proposal to the City Budget
Commission on May 4, 2006 for further discussion.  The
program is scheduled to begin in the Fall of 2006.  Mr.
Katin said the funding to accommodate this payment is not
currently within the Transit Program and it would require an
additional appropriation to meet this obligation. 

Mr. Katin was asked if insurance is covered in the operating
costs.  The question related to whether there would be
additional liability or risk to the City with operating this
service.  Insurance is covered by Laidlaw in terms of
collision liability insurance.  Risk management insurance
coverage is to be determined by staff.  

Mr. Wershow said riders will not just be OSU students going
to bars but also those who work at late night businesses who
have no other way home.  It would need to be promoted to the
entire Corvallis community.  This is a one-year pilot
program which may be continued, if successful.  

It was asked why the OSU Shuttle isn’t being considered as a
transportation provider for this program.  Commissioner
Trelstad said the OSU Shuttle would be considered if demand
were not high enough to necessitate a CTS bus.  

Additional comments during the meeting are listed below.

! Describe the service as “regularly scheduled” rather
than “fixed-route”.

! Consider the public perception of using large buses
versus small buses depending on number of passengers.
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! Where would the origination point be - along 2  St. ornd

at 5  & Monroe, the Transit Center?th

! A request for $21,000 seems like a large amount to ask
of merchants.

! The service needs to address the needs of the south and
southwest parts of Corvallis in addition to the north
and northwest.

Ms. Rhoads reported that Commissioner Warloe is moving from
the area for a new job and commission members were
encouraged to wish him well.

VIII.Adjournment  

Commissioners Wilson and Friedt, respectively, moved and
seconded that the Commission approve adjournment.  The
motion passed unanimously.  

Future Meetings:
Wednesday, May 10, 2006, 8:15 a.m., Madison Avenue Meeting Room
Wednesday, June 14, 2006 8:15 a.m., Madison Avenue Meeting Room
Wednesday, July 12, 2006 8:15 a.m., Madison Avenue Meeting Room













Page 1

       CORVALLIS-BENTON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD MINUTES
     March 1, 2006 

Board Present Staff Present

Bonnie Helpenstell, Chair Carolyn Rawles-Heiser, Library Director

Hal Brauner Mary Finnegan, Adult Services Manager

Karin Frederick Carol Klamkin, Management Assistant

Phyllis Mix Teresa Landers, Deputy Library Director

Sandy Ridlington Mary Norman, Technical Services Manager

Mohammad Saeed

Mary Lee Seward

Cliff Trow,  Vice Chair 

Chuck W icks

Tom W ogaman

Excused Linda Modrell, Phoenix Ries, Eric

Teegarden

Summary of Discussion

Agenda Item Information Only Action/Recommendation

Call to Order x 7:33 p.m.

Visitors’ Propositions None 

Minutes: February 1, 2006  Approved as Revised

Library Board Packet x

Committee & Board Reports x

Director’s Report x

Library Division Managers’ Reports x

Information Sharing x

 Adjournment 8:37 p.m. April 5, 2006 

CONTENT OF DISCUSSION

I. CALL TO ORDER

Chair, Bonnie Helpenstell, called the meeting to order at 7:33 p.m.

II. VISITORS’ PROPOSITIONS

There were no visitors present.  

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Carolyn Rawles-Heiser noted changes in three sections of the minutes: 
• II. Demo: Library2Go – It was presented by Teresa Landers, not John Donel. 
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• V. Library Board Packet Questions and Comments – In the third paragraph, Mary Finnegan,
not Carolyn, replied to Phyllis’ question. 

• VIII. Library Division Managers’ Reports:  Extension Services – The plumbing problems at
Philomath were caused by the sewer not being reconnected after street work, not by a septic
system problem.

MOTION: Cliff Trow moved approval of the minutes as revised.  The motion was seconded by
Phyllis Mix and it carried unanimously. 

IV. LIBRARY BOARD PACKET QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS 

Phyllis wanted to know what the Even Start group is that toured the Library.  Teresa and Carolyn
replied that it is a group that works with Spanish-speaking families.  Mary Finnegan added that her staff
gave a tour to the mothers in the group, who also brought along some babies.  Carolyn noted that this
group was involved in our early efforts to bring more Latinos into the Library.

Bonnie commented that she enjoyed the recent display of vintage purses and wondered how well
the display cases are being used.  Carol Klamkin replied that the display cases are reserved most months
and new displays will be installed soon, including one that will include information about The Arc of
Benton County that will also have items in the Main Meeting Room.  Hal Brauner asked what type of
displays we encourage.  Carolyn explained that anyone can put up a display.  Hal suggested that we
contact the Historical Society if we have a vacancy.  Carolyn went on to explain that the cases are public
forum areas and that we do not censor a display in any way unless it is blatantly illegal.  She described an
issue in the past with a political display that was controversial.

V. COMMITTEE AND BOARD REPORTS

Friends of the Library:   Mary Lee Seward reported that Lois Malango’s term as president ends
in June, and that Corrine Gobeli and Cheryl Maze will co-chair.  New co-treasurers are Debbie Bell,
doing the accounts payable portion, and Phyllis Sartain, a CPA.  A publicity chair is still needed.  

The book sale collected $26,308, but about $3000 will be spent on rent and other expenses.  This
sale had the most books ever and there were many videos, which sold well.  There were fewer buyers
because there was less publicity. This year, Browsers Book Store couldn’t take the leftovers. On Sunday
afternoon, many books were sent to OSU for recycling.  However, two people from Philomath High
School took several boxes of history books. Mary Lee suggested that the schools be contacted to come at
the end to take the cheap books.  Bonnie noted that the high school library book budget is very small.
Mary Lee that the volunteers from the fraternities worked very hard on the sale.

Mary Lee also said that Leila Crawford reviewed the Friends’ policies at the meeting, that the
Library’s needs list will be submitted twice a year so that any revisions can be approved by the Friends,
and that Carolyn reported on recent book thefts.

Phyllis asked if there was any discussion about book sale attendees questioning the increase in
prices because she had several while she was cashiering. Mary Lee said she had been told that only about
five people asked about the prices. Phyllis also noted that a couple people wanted to know how many
books were Library discards and that she told them about 20%.  However, another volunteer worker told
them it was about 70%, which is incorrect.

Foundation Board: Cliff Trow reported that the Foundation hadn’t met since the last Board
meeting, however the Brookes solarium project is moving forward.  Carolyn added that the project was in
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the public comment period.  Cliff also reported that donations from the annual fund raiser have reached
about $21,000 so far.

VI. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Trustee Handbook: Carolyn passed out new handbooks for library trustees that are published by
the State Library.  Though some things in the book don’t apply to this board because it is an advisory
board, not a governing board, each member should keep it with their Board binders.  

Articles about Library2Go: Carolyn also routed two articles from the Sunday Oregonian and the
Tribune about Library2Go.  These articles didn’t make it into the Board packet.

Wireless Project: Carolyn said that testing is underway to find the best location to get the
strongest signal.  The first computer will be for staff and the public to see which public Internet computer
is going to be available next.  Then some wireless catalog computers will be installed.  Next fiscal year
the system will be available for the public from their own laptops.

Read Across America: Carolyn and Curtis Kiefer will be guest readers at Jefferson School for
Read Across America, which celebrates Dr. Seuss’ birthday.

New Chairs: Carolyn brought attention to the new chairs being used around the table and thanked
Mohammad Saeed for getting us in touch with Hewlett Packard’s surplus property program.  We received
tens of thousands of dollars worth of chairs, tables, workstations, and other furniture for the Circulation
workroom.

Materials Challenges: Carolyn reported that the Library has received two challenges to materials
that will be reviewed by Management Team tomorrow.  One is a video, Tipping the Velvet, a BBC
production.  The patron objected to it because she believed is was pornographic.  It portrays a lesbian
affair in Victorian England.  The other challenge is to the Sports Illustrated swimsuit issue.  The patron
complained about the cover, which pictures topless models.  It will be kept behind the desk until it is
reviewed, because this issue is often stolen.

Book Thefts: Carolyn reported that there were two theft incidents last week.  The first one was
reported in the GT crime reports section and involved a woman who claimed that someone stole her
identify to get a library card and then checked out $1000 worth of CDs.  Carolyn said the woman did not
let anyone know until she was contacted by the collection agency for the missing materials.  The woman
lives in Philomath so she contacted the Benton County Sheriff’s Department.  She claimed that her sister
had stolen her ID, gotten a library card, and checked out the CDs to sell for drugs.  Carolyn conceded that
it might be possible.

Carolyn went on to say that in the second incident, a different woman called to say that two men
were selling Library materials and were getting ready to leave town.  The staff person who took the call
thought it might be connected to the other incident and called the County deputy who was dealing with
that case.  Carolyn said the two men where identified by the woman.  One owes about $1750 worth of
materials and is in collection.  He had come in every few days over the course of a month and checked
out several large expensive books each time.  She stated that the other person’s books aren’t due yet, but
they are worth about $800.  The deputy took a list of the materials and found one of the items at Book
Bin.  Mary Finnegan called Browsers Books and alerted them to the problem.  Scott, from Browsers,
called back within 10 minutes to say that one of the men was there in the store trying to sell some of the
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books.  He was unable to stall the man, but got his license plate number when he left the books and fled. 
Carolyn said that the men were caught that evening. One had meth in his possession.

The Board continued to explore this topic in a lengthy discussion.  This was the information that
resulted: 

• The books were modified in a way that made it very difficult to tell they were library books. 
• The men are aged 48 and 32. 
• The City has insurance for thefts, but in this case the borrowers would be responsible.
• Book Bin has a large volume of books and it has been difficult for them to spot library books

even if they have a list of stolen materials.  Browsers has had better luck in identifying our
materials.  Mary Finnegan indicated that Book Bin’s owner and staff never got back to us a
few weeks ago when we had other stolen materials we were looking for.

• A property stamp inside books or embossing has been discussed with staff in the past, but not
implemented because of extra time needed to do the processing.  However, in light of these
recent thefts, stamps or embossing has become necessary.

• There is no limit to the number of items a patron can check out and the idea of profiling
people who check out a lot of expensive materials is unrealistic.  Many regular patrons check
out large numbers of items and are never a problem.  We don’t want to make rules that will
penalize the majority of our regular users.

• Although it wouldn’t make a difference in this case since the items were checked out
legitimately, the Library is implementing more preventative precautions including improving
materials security and inventorying sections of the collection.  The solution will probably be
multi-pronged, including changing our processing, keeping AV materials separate or
checking them out differently, and getting a more modern materials security system like
RFID (radio frequency identification).

• Teresa is currently doing a survey of Oregon libraries and others around the country to see
how they are handling theft of materials and how big a problem it is for them.  A reference
book on library security indicates that the average loss rate for books is about five percent
per year and up to 25 percent per year for AV materials.

• RFID is expensive to implement and it isn’t as effective with AV materials because CDs can
be stacked in such a way that the tags won’t be read by the scanner.  Also, the large targets
used on materials can easily be removed by thieves.

• The costs and benefits must be determined for any security system or policy changes.
• Public relations implications must also be considered.  The Library must do something about

this issue or it will be seen as very irresponsible by the public.
• It was suggested that the Board send letters to Browsers and Book Bin thanking them for

their help in recovering the stolen items.
• Items that are missing are only discovered if someone tries to put the item on hold because

we don’t do a regular inventory.  We will try to do a partial inventory soon.
• If we implement RFID, the Board will need to be prepared for controversy because there are

people who believe that it is dangerous or an invasion of privacy.

VII. LIBRARY DIVISION MANAGERS’ REPORTS

Youth Services:  Teresa reported for Curtis Kiefer who was at a workshop in Portland.  Librarian
Debbie Levy has resigned to stay home with her new baby.  Debbie was instrumental in developing
Zorro, the children’s catalog, and in expanding our programs to the Latino community.  A new self-check
machine will be installed in the children’s area this month. Preparation has begun on the 2006 Summer
Reading Program.  The theme is Paws, Claws, Scales and Tales.



Page 5

 Extension Services:  Teresa reported that Richard Turi, the architect who was working on the
study for a new Monroe library, has backed out of the project.  He is based out of North Bend and is now
too busy with other projects to travel to the Willamette Valley.  They are looking for a local architect. 
Hal suggested Dick Bryant who has done several local community projects, including the Boys and Girls
Club and part of the Riverfront project.

Adult Services:  Mary Finnegan reported that she, Curtis and Cliff attended an Oregon tourism
think tank where they learned about marketing techniques and participated in the committee starting
work on Corvallis’ 2007 150  birthday celebration.th

Circulation:  Mary Norman reported for Lori Hilterbrand who is on medical leave.  A long-time
shelver, Kevin Goodrich, has resigned to move back East and pursue a career in his field.  A new touch-
screen monitor was installed at the Circulation desk and staff are learning to use it. 

Administration:  Carol Klamkin had nothing to report.  She was taking minutes.
 
VIII. INFORMATION SHARING  

Phyllis shared that in a discussion at her book group, one member said she could no longer use
the Library because she can’t find the information she needs.  The computer system is hard for her to use. 
Phyllis said that some of our older users aren’t comfortable and wondered what we can do to help this
population.  We seem to be focusing on newer technology and losing these people.  Hal suggested that a
volunteer could help show them how to use the system. Teresa said that we offer one-on-one classes at
the branches for people to get help on any aspect of computers or our catalog system.  Bonnie wondered
if it is more of an issue of comfort level of using computers.  Phyllis said that the difference between her
home Mac mouse and the Library mouse is difficult. Her friends just aren’t coming in any more.  Mary
Finnegan said she and her staff are trying to do more slow walk-throughs of the building, which seems to
encourage people to stop them and ask questions.  Cliff commented that a central place on the first floor
is needed where people can go for help.  Carolyn responded that the Ask Here Desk is just that place, but
it doesn’t always have someone there.  She also said that we still buy reference books and many people
may be more comfortable with them than with the computer databases.  Teresa suggested that we need to
do a better job of marketing our reference services.  Phyllis requested an article in the newsletter and
better signs.  Carolyn indicated that we would love to have the staff to go to book clubs or other groups to
talk about our services, but that type of outreach (adult programming) was cut during our service
reductions.  She said we are trying hard to balance traditional services with new technology, but our staff
is limited.  Bonnie suggested that Phyllis ask her book club friends what they want and what they think
might help them get back to using the Library.  Let them know that the Library is concerned and wants
them to use our services.  Karin Frederick indicated that the City has been looking for ways that the
Library and Parks and Recreation can collaborate, and the computer center and classes at the Senior
Center might be one way to do that.  Carolyn indicated that the subcommittee to followup on the Council
Goals project will be meeting soon.  She also reported that a patron who had recently been turned over to
collections for outstanding items complained that we didn’t have enough technology such as pod casts
and streaming video.  So he wanted just the opposite of Phyllis’ friends.  Carolyn did tell him that we
now offer downloadable audio books.

IX. ADJOURNMENT   

The meeting was adjourned at 8:37 p.m.

NEXT MEETING:  April 5, 2006 at 7:30 p.m.  Woman’s Club Board Room 



CITY OF CORVALLIS 
MINUTES OF THE OPEN SPACE ADVISORY COMMISSION 

APRIL 11, 2006
 
Attendance  
Mary Buckman 
Paul A. Hohenlohe 
Margie Powell 
Janine Salwasser, Chair 
Philip Schary 
Cary B. Stephens, Vice Chair 
 
Absent/Excused 
Charlie Tomlinson, Council Liaison 
Terri Valiant 
 

 
Staff 
Julee Conway, Director 
Mark Lindgren, Recorder 
Jackie Rochefort, Park Planner 
 
Visitors 

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION 
 

 
Agenda Item 

 
Information  
Only 

 
Held for  
Further  
Review 

 
Recommendations 

 
II. Visitors’ Propositions 

          
         X 

 
 

 
 

 
III. Approval of Minutes 

          
         X 

  

 
IV. Member Updates 
 
 

 
          
         X 

  

 
V. Staff Reports 
 

 
         X 

  

 
VI. CIP Project Idea Discussion 

  
     X 

 

 
VII. Vision Refinement 

 
         X 

  
 

 
VIII. Goals and Objectives 
Refinement 
 

 
         X 

  

 
IX. Adjourn           X 

 
The next Open Space Advisory Commission meeting will be on  
May 9, 2006, 4:00 p.m. at the OSU library. 
 

 
CONTENT OF DISCUSSION 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: Vice Chair Janine Salwasser called the meeting to order at 4:06 p.m.  
 

II. VISITORS’ PROPOSITIONS. None. 
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III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES. It was observed that the City Council meeting referenced on page 2, 
second paragraph, under Staff Reports, should be in March, not May. Also, in the second paragraph of 
page 4, under Vision Discussion, the word updated should be updating. Cary Stephens moved and Mary 
Buckman seconded to approve March 14, 2006 minutes as revised; motion passed. 
 

IV. MEMBER UPDATES. Salwasser related meeting with the leadership members of Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board (PRAB) and Open Space Commission. They discussed issues such as how to better 
collaborate with the PRAB, creation of a comprehensive map, ways of increasing administrative 
efficiencies, developing an outreach strategy and sharing an action plan (including expediting 
management plan development). Another meeting is scheduled for this afternoon. 
 
Stephens reported trail building work is continuing at Timberhill open space; gravelling of the section 
closest to the 29th Street entrance has been completed. Staff Volunteer Coordinator Steve McGettigan has 
arranged for Benton County Correction work crews to do further work, which will complement volunteer 
work there. The intent is to get connections between Timberhill and Chip Ross Park and MacDonald 
Forest. Director Conway added that more extensive improvements to the site will probably be put on hold 
until development plans for private adjacent lands come forward; also, new adjacent street and sidewalk 
alignment will drive trail placement in the future on the property owned and being developed by Legend 
Homes.  
 

V. STAFF REPORTS. Director Conway reported that members should receive a memo from the mayor and 
the City Council regarding April 13 and April 20 hearings on a proposed telecommunications service tax. 
The Administrative Services Committee should forward a recommendation May 4; the City Council will 
likely consider it at its second May meeting. Those funds would initially be dedicated for three to five 
years to support fire vehicle reserves; when those are established, funds could then support as-yet 
unidentified City services, including Parks and Rec services.  
 
She related the Budget Commission will meet May 4 and May 11 to finalize budget proposals. The 
commission in March supported energy efficiency funding for Osborn Aquatic Center and a one-time 
$6,500 allocation for operation plans (largely related to sustainability) specific to Parks and Recreation 
sites, including open spaces. She clarified these will not replace the full-fledged management plans still 
needed for many parks and open spaces. 
 
A City Council subcommittee will meet in May to consider the results of the joint boards and 
commissions meetings and develop a list of firm recommendations to forward to the City Council. The 
group will determine what could be done immediately and which proposals need more work and 
resources. She added the group would like the Council to develop a goal for the next Council that 
specifically relates to parks and Recreation.  
 
Director Conway reported that the Benton County Rails with Trails effort (Corvallis to Albany) did not 
receive a hoped-for grant for planning work. Benton County Public Works is now applying for another 
grant and will know by the end of May whether it has made it through the preliminary review of the grant. 
If so, they would like another letter of support from OSAC. This is for the FY 09-11 Federal 
Transportation Agency grant funding, for $1.2 million, would mostly cover engineering and permitting.  
 
Director Conway related she wrote a resolution based on the PRAB recommendation regarding the 
Corvallis to the Sea Trail proposal that went to the last City Council meeting. The City Council slightly 
modified it, adopted it at a recent meeting. The resolution will be used by project proponents to support 
getting easements from private and public landowners to forward the process.  
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Park Planner Jackie Rochefort highlighted the April 29 Greenbelt Land Trust public meeting at Adair 
Village; one of the speakers, David Hulse, will focus on Willamette Valley Futures; Director Conway will 
also present.  
 

VI. CIP PROJECT IDEA DISCUSSION. Director Conway noted that while this year’s Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP) process will be similar to previous years’, the PRAB will use this year to re-
examine the decision criteria, especially given the number of new members on department boards and 
commissions generally. She reminded the commission that current Phil Schary is the primary 
representative to the CIP subcommittee, with Paul Hohenlohe being the alternative. Salwasser 
volunteered to be the second alternative. 
 
Planner Rochefort highlighted the CIP calendar. The department manages its own section of the CIP 
process. The Public Works Department manages the overall process, sending out solicitations for 
suggestions from the public, beginning in April, which the department gets in late June; the cutoff for 
submission of ideas is in July. Boards and commissions can also submit project-funding requests.  
 
The CIP subcommittee, with representatives from all department board and commissions, generally meets 
twice: in July and August. It forwards its recommendations to the PRAB for its review and approval at its 
August meeting; the PRAB recommendations are forwarded within a week for review by Public Works 
and the City Manager and Finance Director.  
 
Director Conway noted that in order for projects to go into the 07-08 CIP, they must have identified 
funding. Other projects with less well identified funding can be put further out in the five-year document 
or be put on the pending list. She cautioned that often the pace of projects is very deliberate: the Crystal 
Lake Sports Fields took nine or ten years; the skate park project took about three years. Also, every 
capital project includes a category for operating impacts; staff needs some lead-time to be able to estimate 
those costs (operating funds generally come from property tax dollars).  
 
Rochefort cautioned that many trail projects are valued at less than the minimum $10,000 required for 
CIP projects. Also, larger trail projects that would likely cost more than $10,000 require crossings of 
private property and so require lead-time to negotiate with property owners to determine whether they are 
interest in selling land or easements. Every year $50,000 is set aside from System Development Charges 
to fund acquisition of open space; while it is not large, it would allow purchase of options, easements or 
to fund an appraisal. (It does not accumulate from year to year).  
 
Stephens asked if improvement of an entire trail system within a specific open space would qualify for 
CIP funding; Rochefort confirmed that it would. Director Conway stated that CIP funding is already 
designated in this fiscal year for Mary’s River Natural Park to evaluate, with resource agencies, if a 
bridge can be built across Mary’s River. From that, some cost estimates could be developed. A site plan 
for Owens Farm open space is also underway in this fiscal year. Work is also underway with consultants 
for planning and greenway permits for improvements for the North Riverfront Park area and Willamette 
Park. Stephens volunteered to be the OSAC liaison for stakeholder groups for both areas, since he is such 
a heavy user of the river.  
 
Rochefort pointed out that relatively few open space projects are ready to go in the next fiscal year. 
However, getting a project on paper does help get a project to happen eventually. Stephens stated that he 
saw the lack of management plans for many open space areas as a significant hurdle; without them, it is 
very hard to propose CIP projects for them. Because of this, he stressed the importance of expediting 
development of management plans. Director Conway noted that since there is already a management plan 
for Owens Farm, it would be a good place to suggest CIP projects.  
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Salwasser suggested funding the City piece of the proposed Ponderosa to Oak Creek trail. Director 
Conway noted that it is on the list; however, most of the trail is outside City limits, so it is probably a City 
Public Works project, since it is not Park property. Rochefort added that the City section is so short that it 
probably would fall under the $10,000 minimum; the impetus probably needs to come from the County, 
who owns most of the land, along with OSU; once the County and OSU built a trail on their land, it 
would force the City to complete its section.  
 
Rochefort suggested a joint project with the Greenbelt Land Trust (GBLT) at Owens Farm for an 
integrated trails system, which would have interpretive information; the group concurred. In some cases 
there, a trail would require a boardwalk; she would have to evaluate the project. Salwasser noted that 
ODOT would look askance at access there from Highway 99W. Director Conway replied that the site 
plan work would address this and other issues; then the Planning Department could address road, sewer 
and other issues. Stephens added that the GBLT is interested in such a project; the only question is a 
where and when. Rochefort added a consultant should begin work on the site plan by the end of April. 
Director Conway added that both OSAC and the PRAB had developed recommendations for Owens 
Farm.  
 
Salwasser cited discussion of doing management plans for adjoining similar areas. Rochefort suggested 
that if a bridge connects the two areas, it could be logical for Mary’s River Natural Park and Caldwell 
open space management plans to be done together. The group concurred on a Mary’s River/Caldwell 
connection, with trails, signage, ADA accessibility and tying management plans together. Rochefort 
suggested considering a multimodal path.  
 
Director Conway related that the department did not get a grant for expanding the parking lot at the Oak 
Creek trailhead of Bald Hill. She is discussing downsizing the project with the County; an adjacent 
property owner has indicated willingness to help, as well. The very linear site is constrained by the nearby 
stream and the road.   
 
Phil Schary suggested pursuing a Kiger Island trail connection, south of Rivergreen Avenue, where Dry 
Creek crosses Hwy 99W; he opined it would be a good entryway. Rochefort pointed out that the 3rd Street 
median project now under construction will include a planted, signed gateway at Kiger island Drive. 
 
Salwasser suggested pursuing developing Herbert connections; it could be discussed during the 
upcoming tour. Schary added that a trail is needed between Herbert and Avery Park.  
 
Stephens asserted that given the increasing popularity of canoeing and kayaking, and given the 
completion of the upstream Willamette Water Trail, Corvallis needs a place where those boaters could 
stop and camp, such as at the campground at Willamette Park. He suggested Water Trail rest spots, 
launching and take-out areas and facilities at Willamette Park and north riverfront.  
 
Salwasser suggested that given Legend Homes adjacent development, Witham Hill Natural Park trail 
connections and interpretive signage should be developed. Stephens agreed, noting that the park will be 
very heavily used once the development is built. There is an informal trail system there now. Rochefort 
cautioned that unless the system is comprehensively planned there, with paved or boardwalk sections and 
interpretive signage and picnic facilities, it would probably come in under the $10,000 minimum. 
Salwasser added that the developer would likely be able to help fund some of that development. Director 
Conway cautioned that while it is anticipated the developer will donate additional acreage, including a 
wetland area, detailed planning should await the developer’s submission of a development plan. She 
noted the developers have indicated they want to develop a management plan in concert with the City.  
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Stephens asked about the status of the barn at MLK, Jr. Park. Rochefort replied that it was in an out year 
in the CIP; funding for barn restoration is very difficult to find. He asked about the Bald Hill Barn. 
Director Conway replied that it was in the restoration process now, through maintenance activities.  
 
Stephens noted that many properties have fir that must be thinned. Salwasser added that Beazell Forest 
funded much of their education center there with timber harvesting. She asked if the City could do the 
same. Director Conway responded that would depend on what the City Council chooses to do with the 
watershed plan which is currently under review. Rochefort added that thinning of firs would almost 
certainly not come under the CIP process, regardless of cost. Thinning alone is a management issue.  
 
Stephens suggested packaging a number of parts of a Timberhill/Chip Ross Trail Plan Development. 
He noted that a large enough plan could avoid taking gravel costs from the operating budget, decreasing 
maintenance costs over the long term. 
 
CIP Project Brainstorm List:  
 
1. Owens Farm integrated trails system. 
2. Mary’s River/Caldwell connection. 
3. Kiger Island trail connection. 
4. Herbert connections. 
5. Water Trail rest spots, launching and take-out areas and facilities at Willamette Park and north 
riverfront. 
6. Witham Hill Natural Park trail connections and interpretive signage. 
7. Timberhill/Chip Ross Trail Plan Development. 
 
Salwasser stated the group needed at a future meeting to prioritize the list that it had just brainstormed. 
Rochefort pointed out the commission would need to finalize its recommendations by its June meeting.  
 
In group discussion regarding the May 9 open space tour, there was consensus to accept the GBLT 
invitation to include some GBLT properties along Muddy Creek, as well as Herbert. Schary suggested 
touring Caldwell, too. Stephens suggested touring from around 3-6 p.m. or 4-7 p.m. Several members 
spoke in favor of the opportunity to make connections with PRAB members. Stephens related that GBLT 
Director Karleen McCabe had recommended starting at Finley. Director summarized the tour tentatively 
included Finley, Buchanan, Herbert and Caldwell over several hours; she will discuss it at the PRAB 
meeting next week.  
 

VII. VISION REFINEMENT. Salwasser asked whether the new vision statement could be inserted into the 
new brochure; Director Conway said the deadline was in three weeks.  
 
There was consensus to adopt Paul Hohenlohe’s distributed, group-edited draft OSAC Vision Statement 
with a slightly modified opening sentence, using only that first sentence in the brochure: 
 
“Corvallis Open Space Vision…a continuous, ecologically functional network of natural areas that 
is integrated within the regional environment. This system of open spaces protects a diversity of 
natural, cultural and recreational resources, including land and waterways, for the use and enjoyment by 
current and future generations. It forms part of the working landscape that benefits everyone and is 
managed by a partnership of public, private and nonprofit stakeholders”. 
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Director Conway related that she is exploring with the graphic artist the possibility of combining the 
Open Space and general Parks brochures; the artist is estimating the cost. The map now hanging in the 
lobby would be the base map; it can be more easily updated in the future. She said the Trails and Dogs 
Off-Leash brochures will be kept as separate brochures.  
 

VIII. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES REFINEMENT. Salwasser suggested more collaborative effort with the 
PRAB, focusing on areas where the two groups’ interest overlap and how they could become more 
effective by working together. 
 
There was consensus to place “Explore Development and Promotion of the Ponderosa/Oak Creek Trail” 
as the new Task #4, under Goal 1, Objective B; Salwasser suggested making it Priority B and volunteered 
for the task.  
 
Schary advocated a pedestrian link along Highway 20 to the County’s Hyak Park. Rochefort responded 
that that would be more of an ODOT project. Director Conway added that the proposed Rails with Trails 
Corvallis to Albany project would make a similar link.  
 

IX. ADJOURN. The meeting adjourned at 6:06 P.M. 
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Present
Jim Fairchild
Robert Griffiths, Vice-Chair
David Hamby, Chair
Frank Morris
Walt Schmidt

Absent        
Hal Brauner, City Council
George Brown

Staff
Tom Penpraze, Public Works
Steve Rogers, Public Works
Mike Hinton, Public Works

Visitors
Nicole Strong, Commissioner Appointee
Scott Ferguson, Trout Mountain
Mark Miller, Trout Mountain
Frank Davis, Siuslaw National Forest

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION

Agenda Item
Infor-
mation
Only

Held for
Further
Review

Recommendations

I. Introductions X

II. Approval of March 21, 2006
Minutes

Approved

III. Broad View of the Watershed X

IV. Discuss Alternative Stewardship
Pathways X

V. Peer Review Team Commission approved list of team members.

VI. Begin Review of Issues N/A

VII. Other Business X

VIII. Public Comment Period N/A

I. Introductions

Introductions of Commissioners, staff and visitors were made. 

II. Approval of March 21, 2006 Minutes

The March 21, 2006 minutes were approved. 
  

III. Broad View of the Watershed

The consultants have spent time at the watershed evaluating the condition of the stands.  

Similarities in past histories were found among all the stands.  The consultants referred back
to the Forest Service’s watershed analysis which talked about general history in the area.
All stands that were observed have a substantial component of older trees which have a 300-
400 year-old age class.  In some places, these old trees are very widely scattered.  Almost
all the trees have fire scars or charred bark.  This is consistent with data that shows the
stands have a history of frequent, low-intensity fires.  The middle-aged stands were
harvested in 1920-1940 when the dominant practice was a modified clear-cut and burning
of the area to regenerate natural fir.  The younger stands, 20-50 year-old stands, were clear-
cut and often burned and then replanted.  This resulted in a heavily populated Douglas fir
forest in the younger two classes.  The historic stands are much denser than 200 years ago.
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In the plantations, the common practice was to clear-cut,   plant dense fir .There is little
evidence of follow-up brush control and there was no evidence of stands which had been
commercially thinned.  

The middle-aged class has 50-100 year-old stands.  There are some residual trees which
were too small or defective at the time to be utilized.  The gaps are more variable than the
plantations and the regeneration was generally very good.  

In all age classes of stands, there was very little woody debris on the ground and very few
snags or rotten logs.  The stands have been very stable for a long time but they are changing.
The older stands are quite variable.  There is not a lot of cedar hemlock to be found.  

Mr. Miller was asked about soil quality.  He said the south side road cuts contained a
reddish, high-quality soil.  The south side of Rock Creek is rocky soil on the tops of the
ridges.  The north side contains a lot of surface rock associated with the open stands.  Some
of the best older stands, where there are 200-300 year-old trees are on the north side on
some of the poorest soil.  This is because there are so few of the larger trees per acre that
the stands are able to remain stable.  There was very little evidence of root rot and “blow
down” debris.  

The consultants were asked if the watershed is in such a state of disrepair that it will take
a major undertaking to fix.  Mr. Miller said there is a large number of healthy stands with
vigorous growth.  There is some evidence of snow damage in some of the dense, young
stands.  The desired future condition is to grow a fairly old forest in some parts of the
property, as stated in the Request for Proposal.  This is not typical in the forest industry.
The current standard is to grow 100-150 year old forests but how to recreate a 300-400 year
old stand is still somewhat unknown.  

The consultants were asked if there are any areas of concerns in the young stands where the
crown has been sufficiently reduced that there might be a danger of survival for the
remaining trees.  Mr. Ferguson answered the trees are growing so much in height each year
that thinning is effective in alleviating the short crowns.  By regaining thirty feet of crown
in tree height, 50% of crown can be regained within ten years.  

The consultants were asked if it is possible to determine if trees have been affected by more
than one fire episode.  Mr. Miller said it is difficult to determine the date of a particular fire
scar.  The bigger trees are a variety of ages.  Research shows many multiple fire events.  

Mr. Miller said the watershed’s road network is in very good shape.  The Franklin Ridge
road could be used on a temporary basis instead of being rebuilt to its previous standard. 

IV. Discuss Alternative Stewardship Pathways

The three pathways were each defined by their given characteristics.  The difference among
them was mainly in the amount of activity.  The “Maximize Habitat” option was renamed
“Low Intervention”.  This pathway would have the least amount of activity and be
characterized by  young stands to improve conditions, improve diversity, and promote more
structure. Thinnings would be characterized by variable densities. 

This second pathway would involve more intervention in the middle age stands but stay out
of the older stands.  The middle age stands will need to be thinned to promote and preserve
some of the current diversity.  

The “Pragmatic” approach would be an actively managed forest outside the current reserves.
There may be some exchange of lands where high risk areas would be created.  The older
forests would be thinned where it’s compatible with wildlife habitat to promote the habitat.
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There would be regeneration cuts in possibly both the younger aged stands.  Though not
high-intensity forestry, fairly active forestry would take place which would yield a lot more
harvest activity and disturbance.  Restoration activity would be done with a low-intervention
approach.  

Mr. Ferguson said Dick Brainerd, the consultants’ plant expert, is very interested in looking
at the effects of the various approaches on plant species.  Mr. Ferguson was asked about
harvest levels on the “Blended” pathway being listed as “+ or - 50%”.  He said it was a
measure of what may be acquired by thinning the stands.  

The consultants were asked how the different harvest levels may impact current riparian
zones.  Mr. Miller answered they are waiting for analysis of the riparian areas and the fish
resources; it is too early to have the data.  Riparian areas tend to be dominated by alder, the
short-lived trees.  Other than sediment, one of the biggest threats to the streams would be
landslides in high-risk areas.  Infrequent landslides into streams are actually a healthy process
as long as trees are involved.  Therefore, it is important to not cut heavily in a landslide-
prone area.  

Mr. Ferguson said the consultants looked at risks for each of the three pathways.  Some other
risks not listed in the guiding principles are social risks such as how supportive the public
will be toward a pathway.  Climate change is another risk.  With current trends of warmer
and drier weather, it is important to determine how different stand conditions will be suited
to the risks.  No one pathway stands out over the others in terms of being high or low risk
across the board.  The “Blended” pathway is more complex in terms of having the public
understand and gain trust.  

Mr. Ferguson said chances of fire episodes are greatly increased when the majority of the
stands are younger stands.  The hardwoods are among the best protectors against fire.  Also,
thinning would help lessen the demand for water among the trees.  

Mr. Miller said he would feel more comfortable presenting a preferred pathway to the public
rather than presenting the three pathways.  He pointed out there are still a couple of months
in which to decide on a preferred pathway.  

V. Peer Review Team

The consultants reviewed the list of suggested persons for the peer review team. They
attempted to get a broad array of expertise and have a reasonable number of members with
whom to work.  Ideally, the consultants prefer to have ten-twelve members on the team.
Those agreeing to serve include: John Bliss, Marys River Watershed Council; Dr. Kim
Nelson, OSU Fish and Wildlife; Dr. Paul Adams; John Tappeiner Al Kitzman, Benton
County Parks & Rec; John Berry, Sierra Club member; Rana Foster, public member; Frank
Davis, Suislaw National Forest; Eric Forsman; and Gary Springer, former Commissioner.

Ms. Strong suggested Jennifer Weikel, an employee of ODWF, as a possible team member
to be considered.  

VI. Begin Review of Issues

Mr. Ferguson said the consultants will delve into policy issues in detail within the next few
meetings.  

VII. Other Business

There will be an additional Commission meeting Tuesday, June 6 .th

The Commission was asked about its interest in a field trip to the watershed.  This trip would
not be in lieu of any of the scheduled Commission meetings.  The Commission unanimously
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agreed to the trip on May 16th, before the next scheduled Commission meeting.  Mr. Rogers
said Public Works would provide a van from City Hall to ferry Commissioners to the tour.

VIII. Public Comment Period

No comments from the public.

Next meetings: May 16, 2006, Tour of Watershed and Commission meeting at Rock Creek         
               Treatment Plant, 5:30 p.m.

   June 6, 2006, Madison Avenue Meeting Room, 5:30 p.m.

                           June 20, 2006, Madison Avenue Meeting Room, 5:30 p.m.



MEMORANDUM

To City Council Members
0j

w

Mayor HelenM BergqFrom

Date May 10 2006

Subject Confirmation ofAppointment to Commission for Martin Luther King Jr

As you know at our last regular meeting I appointed the following person to the Commission for
Martin Luther King Jr with the term ofoffice indicated

Dana Alexander

24194 SW Decker Avenue

Corvallis OR 97333

Telephone 9298888

Term expires June 30 2006

I ask that you confirm this appointment at our next Council meeting May 15 2006

1035



MEMORANDUM

To City Council Members

From Helen M Berg Mayor w
Date May 10 2006

Subject Vacancy on Parks and Recreation Advisory Board

Allyson Sandago has announced her resignation from the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board
due to her family relocating out of Corvallis Allyson s term on the Board expires June 30 2007

I would appreciate your nominations of citizens to fill this vacancy

1034
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SENIOR CENTER/CHINTIMINI PARK 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT SCHEDULE

Date Event

2006
June 14 Park & Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB) receives update Senior

Center/ Chintimini Park project; discusses bond projects        
               strategy/alternatives for inclusion with Senior Center/Park project

August 17 Park & Recreation Advisory Board makes final advisory
recommendations on bond projects as part of its annual CIP update

September Human Services Committee discusses PRAB recommendations as
it relates to Senior Center/Chintimini Park project funding

November Capital Improvement Commission discusses bond funding
recommendations as part of its routine annual CIP update process

Nov-Dec City Council review and approve strategies/alternatives and
determines final projects to be included on the ballot

2007
February 20 City Council considers and approves Ballot Title 

February 20 City Council adopts resolution forwarding the measure to the voters
on the May 15, 2007 ballot, and directing Assistant to City
Manager/City Recorder to publish notice of municipal election

 
February 20 Assistant to City Manager/City Recorder publishes “Notice of

Receipt of Ballot Title”

February 21 Voters’ Pamphlet article (Explanatory Statement) to  HSC

February 28 Deadline to file dissatisfaction of ballot title with Circuit Court

March 2 If necessary, Circuit Court holds hearing & decides on ballot title

March 5 City Council considers/approves Voters’ Pamphlet article
(Explanatory Statement)

March 15 Last day for Assistant to City Manager/City Recorder to file SEL
and Explanatory Statement with County Elections
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April 27 Explanatory Statement published in “the City”

April 28 & May 12 Assistant to City Manager/City Recorder publishes “Notice of
Municipal Election” and post in four locations

Early May  Ballots in mailboxes

May 15 Election

June 18 Assistant to City Manager/City Recorder prepares Abstract of Votes
and Canvass of Votes to Council

Contingent upon May 2007 bond approval:

July-Dec Complete final design details plans and specifications; secure
permitting approvals

 
2008
Jan-Mar Project bidding process

April Agreement negotiations; contract preparation planning
 
May Under Construction

 
May 08- 
Dec 09 Construction(Bldg & Park)

2010
Late Spring  Project Dedication and Fully Operational
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CORVALLIS
ENHANCING COMMUNITYLIVABILITY

2006 04

REPORTING PERIOD APRIL 2006

I ORGANIZATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

The League of American Bicyclists presented to Corvallis its Gold Level awarp
designating Corvallis as one of the top five bicycle friendly communities in the
nation

Corvallis again received the Tree City USA designation and qualified for the

Extra Growth Award for the second consecutive year

II MAYOR S DIARY

April meetings included one with the Council President Vice President and City
Manager the Council s quarterly self evaluation meeting the quarterly meeting of
Benton County Tax Jurisdictions and with the Chairofthe Benton County Board of
Commissioners Other meetings included the League of Oregon Cities LaC

Budget Committee and two meetings of the full LaC Board one in Redmond and

one in Salem to select the new LaC Executive Director I met individually with a

local candidate for State Representative and with a person interested in how

Corvallis government works

I attended Martin Luther King Ill s speech My Father s Dream My Mission City
Manager Nelson s book review at the Library a Van Buren Street Bridge open
house a Telecommunications Service Tax Proposal public forum an Oregon State
University OSU climate change outreach workshop and fund raising events for
Cornerstone Associates and the Boys and Girls Club

It was my privilege to cut a ribbon at the opening of Rockin Ricky s Soda Fountain
be included in a fund raising video forthe Pastega House help break ground for the
CoHo Corvallis Neighborhood Housing Services CoHousing project cut a wire to
activate the Corvallis Wireless Fidelity WiFi Network proclaim Holocaust Days of
Remembrance at OSU and welcome the National Collegiate Athletic Association

NCAA Women s Gymnastics Championships to Corvallis
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III PARKS AND RECREATION

A Department Highlights

Administration Planning
Continued preparation of the summer recreation program registration event

May 6th at Corvallis High School and made improvements to streamline the
process

Aquatic Center

Hosted the fourth annual April Pool s Day which included a cannonball
contest free throw shooting contest plastic egg hunt in the water kayak
rides penny toss rescue scenario and SCUBA exploration
Hosted the State Masters Swimming Championships April 21st through
23rd which brought 500 people to Corvallis for three days

Parks

Filled five positions for the seasonal parks worker recruitment The Parks
Operations staff is currently at 22 employees
Volunteers worked on a variety ofprojects Starbucks employees worked on

a cleanup at Willamette Park April 22nd Staff worked with volunteers and
donor David Sheehan on the installation of playground equipment at Lions
Shelter in Avery Park OSU Peace Jam worked on a landscape cleanup at

Avery Park

Benton County Corrections Work Crew worked on the Timberhill Open
Space Trail system The trail completes the connection to Chip Ross Park

The Starker Community Garden project is nearing completion The project
is on schedule and could be ready for early May
Parks operations and maintenance is in full swing with mowing landscaping
and shelter preparations for reservations

Riverfront Commemorative Park has three new benches and two trash

receptacles in the Jackson Plaza to help delineate between the multi modal

path and the activity around the fountain The Jackson Plaza Fountain is

operating with new water patterns this season

Recreation

Approximately 450 people participated in the Procession ofSpecies Parade

along the Willamette Riverfront

Began registration for Spring Summer adult sports
Submitted a grant request to Oregon Recreation and Parks seeking funding
for replacement of lights and American with Disabilities Act improvements for
the softball field at Pioneer Park
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Senior Center

Sponsored a Medicare and Your Medications discussion April 8th
The Trips and Outdoor Program offered fun excursions to the Crab Feed and
Wooden Boat Show in Newport along with hikes to Takena Park and Sweet
Creek Falls
The Tax Aide program ended April 13th This year program attendance
increased 25 serving 1 674 people at three sites in Corvallis and
Philomath This represented 2466 hours of donated tax preparer time

The Senior Center is gathering input on the concept of a name change for

the Center

IV POLICE

A Department Highlights

Officers investigated 1 900 incidents this month and made 40 arrests for Driving
Under the Influence of Intoxicants DUll Following are the highlights

Detectives arrested a 21 year old woman on 53 counts of Negotiating a Bad
Check The woman wrote checks to numerous businesses in Corvallis and

other cities Investigation is continuing
Officers and detectives investigated an April 1 Oth bank robbery at Umpqua
Bank A lone male suspect robbed the bank of an undisclosed amount of

money Investigation is continuing
Detectives arrested a 44 year old woman on 11 counts of Negotiating a Bad

Check and one count of Theft and a 36 year old man on 52 counts of

Negotiating a Bad Check and one count of Theft The husband and wife

wrote numerous checks on two different closed accounts at businesses

located in Corvallis Philomath and Albany Investigation is continuing
K 9 Officer Harvey and Xar had 12 applications including two building
searches three area searches and two tracks Xar had two captures during
April six captures this year and 16 career captures
Officers responded to a house fire in the 1400 block of NW Polk Avenue
The team located two residents inside the house entered the burning
building and evacuated the residents to safety
Officers captured a large and aggressive Rottweilerwith the assistance of its
owner who was charged with Unprovoked Attack and Dangerous Animal at

Large The dog was impounded
Detectives arrested a 22 year old man on Burglary in the Second Degree
Aggravated Theft in the First Degree Trespass in the Second Degree and

two counts of Unauthorized Entry into a Motor Vehicle The charges stem

from a burglary at the Corvallis City Shops during March

Officers assisted Fire personnel with a suicidal man who barricaded himself

in a Hewlett Packard H P storage closet The man confessed to using
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Liquid Nitrogen in an attempt to remove all oxygen from the room and

suffocate himself
Officers responded to a call regarding two men who entered the Circle Kat

NW Ninth Street and NW Grant Avenue and threatened to shoot the

attendant if he did not give them the money in the cash register Four

suspects were located in a vehicle attempting to flee the city Officers

stopped the vehicle and charged three of the occupants with Robbery II

Theft II and Disorderly Conduct
Officers broke a vehicle window and removed from within the vehicle a

juvenile female who had indicated that she wanted to commit suicide The

female had grabbed a knife from the glove compartment of the vehicle and
threatened to cut herwrists

Investigations Division personnel continued to work with investigators from

Oregon State Police the Benton County DistrictAttorney s Office the Benton

County Sheriff s Office the Federal Bureau of Investigation FBI and the
National Center for Missing and Exploited Children on the Brooke Wilberger
missing person case

Tactical Action Plans TAP
In response to citizen complaints a TAP was implemented regarding
vehicles violating traffic laws in the vicinity of NW Monroe Avenue and

NW Sixth Street The specific complaints included speeding estimates of
vehicles traveling 35 miles per hour and continuous crosswalk violations
with pedestrians nearly being struck by vehicles

9 1 1 Center Calls for Service
The Corvallis Regional Communications Center dispatched 2 997 calls for

police fire and medical assistance this month as follows

B Other

Detectives attended the Seventh Annual Child Abuse Summit and Family
Violence Conference
Officers Detectives and staff attended Customer Service Training
presented by Redmond Police Chief Lane Roberts at the Corvallis Benton

County Public Library
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investigations Division personnel conducted presentations for the Citizen
Police Academy on Crime Analysis Identity Theft Fraud and Scams
Affecting Senior Citizens
K 9 Officer Harvey and Xar performed 20 hours of training during April while
attending the Oregon Police Canine Association Spring Conference in
LaGrande
Recruit Officer Lee resigned
Recruit Officer Stahl was hired and is participating in the Field Training
Officer Program
Sergeant Mann conducted a training forthe Downtown Corvallis Association
with approximately 50 attendees Topics included vandalism shoplifting
harassment by transients and other city ordinances including smoking
Officer Cox presented a Fatal Vision program to the bi monthly Tavern
Owners meeting
Officer McCall attended the annual DUll conference
Greek Liaison Officers participated in the Greek Award dinner April 14th
Five new patrol vehicles were set up and fielded

v PUBLIC WORKS

A Department Highlights

Administration Division
Attended a workshop on Sustainability in Facilities Management which

included sustainability advancements in city infrastructure systems and a

meeting sponsored by the OSU Institute for Natural Resources on impacts
from climate change
Staffed a booth at the H P Earth Day Fairconcerning the City s sustainability
program
The Sustainability Steering Committee began work on short term goals for

reducing energy consumption in buildings and fuel use in the fleet

equipment

Engineering Division

Projects currently in the design phase Dixon Oak Creek Fish Barrier
Removal Taylor Water Treatment Plant High Service Pumps and Surge
Tank and the 2006 2007 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation

Construction is in progress for the Wastewater Reclamation Plant

Disinfection Facilities June completion and the South Third Street

Improvements project July completion
Construction is scheduled to begin in May for the Ninth Street Sewer

Diversion project October completion and in July for the following projects
53rd Street Waterline SW Western Boulevard Bicycle Lanes 2006 2007
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Street Reconstruction SW Brooklane Drive Bicycle Lanes and 2006 2007
Storm Water Master Plan projects September completion for these

projects

Transportation Division
The first Secure Your Place on the Bus wheelchair training event was held

April 22nd and was co hosted by Corvallis Transit System CTS Benton

County Special Transportation Program and Dial A Bus Participants
practiced boarding a CTS bus parked in front of the Library A set of nylon
securement straps was installed on each participants wheelchair free of

charge to the participant to help drivers secure the chair more quickly and

effectively into position on the buses

CTS provided over 49 850 rides during April including 789 free rides on

Earth Day April 22nd
Staff promoted alternative modes of transportation as part of several Earth

Week 2006 events including those at OSU H P and Riverfront
Commemorative Park

Co sponsored the first state wide Bicycle Tourism Convention in Eugene
April 1 st as part of the Governor s Tourism Convention reinforcing Corvallis

position as one of the outstanding bicycle programs in the nation

Utilities Division

Completed annual manhole rehabilitation program with 26manholes sealed

to eliminate infiltration of groundwater to the sanitary sewer system
Began the annual storm water piping cleaning and inspection project with

50 percent completed during April
Published the annual Water Quality Report and mailed copies to all

addresses in Corvallis as required by the Environmental Protection Agency
EPA

Staffed informational displays during Earth Week

Completed the leak detection survey of 50 miles of city water mains

Utilities Division Manager Penpraze was reappointed for a two year term on

the Oregon Drinking Water Advisory Commission representing the LaC

Completed the second year of the Storm Water Management Program Plan

as required by Department of Environmental Quality and EPA regulations
aimed at improving the quality of storm water runoff

VI CITY MANAGER S OFFICE

A Department Highlights

Personnel presented lunch hour health and wellness discussions forCity and

Benton County employees The April 12th session Signs of Depression
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and Anxiety was weii received by 22 City empioyees I he April 1 th

session Motivational Tips for Staying Active was also well received by 30

City and County employees
The Mayor and four Councilors began using electronic Council meeting
packets and two more Councilors will begin using electronic packets as soon

as their laptop computers are upgraded More than one half of the

Department Directors have joined the Council in using electronic packets
saving reams and reams of paper
More than 700 volunteers enjoyed receiving a personally signed thank you
card and City Hall magnet from Mayor Berg in recognition of their

volunteering services to the City

VII COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

A Department Highlights

Made a presentation of the proposed historic preservation provisions to the

Corvallis Area Chamber of Commerce Business Advocacy Committee

Assisted the Historic Preservation Advisory Board HPAB and citizens with

preparations for Historic Preservation Month in May
Finalized Neighborhood Empowerment Grants

Staffed a City Council public hearing on the appeal of a Land Development
Hearings Board decision denying the removal of a Historic Preservation

Overlay on the Full Gospel Assembly Church property Sivetz Coffee
Presented an overview to City Council of the proposed historic preservation
provisions
Staffed a City Council public hearing to consider adoption of the historic

preservation provisions recommended by the Planning Commission
Staffed a Planning Commission public hearing on the Seventh Street Station

development proposal
Housing received 28 Rental Housing Program related contacts outlining 41

separate issues with seven related to habitability and 34 ofa non habitability
nature Five of the habitability issues reported may be subject to the Rental

Housing Code callers were advised of the process to follow in order to file
a complaint under the Code
The Housing and Community Development Commission reviewed and
recommended for Council approval a draft of the Fiscal Year 2006 2007

Community Development Block Grant CDBG Home Investment
Partnerships Program HOME Action Plan containing the allocations of

project and activity funding the Commission developed during March
One First Time Home Buyer loan in the amount of 10 000 was approved
Development Services staff processed 28 residential and 29 non residential

plan reviews for proposed construction projects and conducted 1 971

inspections
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Inspection staff investigated 18 citizen complaints including such concerns

as a mechanical repair business operating out of a residence and

overflowing dumpsters at a fraternity
Participated on a State building code review committee and International

Existing Building Code review committee
Attended the four day Code Official Institute in Portland

Integrated the permit tracking system Permit Plan with the document

management system Laserfiche Most construction documents over

25 000 associated with permits are now available online through Weblink

VIII FINANCE

A Department Highlights

Co chaired state wide financial audit kick off meeting of Qwest
Communications
Met with Grand Oaks Homeowners Association to resolve a dispute
regarding irrigation of the Grand Oaks Park and surrounding areas

IX FIRE

A Department Highlights

Operational

Response Activity March 2006 City Non City Total

Fires 12 3 15

Overpressu re Ru ptu re 3 0 3

Requests for Ambulance 202 55 257

Rescue Quick Response Team 55 4 59

Hazardous Condition 2 2 4

Service Requests 30 3 33

Good Intent 26 13 39

False Calls 20 1 21

Mutual Aid 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0

TOTAL RESPONSES OVERALL 350 81 431

On April 29th at approximately 10 45 pm Department personnel responded
to a reported house fire in the 300 block of NW 17th Street The fire

appeared to have been started by improperly discarded smoking materials
which smoldered and then caught a mattress on fire The fire appeared to

have been accidental in nature Damage to the bedroom was substantial
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and the remainder of the home suffered smoke damage The occupant was

not home at the time of the fire Two fire engines a ladder truck and a

command vehicle responded to the fire with 14 firefighters The fire was

brought under control within 15 minutes There were no civilian or firefighter
injuries and several pets in the house were unharmed

Department personnel responded to a house fire in the 1400 block of

NW Polk Avenue just after midnight April 26th Upon arrival firefighters
found flames approximately 30 feet high at the back of the house but were

able to control the fire within fifteen minutes The fire appeared to have
originated on the back porch and caused significant damage to the porch
and minor smoke and fire damage to the kitchen area Three engines an

ambulance and 21 firefighters responded to the fire Mutual aid units from

Adair and Philomath staffed the fire stations while the Corvallis crews battled
the fire The house did not have a smoke alarm installed Both the 96 year
old resident and her nephew were assisted out of the structure by a Corvallis
Patrol Officer prior to the arrival of fire crews The woman was asleep when

the Patrol Officer found her The man was transported to Good Samaritan

Regional Medical Center and treated for smoke inhalation He spent the

night in the hospital but is reported in good condition There were no other
injuries reported
New members were selected for the Hazardous Materials HazMat and

Special Response Teams

HazMat Team Special Response Team

Randy Harrison Brian Anderson

Chris Riddell Ross Fuhrman
Dan Wehrman Doug Kelly

Chris Hunt was appointed to the position of Training Lieutenant

x LIBRARY

A Department Highlights

Staff in service training April 26th included sessions on the City s new

respectful workplace policy the 9 1 1 dispatch center and when to call them

humor in the workplace and workplace yoga Staff also worked in small

teams to inventory portions of the collection A luncheon was provided by
the Friends of the Library in appreciation of staff

Many staff attended the Oregon Library Association s aLA annual
conference in Salem Circulation Supervisor Lori Hilterbrand presented a

workshop sharing her expertise in online book selling for Friends groups
Librarians Heidi Weisel and Andrew Cherbas presented a program on the

use of video game programs with young adults This is a very hot topic in

Library Land right now research is showing positive literacy support forthis
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medium Librarian Ruth Hennessey fresh from her successful presentation
on services to Hispanics at the Public Library Association conference in
Boston presented an additional program at aLA in Salem Deputy Library
Director Teresa Landers also presented a program on downloadable audio
books Library2Go
Youth Services Manager Curtis Kieferattended a four day LawforUbrarians

training atAmerican LibraryAssociation headquarters in Chicago sponsored
by the Office of Intellectual Freedom 01 F all expenses were paid by a grant
awarded to the OIF by the Ford Foundation Chairs of Intellectual Freedom

committees from all 50 states participated
Casual shelvers and casual clerks are now established as continuous
recruitment positions which will make the hiring process for these high
turnover positions much more efficient and nimble

Librarian Shannon Bronson staffed a library booth at H P s Sustainability
Fair

B Other

The Friends of the Librarysponsored a concert by the Corvallis and Crescent

Valley High Schools combined orchestra to celebrate National Library Week

The audienceof approximately 50 people enjoyed anexcellent performance
Alsea Community Effort ACE was presented with the Library Supporter of
the Year Award by the Oregon Library Association

XI MISCELLANEOUS

Attached is the City Attorney s Office Report to the City Council for April



CORVALLIS CITY ATTORNEY
456 SW Momoe 101

Corvallis OR 97333

Telephone 541 766 6906

Fax 541 752 7532CORVALLIS
ENHANCING COMMUNITY LIVABILITY

CITY ATTORNEY S OFFICE
REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL HIGHLIGHTS

April 2006

The following are highlights of the City Attorney s Office activities during April 2006

1 Assistance advice to staff regarding disposition of an abandoned CASA Jet aircraft at the

municipal airport

2 Preparation and filing of brief in McElroy v March nka McElroy v Carlson Mandamus Appeal

3 Continued work re public records requests

4 Continued work on Charter revisions

5 Assistance to Corvallis Police Dept on personnel issues including conducting of an internal

investigation

6 Meetings with Engineering Public Works Dept regarding the Timberhill retaining wall failure

Ongoing Future Matters

1 Representation of the City before LUBA and Oregon Court of Appeals re McElroy v March
nka McElroy v Carlson Mandamus Appeal Century Properties LLC v Corvallis Natural

Features Preservation LUBA Appeal Century Properties v Corvallis Land Development Code
LUBAAppeals

2 Enforcement actions regarding code violations building sidewalk land development code
violations etc

3 Continued work on discrimination complaints

4 Continued work on Grand Oaks and APD easement development issues

5 Collective bargaining Corvallis Regional Communications Center Association 911 Unit

6 Continued work with staff regarding Timberhill retaining wall failure potential code enforcement
or civil action

Page 1 COUNCIL REPORT

City Attorney s Office client corval J is reports 2006 april wpd



COUNCil REQUESTS

FOllOW UP REPORT

MAY 11 2006

1 Van Buren Bridge Update Council

Below arekeys issues to the Van Buren Bridge Conceptual Agreement Framework

a Building a new bridge is a top priority for the community from transportation
livability and economic development perspectives It is a priority for the

State as well

b The Van Buren bridge is historically recognized and new bridge alternatives
should integrate Van Buren bridge use and cost implications to the extent

feasible ODOT recognizes their role in providing Van Buren bridge
assessment and analysis necessary for project decision making

c Due to funding limits Statewide Oregon Transportation Commission

guidelines for project prioritization use local match as a criterion Local

match can be both financial and jurisdictional transfer based Local

government partners recognize local match is necessary to keep the project
on track

d ODOT and local government partners agree to jointly explore options for

special Federal funding for the bridge s alternative selected

e ODOT and the City of Corvallis recognize that if the Van Buren bridge is

included in the bridge alternative selected liability coverage annual

maintenance periodic maintenance and other issues will need to be

addressed through an intergovernmental agreement

2 Wireless Proiect Update Nelson

During October2005 staff presented to Administrative Services Committee a report
on the citywide wireless network initiative The report was solely informational and

staff was to brief the Council as the efforts proceeded The report is accessible at
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http archive cicorvallis or u docview aspx id 146288 Since October the

following progress has occurred

Staff plans to publish a request for proposals RFP during June 2006

soliciting vendors to build the citywide wireless infrastructure This is a joint
venture between Oregon State University Benton County Corvallis School
District 509J and the City The RFP will attempt to attract private entities

that are willing to build the wireless network with the above entities
becoming core tenants A Wireless Internet Service Provider needs a

density of antennas to provide and sell wireless data services Under this
RFP model the city would lease to the provider the light poles and the use

of power for the radios In lieu of an annual lease payment to the City for
right of way the City then could trade the payment for wireless services for
the operational departments

A citywide wireless network will enhance service delivery to citizens improve the

efficiency of public safety services streamline operations and increase productivity
A wireless network also benefits community partners and economic development
efforts

d
City Manager
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ORDINANCE 2006-___ 
 

An Ordinance amending Ordinance 99-26, an ordinance relating to the provision of 
telecommunications services and telecommunications infrastructure located within the 
public right of way, and stating an effective date. 
    
THE CITY OF CORVALLIS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Section 1, Purpose and Intent of the Telecommunications Ordinance 99-26 is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 
 F.  Secure fair and reasonable compensation to the City and its residents for 
permitting private use of the public right-of-way and for the privilege of providing 
telecommunications services within the city; 
 
Section 2.  Section 2, Definitions of the Telecommunications Ordinance 99-26 is hereby 
amended as follows: 
 
 Q. Grantee - means the person to which a franchise or privilege is granted by the 
City. 
  
 DD. Telecommunications Carrier - means any provider of telecommunications 
services (and includes every person) that directly or indirectly owns, controls, operates or 
manages telecommunications facilities within the City.  
 
Section 3.  Section 5, Registration of Telecommunications Carriers of the Telecommunications 
Ordinance 99-26 is hereby amended as follows: 
 
 Section 5.2 Registration Required: Except as provided in Section 5.4 hereof, any 
provider of telecommunications services within the city all telecommunications carriers having 
telecommunications facilities within the City, and all telecommunications carriers that offer or 
provide telecommunications service to customer premises within the City, shall register.   The 
appropriate application and license from:  a) the Oregon Public Utility Commission (PUC); or b) 
the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) qualify as necessary registration information.  
Applicants also have the option of providing the following information:  
 
 Section 5.3 Registration Fee: Each application for registration as a telecommunications 
carrier shall be accompanied by a non-refundable registration fee.  An amount, sufficient to 
cover the City’s administrative costs, shall be determined by resolution of City Council. 
 
 Section 5.4 Exceptions to Registration: The following providers of telecommunications 
carriers services are excepted from registration: 
 A. Providers of Ttelecommunication carriers services that are owned and operated 
exclusively for its own use by the State or a political subdivision of this State. 
 
Section 4.  Section 8, Telecommunications Franchise of the Telecommunications Ordinance 99-
26 is hereby amended as follows: 



 Section 8.1  Telecommunications Franchise:   A telecommunications franchise shall be 
required of any provider of telecommunications service with facilities located within the public 
rights-of-ways within of the City. 
 
 Section 8.2  Franchise Exemption: 
 A. A private telecommunications network located in the public right-of-way will not be 
required to obtain a franchise agreement but shall be required to obtain an occupancy permit and 
pay a one time initial fee in addition to an annual charge of two three dollars and seventy-five 
thirteen cents ($2.753.13) per lineal foot of applicant’s private telecommunication system located 
in the public right-of-way.  The amount of the fee annual charge specified herein shall increase 
each year by a percentage equal to the change in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for urban wage 
earners and clerical workers for the Portland, Oregon metropolitan region for the prior year, 
published semi-annually, unadjusted for seasonal variations, as determined by the Bureau of 
Labor Statistics of the Department of Labor. 
 
 B. A telecommunication service provider that (only) uses facilities located within the 
public rights-of-ways that are owned and operated by other telecommunications carriers shall not 
be required to obtain a franchise but must register and pay a fee as described in Section 8.9, 
Franchise or Privilege Fee, paragraph B.  
 
 Section 8.3.B  Application: A description of the telecommunications services that are to 
be offered or provided by the applicant over its telecommunications facilities or facilities owned 
by other persons. 
 
 Section 8.9  Franchise or Privilege Fee:  Each franchise or privilege granted by the City is 
subject to the City's right, which is expressly reserved, to fix a fair and reasonable compensation 
to be paid for the privileges granted.  The compensation shall be subject to the specific payment 
terms and conditions contained in this ordinance or a the franchise agreement and applicable 
state and federal laws. 
 
 A. Telecommunications utilities as defined in Section 4, shall pay a maximum 
franchise fee of 75% calculated as a percentage of annual gross revenues as allowed under ORS 
221.515(1997). 
 
 B. Providers of telecommunications service other than telecommunication utilities 
and long-distance carriers as defined in Section 4, shall pay a maximum franchise or privilege 
fee of 75% calculated as a percentage of annual gross revenues earned within the city.  Providers 
reselling telecommunication services to customers within the City may deduct the cost of leasing 
lines for that purpose before calculation of gross revenues.   
 
 C. Long-distance carriers or other point-to-point telecommunication providers (not 
providing telecommunications services within the city) shall be required to pay an annual charge 
of two three dollars and seventy-five thirteen cents ($2.753.13) per lineal foot of provider’s 
telecommunication system located within the public right-of-way.  The amount of the fee 
specified herein shall increase each year by a percentage equal to the change in the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) for urban wage earners and clerical workers for the Portland, Oregon 
metropolitan region for the prior year, published semi-annually, unadjusted for seasonal 
variations, as determined by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of the Department of Labor.  In the 
event provider leases any portion of its telecommunication system, provider shall pay an 
additional franchise fee to the City of one percent (1%) of the lease revenues annually. 



 Section 8.10 Verification of Franchise or Privilege Fee Payment:  No acceptance of any 
payment shall be construed as an accord that the amount paid is, in fact, the correct amount, nor 
shall any acceptance of payments be construed as a release of any claim the City may have for 
further or additional sums payable. All amounts paid under Section 8.9 shall be subject to 
confirmation and recomputation by the City. The grantee agrees to reimburse the City for: 
 
 A. The reasonable costs of such confirmation if the City's recomputation discloses 
that the grantee has paid 95% or less of the franchise or privilege fees owing for the period at 
issue; or 

 B. One-half of the reasonable costs of such confirmation if the City's recomputation 
discloses that the grantee had paid more than 95% but less than 98% of the franchise or privilege 
fees owing for the period at issue. 
 
Section 5.  Section 10 General Ordinance Provisions of the Telecommunications Ordinance 99-
26 is hereby amended as follows: 
 
 Section 10.1 Governing Law:  Any franchise or privilege granted under this Ordinance is 
subject to the provisions of the Constitution and laws of the United States, and the State of 
Oregon and the ordinances and Charter of the City. 
 
 Section 10.5  Penalties:  Whenever the City Manager finds that the grantee has violated 
one (1) or more terms, conditions or provisions of this ordinance, a written notice, or a verbal 
notice followed by a written notice, shall be given to franchisee informing it of such violation or 
liability.  If the violation concerns requirements mandated by the Oregon Occupational Safety 
and Health Administration, Oregon Department of Transportation or the National Electrical 
Safety Code, a verbal notice followed by a written notice may be given.  For these safety or 
permit violations, grantee shall have 24 hours from receipt of verbal notification to correct the 
violation.  For all other violations and liabilities the written notice shall describe in reasonable 
detail the specific violation so as to afford grantee an opportunity to remedy the violation.  
Grantee shall have twenty (20) days subsequent to receipt of the notice in which to correct the 
violation.  Subject to the requirement of prior notice for violations occurring without just cause, 
the City Manager may assess penalties against grantee as follows:   
 
Section 6.  This ordinance shall become effective on July September 1, 2006.     
PASSED by the Council this                day of                                             , 2006. 
APPROVED by the Mayor this                day of                                             , 2006. 
EFFECTIVE this                      day of                                                  , 2006.     
                                                                                          
      Mayor 
ATTEST:                          
                                                               
City Recorder 





















































































































HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE
MINUTES

May 2 2006

Present Staff
Councilor Patricia Daniels Chair Jon Nelson City Manager
Councilor Charles Tomlinson Judy Somes Community Development
Councilor Emily Hagen Karen Emery Parks and Recreation

Carrie Mullens City Manager s Office
Visitors
Debbie Parsons United Way

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION

Held for
Information Further

Aqenda Item Onlv Review Recommendations

I Social Services Accept the Social Services
Second Quarter Second Quarter Report for
Report Fiscal Year 2005 2006

II Boys and Girls Club Accept the Boys and Girls Club
Annual Report Annual Report for Fiscal Year

2004 2005

III Other Business

Chair Daniels called the meeting to order at 12 52 pm

CONTENT OF DISCUSSION

I Social Services Second Quarter Report Attachment

Community Development Management Assistant Somes reported that United Way
performs a sixth month site visit to each client Attached to the staff report is the
worksheet used during the site visits a narrative of each visit and updated allocation
information for each agency

United Way Business Services Director Parsons clarified that United Way does one

site visit peryear Besides the quarterly reports the agencies submit a final report at
the end of each year

In response to Councilor Tomlinson s inquiry Ms Parsons said it is difficult to track
trends in social services however the new outcome based measuring tool has helped
agencies understand changes and where they need to emphasize their service
Ms Parsons said some agencies are continuing to struggle with outcome based
reporting but those who have embraced the reporting process are able to use the
outcomes for development and enhancement of programs
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Councilor Tomlinson inquired about databases that might help agencies streamline
reporting for a broad range of services Ms Parsons responded that United Way has
provided grants to help fund data entry and purchase software She is not aware of

any software available for social service reporting or data collecting Ms Parsons said

many agencies are collecting data they have never collected before and are gaining
significant information Once they set up their database there is less paperwork in the

long term

In response to Councilor Daniels inquiry Ms Parsons said Community Outreach Inc

is struggling to hit capacity because of funding levels They realize they set their
targets too high and have now adjusted for better outcomes The advantage of using
outcome based measurements is the ability to evaluate and revise

The Committee unanimously recommends that Council accept the Social Services
Fiscal Year 2005 2006 Second Quarter Report

II Boys and Girls Club Annual Report Attachment

Recreation Division Manager Emery reported that in 1997 1998 the City allocated
100 000 toward the construction of a new Boys Girls Club facility In return the

Club agreed to provide the Citywith an annual report for 25 years The Club continues

to experience a 20 percent participation increase and hopes to have a plan in place by
the end of the year for expansion into South Corvallis

Ms Emery said Club CEO Bason could not attend the meeting due to an emergency
After a brief discussion the Committee requested that Mr Bason be scheduled for a

future meeting to clarify Club activities

In response to Councilor Tomlinson s inquiry Ms Emery said she is unaware of City
staff participation working with the Club on the South Corvallis expansion Ms Emery
and Mr Bason belong to a coalition related to the Lincoln School activities The school

received a five year grant that reduces funding levels in years four and five The

program is currently in year three The coalition is comprised of individuals interested
in making the school program a community based program which will tie into what the

Boys and Girls Club does in South Corvallis The Club recognizes that they are under

serving the South Corvallis community

The Committee unanimously recommends that Council accept the Boys and Girls Club
Annual Report

Louie
Highlight

Louie
Highlight
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III Other Business

The next Human Services Committee meeting is scheduled for 12 45 pm on Tuesday
May 23 2006 in the Madison Avenue Meeting Room

Respectfully submitted

Patricia Daniels Chair



MEMORANDUM

Date March 28 2006

TO Human Services Committee

Ken Gibb Community Development Director4FROM

SUBJECT Social Services Quarterly Report Quarter Ending December 31 2005

I Issue
Under the terms ofthe social services funding Agreement between the City ofCorvallis and
United Way review and approval ofquarterly reports is required

II General Discussion

United Way is the Citys designated administrator for Social Service funding for FY 05 06 A
three year agreement for administration services was entered into with United Way on July 1
2004 The amount ofthe contract for FY 05 06 363460 ofwhich 345 287 will be distributed
to agencies and 18 173 is the service fee paid to United Way for administration ofthe program
Payment of 30 288 33 is made monthly

Attached is acopy ofablank Six Month Site Visit Worksheet Attachment 1 Either aUnited
Way staff person or avolunteer on aplanned site visit completes this evaluation The
evaluation is then capsulated in the 6 Month Report City ofCorvallis Social Service Funding
for each service provider Attachment 2 The last item attached is a spreadsheet showing the
allocations for the current year Attachment 3

At time ofthis report to HSC two agencies had not yet provided their second quarter report
Staffhas requested United Wa to withhold the March allocation until there is reporting
compliance

United Way has been provided with acopy ofthe staffreport notified ofthis committee meeting
and invited to attend

ID Action Recommended
A Motion to recommend acceptance ofthe second quarter report

REVIEWED AND CONCUR REVIEWED AND CONCUR

1
NanCy er

Finance rrector



Agency

SIX MONTH SITE VISIT WORKSHEET Program

REPORTS CONSIST OF 4 ITEMS

A narrative describing service provision and program delivery during reporting
period
The success measurement tool that was submitted during proposal updated for
progress during reporting period
An evaluation plan form outlining process for collecting data
A financial statement that includes revenue expenses both budget and actual
for the reporting period

THINGS TO CONSIDER WHEN REVIEWING REPORTS

Narrative
Is the narrative clear and concise
Does it provide a good overview of the services provided during the reporting
period

Success Measurement Tool
Are the outputs reasonable
Are the indicators measurable
Has there been progress on the originally proposed outcomes outputs
indicators

Evaluation Plan
Does each outcome have a plan for tracking results
Are the plans reasonable with regard to staff commitment timeliness for grant
period

Financial Statements
Are actual numbers reasonable against budget numbers
Is there an excess or deficit at the six month mark
Is the excessjdeficitextraordinary for a six month period

Notes

Attachment 1



QUESTIONS TO ASK AT SITE VISITS

Success Measurement Tool
How do you feel the progress of your proposed outcomes is going

Have you found difficulty in tracking any of your originally proposed outcomes

Are there any outcomes or indicators that you would like to revise

Of the originally proposed outputs indicators are you on track to meet the numbers
and activities proposed

What have been the biggest challenges for this measurement process

Evaluation Form
Were there any challenges you experienced in determining the components on this
form

Attachment 10



If so did they provoke you to change any of your originally proposed outcomes

Financial Statement
Has your budget changed since your original submission If so why

Are you on target for year end expectations for both revenue expense

If there is a significant excess or deficit at the six month mark why ie did you
receive or spend a lump sum that will offset during the remainder of the year

Other questions notes recommendations issues

Attachment Ib



6 MONTH REPORT
CITY OF CORVALLIS SOCIAL SERVICE FUNDING

For this reporting perioct the agencies were to provide the following items a narrative
about services provided during the perioct an updated Success Measurement Tool and
Evaluation Plan and a sixmonth revenue expense statement Overall the agencies
provided thorough reports There were some deficiencies but we have worked through
them

Also wehave hadanother staffchange so Iwill be overseeing the granting process
again Ihope to bring more stability to the process

Volunteers and or staffdid reviews and interviews with each ofthe fundedagencies I
have attached the form that was used to do the review

The following report summarizes the information from the reviews

BENTON FURNITURE SHARE
This agency has been undergoing some significant infrastructure changes since July
Molly Gage has been the director for six months now One of the main changes is the
furniture transportation method Previously the agency contracted with Cornerstone
Associates to provide weekly transportation routes However due to insufficient
funding this contract has been discontinued As a replacement the agency has hired a
9 hour per week staff person to assume these tasks

The agency is currently reviewing policies procedures and creating a strategic plan

Financially the agency is on track with their budgeted numbers for both revenue and
expense

Molly likes using the outcomes measurement matrix system The agency has had some

difficulty tracking some of their outcomes in that they are still counting and recording
by hand They are tr ing to create an efficient database to make this piOcess easier

CASA VOICES FOR CHILDREN
CASA recruited seven new volunteers to be CASAs They have all been trained and
assigned cases Five more new volunteers will be trained in February The City of
Corvallis funding provides the support to recruit and train these volunteers The CASA
program has been tracking outcomes for several years already and has merely
extended in tracking to include the City of Corvallis dollars During July through
December all children that were considered wards of the State in Benton County were

provided a CASA to advocate for them through the legal processes This is the main
goal for CASA to sustain

Attachment 2



This agency is also undergoing significant staff changes Their long time Executive
Director has left and they have hired Joanna Engle as her replacement Joanna is not
experienced with outcomes measurement so her learning curve will be quite steep
Also the resource development person that prepared the reports is no longer with the
agency

They have created an extensive evaluation plan that outlines the methods to measure

their indicators much of which was previously prepared for other purposes

Financially they are showing a deficit However it seems that it is a timing issue
related to when they will receive different revenue sources rather than a misbudgeting
issue

CENTER AGAINST RAPE DOMESTIC VIOLENCE CARDV
CARDV has had several new additions to their staff during the last few months A
federal grant is funding 2 Crisis Response Advocates These advocates will respond on

scene to calls from law enforcement in Linn County requesting assistance during
domestic violence calls

Grants from Meyer Memorial Trust Oregon Community Foundation are funding a half
time Development Public Relations Director

CARDV continues to provide wrap around shelter services for victims of domestic
violence and support groups for victims of domestic violence that mayor may not
reside in the shelter as well as community education opportunities

The indicators provided on the updated outcomes measurement matrix are extremely
strong 100 of adult shelter residents developed safety plans 100 of shelter
residents developed short term or immediate need case plans 100 of support group
attendees indicated increased understanding of how to access support resources and
90 of support group attendees indicated increased understanding of domestic
violence sexual abuse All of these indicators are showing progress in the agency s

projected outcomes

Again with this agency tracking has been a bit difficult because the majority of the
work is done by hand The have an OSU student working on developing a database to
better track statistics However the agency s staff feels that the granting process works
well for them

COMMUNITY OUTREACH INC
This agency has eight programs funded with City of Corvallis dollars Emergency Shelter
women s men s family Transitional Housing Families in Transition Crisis

Intervention Information Referral Homeless Emergency Services Mental Health
Services Emergency Food Bank and Medical Clinics

Attachment 2a



According to their narrative the agency has reworked some of their programs in order
to better meet progress with their outcomes

In the Transitional Housing program we wanted to track that 70 of clients will
achieve some sort of income and 50 of clients will obtain permanent housing and
80 of clients who request substance abuse counseling will have access to treatment
services We have just developed and implemented an electronic Exit Questionnaire a
three month fOllOW Up questionnaire and a six month fOllOW Up questionnaire We
teach all our clients to use computers and to open up an email account This approach
will enable us to track our clients after discharge regardless of where they are staying
Our clients are part of a transient community and difficult to follow up with At this

time we have not collected enough data to report significant results

When asked if there were any outcomes or indicators they would like to change they
responded very thoughtfully with In the Emergency Shelter program one of our
indicators was to provide 100 of clients with bus tickets if appropriate Due to our
limited budget the availability of bus tickets has varied and we haven t met this
indicator all the time We d like to change it to 75

In the Emergency Food Bank program we have an outcome to supplement food
bought with food stamp allotments We d like to eliminate this outcome because we

have not been able to track this for each client as we thought we would be able to and
it is not as important as the other three outcomes we are tracking

In the Emergency Food Bank program we have an outcome to access nutritional food
promoting a balanced diet We want to change the indicator to 75 of the time a

more realistic number given we are dependent on Linn Benton Food Share s funding for
the quality of the food they are able to provide us

These revisions have been noted for their year end report

The agency has also struggled with capacity for their Alcohol Drug Treatment
program as they have not had enough space for all clients that have requested
treatment

With regard to challenges in using this process they replied The program managers
who manage social service programs also provide data for each program It is time
consuming to do both with quality and adequately balance client and agency
administrative requests especially when you consider some of our program managers
have responsibilities for more than one program area In addition all managers are not
equally adept at sharing electronic information efficiently

The agency expects to be right on target with the revenues expenses for the year

Attachment 2b



COMMUNITY SERVICES CONSORTIUM EMERGENCY HOUSING
This agency provides rental and housing assistance in order to keep people in their
current housing situations The agency indicated that they have never seen the demand
for service at this level Consequently they are working to create better partnerships
with other agencies in order to make the dollars go further

The agency has had a little bit of difficulty with creating some true outcomes We are

working with them to expand their information With regard to indicators however the
program is doing well Of the households served prior to October all were still in
permanent housing as of December 31 This indicates that with the program s
assistance these families were able to remain stable

Based on their updated budget the program expects to be on target with revenues

expenses through the end of the year

COMMUNITY SERVICES CONSORTIUM LINN BENTON FOOD SHARE
This agency is on track to provide almost 500 000 pounds of food to Corvallis agencies
with the City of CorvaHis Social Service funding during the year They are accomplishing
this despite declining quantities from the Oregon Food Bank and the USDA

This program is progressing toward their outcome of assisting in making a healthier and
more secure population Since their service acts indirectly in fulfilling this outcome the
program s indicators relate to services provided by agencies to which the food was
distributed Examples include the number of meals served in soup kitchens and shelters
and the number of food boxes supplied by emergency food pantries

The only challenge this program indicated was the amount of time and resources it
takes to complete the 6 month evaluation According to their staff they are target for
their revenues expenses for the year

CORVALLIS COMMUNITY CHILDREN S CENTERS
This agency has struggled throughout the various granting cycles with due dates and
complete submission information The agency staff feels that it is not difficult to track
the outcomes however that it is difficult to measure them

This agency provides subsidized childcare for low income Corvallis families This
program is progressing toward their outcomes of 1 providing a greater continuity of
care 2 parent satisfaction with care provided and 3 normal developmental
progression of children in care They are doing this by tracking length of care for
children on subsidy versus children not on subsidy satisfaction surveys and using Ages

Stages assessment tools

This program is on track with their revenues and expenses
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DIAL A Bus

Dial a Bus provided over 15 000 rides during the 2nd quarter of 2005 2006 which is at
approximately the same level from the same quarter last year However the revenue
did increase from the previous year

Their outcomes include increasing or maintaining the self sufficiency of elderly and
disabled residents They are tracking this by creating a survey of riders Data has not
yet been collected to assess this outcome

Financially the program is reflecting an excess through December The agency expects
to be on target for year end for both revenues expenses

HOME LIFE INC TRANSITION TRANSPORTATION DENTAL PROGRAMS
This agencls report was extremely thorough and thoughtfully prepared The quality of
the report made it very easy for the volunteer to do the site visit

The City of Corvallis Social Service funding provides significant support for the
Transition program The agency is most excited about the progress of this program this
year One of the clients who lived at Koebel House for roughly 7 years has transitiOlled
into the Supported Living program where he will live with a roommate Home Life
estimates that they have spent about 200 staff hours preparing this client for his
transition

Another client has then transitioned into Koebel House from the Duplex which is for
clients with higher needs and are less self sufficient Six staff members have provided
approximately 400 hours toward this transition

Both of these examples show the transitional nature of this program even though the
length of the transition is quite long

The main indicator for this program s outcomes is the completion of clients action plans
for skill building In their original application the agency projected that 75 of the
clients would complete the action plans Encouragingly the actual figures indicate that
85 of them are completed

For the Dental program the agency has been analyzing how best to use the funds
They have determined that two clients that will be assisted during the next several
months with some extensive work However they have not yet spent any of the funds
as of December

The Transportation program helps subsidize both internal costs of transporting clients
and trips utilizing the Corvallis Transit System Dial a Bus The costs for any agency
that is transportation related are increasing due to the increase in fuel costs Again this
program s indicators relate to clients creating and implementing action plans with
regard to their transportation needs So far over 85 of clients have completed their
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plans The agency had originally anticipated that only 50 of the clients would
complete their plans

Financially each of the programs is on target with the use of the City of Corvallis funds

JACKSON STREET YOUTH SHELTER JSYS
This agency has really embraced the use of outcomes measurement Unlike several of
the other agencies JSYS has already developed their tracking database and it is fully
operational They did not indicate any challenges to meet their proposed outcomes
indicators One of their main goals is to increase stability and family cohesiveness for
the youth that use their services One of the indicators for this program is that 100 of
the youth participate in family meetings which is thus far being met

Financially this agency is struggling somewhat and is working hard to stabilize their
cash flow They anticipate being right on track by year end with their revenue

expenses

MID VALLEY HOUSING PLUS EMERGENCY TRANSITIONAL SERVICES
This City of Corvallis Social Service funding provides support for a Health Counselor for
this agency This position works to provide individualized coordination assistance in

obtaining supportive services crisis intervention mental physical health coordination
food clothing transportation housing stabilization for their clients who are mentally
ill The counselor provides services to clients with both emergency and transitional
needs Emergency needs would include things like food clothing transitional needs
would entail more case management

Due to the transition to the outcomes measurement process this agency has created a
new partnership with the Benton County Corrections Department Mid Valley Housing
Plus will be collecting data to help determine the effects of their services for clients who
receive their services versus individuals that do not receive services and are
incarcerated with Benton County Corrections

With regard to measuring outcomes this agency is also working on setting up a
database Therefore they are still doing the tracking by hand and is quite labor
intensive They feel that they are very well on track to meeting their expected
outcomes

Financially the agency has spent the City of Corvallis funds directly on staffing costs so
there is no deficit or excess at this time

OLD MILL CENTER
This agency has not yet submitted reports Since the due date we have been in
consistent contact with the agency but due to all of our staff changes we have not
withheld any funds We have most recently followed up with the agency during the
week of March 20th We anticipate their submission imminently
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PARENT ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM
This agency has provided a variety of services during this quarter including home
visits transportation for school medical appointments interviews newsletter
produced in both English Spanish sewing crafts and parenting classes a holiday
party and childcare provided during classes meetings

The agency has a 45 000 deficit through six months but they feel that they are

making things work with what they have They are working on more grants and
fundraising events We will more closely monitor this during the next quarter s report

PEP created a database 3 years ago that they use to track outcomes It has made
tracking for this process very easy They indicated that it has significantly helped with
grant writing It is also very adaptable so that they are able to add remove or change
outcomes They also like using the logic model matrix and find it to be a good planning
tool

PRESBYTERIAN CHILD CARE CENTER
This agency uses the City of Corvallis funds to provide emergency short term
transitional childcare assistance One of the individuals was a teen mother who was
referred by the Benton County Health Department She needed care for her child until
Winter Break started The Health Department felt there was an environmental safety
concern for the child which brought about the referral

The agency also assisted a single parent who needed care for a child with a disabling
illness for only two months during summer until the child went to private school on

scholarship in September

The examples provide good evidence that this agency truly meets the emergency
transitional services criteria One of the outcomes this agency is working to satisfy is to
increase parent awareness in how to meet the social and emotional needs of their
children By providing care for the above two examples the agency was able to talk
with the parents and created an avenue for dialogue about the chfldren s needs and
therefore made progress on their outcome

Financially they have a small excess after 6 months so they are track with their
revenues expenses for the end of the year

RETIRED SENIOR VOLUNTEER PROGRAM SAFE SECURE SENIORS INDEPENDENT
RSVP got a new program coordinator Cathy Morris after Cynthia Hylton left the
program Cathy started working to bring the original partners that started this program
back together to re energize the program

Attachment 2f



This program has struggled to get requests for inspections from seniors However
there was an article in the newspaper in late December which brought in five requests
in early January for inspections

During this reporting period much of the agency s efforts have been directed toward
the Medicare prescription plan and getting people signed up During the final six
months of the grant the agency expects to redirect more of their efforts to this
program

Their outcome they are looking to measure uses the indicator of a decrease of 1 in
property crime rate for seniors This is a somewhat long term outcome in that it will be
measured across a five year period Therefore during that time the program
concentrates on outputs including homes inspected volunteers assisting in the
program and presentations given in the community about the program

Financially the program is on track with its revenues expenses

SENIOR SERVICES MEALS ON WHEELS
This agency has not yet submitted reports Since the due date We have been in
consistent contact with the agency but due to all of our staff changes we have not
withheld any funds We have most recently followed up with the agency during the
week of March 20th We anticipate their submission imminently

VINA MOSES CENTER FISH FAMILY SHOPPING
This agency is struggling with the outcomes measurement process for these grants
They are able to track outputs quite easily but translating those into indicators
outcomes is a significant challenge Both programs expect to increase family stability
improve standard of living and decrease financial stress The challenge they are having
is in getting former clients to provide feedback regarding these outcomes The agency s

staff is working to create more effective surveys survey methods in order to get a
better response rate

In terms of services provided the agency helped with rental assistance medical
assistance transportation assistance and utility assistance to hundreds of families
Also hundreds of people have shopped in the Center for clothing and small household
good These services by nature increase stability and decrease stress but the agency
is working to get measurable results to back up the inherent assumptions
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City of Corvallis FY 2005 2006 Social Service Allocation
Administered by United Way

Program City Award

Benton Furniture Share Furniture Distribution 3 000
CASA Voice for Children Staff Supprot 12 500
Center Against Rape Domestic Violence Shelter and Response 32 500
Community Outreach Inc Crisis Intervention I R 5 637
Community Outreach Inc Emergency Food Bank 4 000
Community Outreach Inc Emergency Shelter 17 000
Community Outreach Inc Families in Transition 15 000
Community Outreach Inc Homeless Emergency Services 6 000
Community Outreach Inc Medical Clnics 14 250
Community Outreach Inc Mental Health Services 12 000
Community Outreach Inc Transitional Housing 23 300
Community Services Consortium Emergency Housing 12 000
Community Services Consortium Linn Benton Food Bank 30 000
Corvallis Community Chilren s Center Subsidized Chidcare 15 000
Dial a Bus Subsidized Transportation 1 000
Home Life Inc Community Transition 30 000
Home Life Inc Dental Services 3 000
Home Life Inc Tranportation 2 000
Jackson Street Youth Shelter Emergency Shelter 15 000
Mid Valley Housing Plus Emergency Services 12 000
Mid Valley Housing Plus Transitional Services 15 000
Old Mill Center Child Sex Abuse Treatment 8 500
Old Mill Center Family Divorce Program 6 000
Old Mill Center Transitional Services 13 000
Oregon Cascades West Seniors Senior Meals 10 000
Parent Enhancement Program Teen Monitors 6 000
Presbyterian Child Care Center Subsidized Childcare 10 000
Retired Senior RSVP Safe Secure Seniors 1 600
Vina Moses Center Family Shopping Center 7 000
Vina Moses Center FISH 3 000

Total Allocation to Progams 345 287
United Way Administrative Fee 18 173

Total City Allocation 363460
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CORVALLIS

MEMORANDUM
ENHANCING COMMUNITY LIVABILITY

PARKS RECREATION

To Human Services Committee

From Julee Conway Parks and Recreation Director
Karen Emery Recreation Division Manager

Date April 10 2006

Subject Boys and Girls Club Annual Report

Issue

In Fiscal Year 1997 1998 the City Council allocated 100 000 toward the construction

of the new Boys and Girls Club facility As part of that allocation agreement for 25

years the Boys and Girls Club must provide the City with an annual report outlining how

the club s programs are meeting the City s goal of addressing the needs of youth in the

community

Discussion

According to the information provided by the Boys and Girls Club Director Steve

Bason the club served over 5 000 individual youth in its eighth year of operation This

is a 20 increase as compared to the number of youth served last year

The Boys and Girls Club Board of Directors has determined that the Club under serves

youth in south Corvallis As a result they have adopted a vision to expand services

specific to south Corvallis A task force was formed and is currently developing
recommendations for the Board of Directors consideration

Attached for your review is the information provided by Mr Bason accompanied by
material prepared by their accountant covering the last full fiscal period for the Club
which ended March 31 2005



Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Human Services Committee accept the Corvallis Boys and

Girls Club annual report

Review and Concur

n j AI ik 1 j t lnL I

J9hS Nelson City Manager NancyIBewer Finance Director

J
J

Attachments

1 Boys and Girls Club Annual Report
2 Finance Department s Financial Review of Boys and Girls Club Financial Statements

L P RADMIN FILESANNUAL REPORTS S G Club S G Club06 wpd



MEMORANDUM

April 18 2006

TO Karen Emery Recreation Division Manager

FROM Bob Wrightson Assistant Finance Directo

SUBJECT Boys Girls Club ofCorvallis Inc Annual Financial Review as ofMarch 31

2004

This review consists ofinquiries and analytical procedures and is very limited in its nature The

Statements ofFinancial Position StatementofActivities and Changes inNetAssets Statements

ofFunctional Expenses Statement ofCash Flows the related Notes to the Financial Statements

and additional information are audited financial reports that are the representation oftheBoys
Girls Club of Corvallis management The financial statements notes to the financial

statements and supplementary information were audited by Joseph L Harman CPA The

auditor rendered an unqualified opinion on the Boys Girls Club ofCorvallis Inc financial

statements and attests that the statements present fairly the financial position ofthe Boys
Girls Club of Corvallis Inc

Boys Girls Club ofCorvallis records transactions on the accrual basis ofaccounting During
the yearended March 31 2005 The Boys and Girls Club repOlied total revenues of l 223 451

and total expenses of 1 241 945 resulting in a decrease in net assets of 18494

During the fiscal year ended March 31 2005 total assets increased by 24 135 5 396 837 as

ofMarch 31 2004 compared to 5420 972 as ofMarch 31 2005 Liabilities increased by
12 305 18 273 as ofMarch 31 2004 compared to 30 578 as ofMarch 31 2005

In connection with this review nothing came to our attention that would be cause for further

reVIew or concern Acceptance of the Boy s Girls Club of Corvallis annual repOli is
recommended



BOYS Be GIRlS CLUB
OF CORVALLIS

April 12 2006

Boys Girls Club of Corvallis Annual City Report

To Corvallis City Council
c o Karen Emery Recreation Division Manager

The Boys Girls Club of Corvallis just concluded its gu
year of operation at the 1112 NW Circle

Blvd location

Our facility was built to address the need for a school age drop inprogram during non school

hours and to provide a safe supervised facility with programs that enhance and enrich our

community s youth

During tIns gUl year of operating we are providing programs and activities to over 5 000 youths

Daily attendance in the Clubhouse After School Program has grown to an average of330

participants each day We provide a diverse selection of opportunities and activities including

educational recreational and nationally recognized Boys Girls Club programs

Club features include

Daily arts crafts

Meals for youth on school non school days
Teen programs
Recreation indoor outdoor activities gym game room activities

ComputerEducation computer literacy tutoring homework assistance

Citizenship Leaderslnp groups

After school non school day and summer state certified school age care

AtWetic team sports boys girls co ed

Once again we thank the City of Corvallis for its role in malcing this facility a reality

Sincerely

Stephen B Bason CEO

Boys Girls Club ofCorvallis

The Positive Place For Kids

1112 NW Circle Blvd Corvallis OR 97330 541 757 1909



Boys Girls Club of Corvallis Sponsorship Program

Boys Girls Club of Corvallis

We believe that
Children are an integral part of a community and the future of oursociety

Our best hope for the future is to support growth and enrichment through
challenging fun activities with the guidance of caring adult role models

Children learn and develop through a choice of diverse experiences

Every child deserves equal access to community programs and resources

Adults gain immense satisfaction by personally contributing to the positive
development of youth

Therefore our mission is
to

Provide opportunities for school age youth to independently grow and develop
their intellectual athletic and social skills in a challenging safe and supportive
environment

Advocate and develop a diversity of programs that join youth from different

social economic cultural and ethnic backgrounds

Offer examples of opportunity and maturity through interaction with adult

mentors

Our youth development strategyIncorporating in all programs and activities four basic senses or feelings which when

possessed by young people help them build self esteem and develop into responsible
citizens and leaders These four senses are

A sense of belonqinq
A setting where an individuai knows he or she has a place and where he or she fits
and is accepted
A sense of usefulness
The opportunity to do something of value for other people
A sense of competence
The feeling there is something boys and girls can do and dowell

A sense of influence
The chance to be heard and to influence decisions

Our slogan is
The Positive Place for Kids

Make A Difference 6



Boys Girls Club ofCorvallis Sponsorship PrOQram

Boys Girls Clubs Work

According to an independent survey of Boys Girls Club alumni conducted by Louis

Harris Associates Inc in May of 1999 alumni overwhelmingly reported that the Boys
Girls Club had a positive effect on their lives

93 of alumni reported that being in a Boys Girls Club had a positive effect on

their lives

Those who had the reatest obstacles to overcome ethnic minorities and

economically disadvantaged were the most likely to perceive a positive impact

95 said that when they were growing up there were few options besides the

Boys Girls Club 65 said it was the only place they could go for organized
activities

70 of the alumni believed their Boys Girls Club experience helped them avoid

difficulty with the law Many felt their lives would have been different if they had

not gone to a Boys Club Boys Girls Club

85 believe their Boys Girls Club experience enhanced their abilitv to work

with others 79 said it had a positive effect on their familv life

55 reported their Boys Girls Club had a positive effect on their health and

fitness

A majority of alumni reported that their Boys Girls Club experience helped
them in school in learnin to be leaders and on the job 93 believe that being
in a Boys Girls Club was important to their success in later life

Make A Difference 7



BOYS GIRLS CLUB OF COR ALLIS INC
A Not For Profit Corporation

Corvallis Oregon

Audited Financial Statements

Years Ended
March 31 2005 and 2004

Audited by

Joseph L Harman CPA

3326 NE L811Caster Street Suite 1
Corvallis Oregon 97330

Voice 541 7525588

Fax 541 7524689
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JOSEPH L HARMAN
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

TAX AUDIT ACCOUNTING CONSULTING SERVICES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT

Board of Directors

Boys Girls Club of Corvallis Inc
Corvallis Oregon

I have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of the Boys Girls Club of
Corvallis Inc an Oregon not for profit corporation as of March 31 2005 and the related
statement of activities and changes in net assets and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended These financial statements are the responsibility of the Club s management My
responsibility is to express Em opinion on these financial statements based on my audit The
financial statements of the Boys Girls Club of Corvallis Inc as of March 31 2004 were

audited by other auditors whose repOli dated July 9 2004 expressed an unqualified opinion on

those statements

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States ofAmerica Those standards require that I plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit
includes examining on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the

significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion

In my opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects
the financial position of Boys Girls Club of Corvallis Inc as of March 31 2005 and the

changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year ended then ended in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica

My audit was conducted for the purpose of fomling an opinion on the basic financial statements

taken as a whole The supplementary information on pages 13 and 14 is presented for the

purpose of additional analysis and is not a required paTt of the basic financial statements Such
information is the responsibility of the Boys Girls Club of Corvallis Inc s management and

has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial

statements al1d in my opinion is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole

r C l

Corvallis Oregon
June 24 2005

3326 N E LANCASTER STREET 1 CORVALLIS OR 97330
Email joehannancpa@comcastnet Phone 541 752 5588

Website www accountant city com harmancpaJ Fax 541 752 4689



BOYS GIRLS CLUB OF CORVALLIS INC

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

March 3 2005 and 2004

2005 2004

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 77 768 29 840

Accounts receivable 1 514 10 236

Grants receivable 927 6 502

Unconditional promises to give net 97 556 81 728

Prepaid expenses 5 533 10 393

Investments 2 050 223 1 989 813

Property and equipment
Office furniture and equipment 163 650 154 768

Sports equipment 107 859 104 629

Building 3 877440 3 852 439

Accumulated depreciation 961 498 843 511

Property and equipment net 3 187 451 3 268 325

Total Assets 5 420 972 5 396 837

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable 9 729 5 637

Payroll taxes and related payables 2 647 436

Accrued vacation payable 18 202 12 200

Total Liabilities 30 578 18 273

NetAssets

Unrestricted

Unrestricted 12 757 73

Facility Fund Board designated 1 688248 1 6 7 162

Investment in property and equipment 3187 45 3 268 325

Safety Town 3 643 323

4 866 585 4 885 079

Temporarily restricted

M George Fund 375 375

Unconditional promises to give 97 556 81 728

97 931 82 103

Permanently restricted

Program Endowment Fund 382 955 369 585

Thad O Brien Memorial Scholarship Fund 42 923 4 797
425 878 411 382

Total Net Assets 5 390 394 5 378 564

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 5 420 972 5 396 837

See accompanying notes 2



BOYS GIRLS CLUB OF CORVALLIS INC

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years Ended March 31 2005 and 2004

2005 2004

Temporarily Permanently Summarized

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Totals

Public Support
Contributions 179 589 15 828 16 986 212 403 227 375

United Way allocations 9 206 19 206 21 763

Fundraising 139 308 139 308 134 353

Grants 68 729 68 729 102 102

Sponsors 3 050 31 050 26 545

Total Public Support 437 882 15 828 16 986 470 696 512 138

Other Revenue

Membership fees 40 050 40 050 39 619

Pariicipation fees 242 603 242 603 260 077

Contracts 300 001 300 001 216 965

Safety Town 8 763 8 763 5 385

Interest and dividend income 50 099 728 61 827 43 861

Investment net realized and

unrealized gains 83 968 19 684 103 652 420 883

Other income 26 183 26 83 25 13

Tota Other Revenue 751 667 31412 783 079 1 011 921

Net Assets Released

From Restrictions 33 902 33 902

Total Public Support
and Other Revenue 1 223451 5 828 4496 253 775 524 059

Expenses
Program services 994 0 0 994 0 0 929 072

Supporting services

Management 102 595 102 595 84 423

Resource development 145340 145 340 98 057

Total Expenses 24 945 241 945 1 111 552

Decrease Increase

in NetAssets 8494 15 828 14 496 11 830 412 507

NetAssets Beginning ofYear 4 885 079 82 03 4 1 382 5 378 564 4 966 057

Net Assets End ofYear 4 866 585 97 931 425 878 5 390 394 5 378 564

See accompanying notes 3



BOYS GIRLS CLUB OF CORYALLIS INC

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Years Ended March 31 2005 and 2004

2005 2004

Supporting Services

Program Resource Summarized

Services Management Development Total Totals

Salaries and Related Expenses
Salaries 555 880 54 045 92 204 702 129 585 271

Payroll ta es 53 180 5 303 10 002 68 485 60 244

Employee benefits 18 371 9 308 8 693 36 372 33 304

Total Salaries and

Related Expenses 627 431 68 656 110 899 806 986 678 819

Other Expenses
Advertising 1 765 835 2 600 1471
Auto expense 1 530 1 267 2 3 049 2 983L

Bad debts 289 87 100 476 1 504

Board expense 5 338 5 338 1 474

Contract service 4 188 1 235 5 423 8 580

Credit card fees 2 658 28 2 686 2 691

Dues 6 001 1 499 853 8 353 7 683

Equipment maintenance 1 531 1 531 767

Field maintenance 2 525 2 525 5 097

Field trips 10 248 10 248 10 093

License fees 545 545 525

Management fees 14712 14 712 14 571

Miscellaneous expense 1 396 517 754 2 667 2 159

Officials 24 738 24 738 26 715

Pel111its 575 575 378

Postage 8 9 3 374 956 5 149 4 585

Printing 3 886 2 582 667 7 135 7 827

Professional expenses 5 491 5 49 4 620

Rent ofequipment 2 599 64 72 9 071 9 223

Occupancy costs 93 823 637 94 460 89 085

Safety town 5 443 5 443 7 495

Scholarships 11 186 1 186 8 425

Seminars 1 270 2440 3 48 6 858 1 917

Supplies 58 015 5 431 19362 82 808 84 923

Tournament fees 3 904 3 904 4 803

Total Other Expenses 253 071 30 101 33799 316 971 309 594

Total Expenses
Before Depreciation 880 502 98 757 144 698 1 123 957 988 413

Depreciation and amortization 113 508 3 838 642 17 988 23 139

Total Expenses 994 010 102 595 145 340 1 241 945 1 111 552

See accompanying notes 4



BOYS GIRLS CLUB OF CORVALLIS INC

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLO VS

Years Ended March 31 2005 and 2004

2005 2004

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Increase in net assets 11 830 412 507

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 117 988 123 139

Investment net realized and unrealized gains 103 652 420 883

Donated equipment goods and services 28 000

Decrease Increase in accounts and grants receivable 14 297 9 767

Increase in unconditional promises to give net 15 828 78 948

Decrease Increase in prepaid expenses 4 860 3 605

Increase in accounts payable 4 092 3 675

Increase in payroll taxes and related payables 2 211 13

Increase Decrease in accrued vacation payable 6 002 2 236

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 13 800 23 895

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchase of propeliy and equipment 9 114 7 920

Purchase of investments 15 473 119 192

Proceeds from sale of investments 58715 89 927

Net Cash Provided Used by Investing Activities 34 128 37 185

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Payment online ofcredit

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities

Net Increase Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 47 928 13 290

Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Year 29 840 43 130

Cash and Cash Equivalents End of Year 77768 29 840

See accompanying notes 5



BOYS GIRLS CLUB OF CORYALLIS INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended March 31 2005 and 2004

Note 1 Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Or2anization and Nature of Activities

The Boys Girls Club of Corvallis Inc the Club is a not far profit organization located in

Corvallis Oregon The Club provides athletic and entertailID1ent opportunities for boys and girls
The Club is supported primarily though participation fees business sponsors fund raising
events and the United Way The Club serves over 3 000 youth in its programs and entertainment

events

The following is a summary of the Club s mare significant accounting policies The summary is

presented to assist with the understanding of the Club s financial statements Insignificant
accounting policies are not included

Income Taxes

The Club is a not for profit corporation that is exempt from income taxes under section 501 c 3

of the Internal Revenue Code Accordingly no provision far income taxes is included in the

financial statements

Use ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conforn1ity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of i merica requires mar1agement to make estimates ar1d

assumptions that affect celiain repartedamounts and disclosures Accordingly actual results

could differ from those estimates

Cash ar1d Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash and cash equivalent accounts vhich are not subject to

withdrawal restrictions or penalties and all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a

maturity of three months ar less

Promises to Give and Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Club are reported at fair value at the

date the unconditional promise to give is received Unconditional promises to give that are

expected to be collected in future year s are recarded at the present value of their estimated future

cash flows The discounts on future cash flows are computed using risk free interest rates

applicable to the years in which the promises are to be received Amortization of the discounts

are included in contribution revenue

Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give are reported at fair value at

the date the contribution is received
6



BOYS GIRLS CLUB OF CORYALLIS INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended March 31 2005 and 2004

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Promises to Give and Contributions Continued

Contributions are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are

received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets When adonor restriction

expires that is when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the

statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions Donor restricted contributions
whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported as unrestricted

contributions in the accompanying financial statements

The Club uses the allowance method to estimate uncollectible unconditional promises to give
The allowance reduces unconditional promises to give recorded in the statement of financial

position to estimated net collectible amounts The allowance estimate is based on prior years

experience and management s assessment of specific promises made

Investments

Investments in equity securities and mutual funds with readily determinable fair values and all

investments in debt securities and mutual funds are measured at fair value in the statement of

financial position Investment income or loss including gains and losses on investments interest

and dividends are included in the statement of activities as increases or decreases in unrestricted

net assets unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law Investment income or loss that

is limited to specific uses by donor imposed restrictions may be repOlied as increases or

decreases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions are met in the san1e repOliing period as the

income or loss is recognized

Propeliv and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost Donations of propeliy and equipment
are recorded as suppOli at their estimated fair value and capitalized Such donations are repOlied
as unrestricted support unless the donor has restricted the donated assetto a specific purpose

The Club follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and equipment in

excess of 500 Depreciation or amOliization of all such items is computed on a straight line

basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets generally as follows

Office sports equipment 5 to 10 years
Field improvements 1 0 years

Signage 15 years

Building 39 years
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BOYS GIRLS CLUB OF CORVALLIS INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended March 31 2005 and 2004

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Temporarilv and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Club has been limited by donors to a

specific time period or purpose Unconditional promises to give with payments due in future

periods are also included in temporarily restricted net assets at their estimated net value

Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the Club in

perpetuity

Donated Equipment Goods and Services

Equipment provided to the Club by others at no cost is reflected in the statement of activities at

their fair value when utilized Goods and other assets when donated are reflected in the

statement of activities at their fair values at the date of receipt Professional services when

donated are reflected in the statement of activities at their fair value

The Club s success in conducting its mission is higWy dependent on attracting volunteers A

substantial number of volunteers have donated many service hours to the Club s programs and

fund raising campaigns however these donated services are not reflected in the financial

statements since the services do not require specialized skills

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and activities have been summarized on a functional

basis in the statement of activities Accordingly celiain costs have been allocated among the

programs and supporting services benefited

Cham es in Financial Statement Presentation

The Club has changed its method of presenting investment retum in the statement ofactivities

Previously the Club repOlied net realized gains separately from net umealized gains For the

cunent year s presentation the Club combined these amounts of investment return into

Investment net realized and umealized gains Prior period information presented in this repOli
has been restated to conform to this change This presentation conforms to the guidance set forth

in Financial Accounting Standard 124 Accounting for Investments Held by Not far Profit

Organizations

The Club reclassified unrestricted net assets of 81 728 associated with unconditional promises
to give as of March 31 2004 to temporarily restricted net assets This reclassification confornls

to guidance set fOlih in Financial Accounting Standard 116 Accounting for Contributions
Received and Contributions Made
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BOYS GIRLS CLUB OF CORVALLIS INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years Ended March 31 2005 and 2004

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Continued

Summarized Totals

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative infonnation in total

but not by net asset class Such infonuation does not include sufficient detail to constitute a

presentation in confom1ity with generally accepted accounting principles Accordingly such

infomlation should be read in conjunction with the organization1s financial statements for the

year ended March 31 2004 from which the summarized information was derived

Note 2 Promises to Give

Unconditional promises to give are as follows as of March 31
2005 2004

Receivable in less than one year 36 083 28 200

One to five years 67366 53 528

More than five years
103 449 81 728

UnamOliized discount 2 893

100 556 81 728

Allowance for uncollectibles 3 000

Unconditional promises to give net 97 556 81 7 8

Conditional promises to give are as follows as of March 31
2005 2004

Club named beneficiary in will 25 000

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the promise to

give become unconditional

Note 3 Investments

Investments stated at fair value are as follows as of March 31

2005 2004

Equity securities 1 076710 1195 620

Fixed income securities 450 261 531 387

Altemative investments 234 919 1 70 803

Energy and real estate funds 195 766

Certificates of d posit 92 567 92 003

2 050 223 1989 813
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BOYS GIRLS CLUB OF CORYALLIS INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended March 31 2005 and 2004

Note 3 Investments Continued

The Club maintains all of its investments except its certificates of deposit with the Oregon
Conununity Foundation the Foundation in The Boys and Girls Club of Corvallis Endnwment

Fund Variance power over the Club s investments has been granted to the Foundation in an

agreement dated October 25 2000 Legally under circumstances specified in the agreement and

Oregon law the Foundation has the power to make decisions concerning the Club s investments

without approval of the Club s Board The Club receives adistribution from its endowment held

by the Foundation on an annual basis Although the Foundation has variance power over the

Club s investments as required by generally accepted accounting principles for reporting
purposes the Club includes these investments in their net assets and the Foundation does not

Aggregate investment balances held by the Foundation as of March 31 2005 and 2004 were

1 957 656 and 1 897 810 respectively

Note 4 Restricted Net Assets

The statement of financial position reflects amounts for designated temporary and pennanent
restrictions placed on the Club s net assets by the Board and donors The following is a SWlTInary
ofthe more significant programs and their restrictions

Facility Fund The Club established the Facility FW1d with an initial amount of 1 500 000 The

purpose of the fund is to insure the Club s financial ability to maintain its building long into the

future without impact on its programs or CUlTent operating funds The investment eamings ofthe

fund as designated by the Board are to be used exclusively for facility expenses that are

designated in the funds operating guidelines The fund is included with umestricted net assets as

the restrictions on the fW1d are at the Board s discretion

Progrant Endowment Fund In 1998 the Club established the Program Endo vment Fund for all

contributions designated for Club programs Additionally the Club considers all other

contributions unless designated otherwise to be earmarked for Club programs and this fund

Contributions to the fund increase fund principle FW1d principle cannot be expended
Distributions from the fund are limited to 90 percent of the investment earnings of the fund for

the fiscal year Investment earnings net distributions for the fiscal year accrue to fund principle

Thad 0 Brien 1emorial Scholarship Fund In 1999 the Thaddius JR Thad O Brien

Memorial Scholarship FW1d was established The purpose of the fund is to provide scholarships
to boys and girls who do not have the financial means to pay Club fees Contributions to the fund

increase fund principle Fund principle C81IDot be expended Distributions from the fund are

limited to 90 percent of the investment earnings of the fW1d for the fiscal year Investment

earnings net of scholarships for the fiscal year accrue to fund principle

Restricted net assets s11Own on the statement of financial position have been reduced by
expenditures for these purposes
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BOYS GIRLS CLUB OF CORYALLIS INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended March 31 2005 and 2004

Note 5 Line of Credit

The Club has a line of credit for 30 000 maturing August 15 2005 No funds have been

bonowed on the line of credit as of March 31 2005

Note 6 Donated Equipment Goods and Services

Contributions recorded at fair value in the statement of activities for donated equipment goods
and services are as follows for the years ended March 31

2005 2004

Equipment and installation labor security system 25 000

Installation labor front reception desk 3 000

28 000

Note 7 Land Lease

The Club leases the land on which their building was constructed The lease is vith Corvallis

School District the District for a term of 99 years at 1 per year The tern1 of the lease expires
on August 2 2095 The District entered into the lease because the purpose of the Club is

compatible with the educational mission of the District The District has some access to use the

building and has the right to deny the use of the building to any group whose activities ate not in

the sole judgment of the District compatible vrith their educational mission

Upon expiration ofthe lease the Clubs building shall reveli to the District However the District

has agreed to consider an extension of the lease agreement The building will also reveli to the

District if the Club should fail and an alternate successor organization is not in place within a

one year period

Note 8 Concentrations of Credit and Market Risk

As of March 31 2005 the Club had cash deposits in excess of federally insured FDIC limits

totaling 45 348 Uninsured deposits expose the Club to the risk of uninsured loss

Other financial instruments that potentially expose the Club to concentrations of credit and

market risk consist primarily of various investments held by the Oregon Community Foundation

OCF Although not federally insured by FDIC these investments do not represent significant
concentrations of market risk inasmuch as the Club s investment portfolio is adequately
diversified among issuers industries and geographic regions

11



BOYS GIRLS CLUB OF CORVALLIS INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended March 31 2005 and 2004

Note 9 Retirement Plan

The Club maintains a SIMPLE IRA plan for all eligible employees The employer contributes a

matching contribution to each eligible employee s SIMPLE IRA equal to the employee s salary
reduction contribution up to a limit of 3 percent of the employee s compensation for the year
The retirement plan match contributions were 7 581 and 8 191 for the years ended March 31

2005 and 2004 respectively

Note 10 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Club in estin ating the fair value of its

financial instruments

Cash cash equivalents and short term unconditional promises to give The calTying amounts

reported in the statements of financial position approximate fair values because of the Sh011

maturities ofthose instruments

Investments These assets consist primarily of money market funds equity securities mutual

funds and corporate bonds All these investments are valued using quoted market prices The

carrying amounts reported in the statements of financial position are fair value

Long term unconditional promises to give The fair value of unconditional promises to give that

are due in more than one year are estimated by discounting the future cash flows using a cunent

risk free rate of return based on the yield of aUS Treasury security with amaturity date similar

to the expected collection period

Accounts payroll and vacation payable The calTying amounts reported in the statements of

final1cial position for these liabilities approximates fair value
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BOYS GIRLS CLUB OF CORVALLIS INC

SCHEDULES OF SUPPORT AND REVENUE EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Years Ended March 31 2005 and 2004

2005 2004

Unconditional
Promises Summarized

M George To Give Totals

Fund Net Total Restated

Support and Revenue

Contributions 15 828 15 828 72 446

Investment earnings
Total Support and Revenue 15 828 15 828 72 446

NetAssets Released From Restrictions

Total 15 828 15 828 72 446

Increase in Net Assets 5 828 15 828 72446

NetAssets Beginning ofYear 375 81728 82 103 9 657

NetAssets End ofYear 375 97 556 97 931 82 103

See accompanying notes
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ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE 
MINUTES 

May 4,2006 

Present 
Councilor Scott Zimbrick, Chair 
Councilor Jerry Davis 
Councilor Hal Brauner 

Visitors 
Jeff Barricks, Economic Development Allocations Cmte 
Randy Joss, Economic Development Allocations Cmte 
Matt Johnen, Economic Development Allocations Cmte 
John McNamara, AT&T 
Jason Henson, 3020 NW Walnut 
Stacey Sprinkle, Verizon Wireless 
Roger Evans, no address given 
Rick Schroff, 2773 NW gth 
Larry Heacock, 2990 NW Princess 

m f f  
Jon Nelson, City Manager 
Ken Gibb, Community Development Director 
Nancy Brewer, Finance Director 
Judy Somes, Community Development 
Tony Krieg, Finance Department 
Carla Holzworth, City Manager's Office 

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION 

I. Economic Development 
Allocations Orientation 

- - - - -~ - - -  

II. Telecommunications Service 
Tax 

Agenda Item 

Ill. Low Income Utility Bill 
Assistance Program 

IV. Other Business 

Information 
Only 

Hold a public hearing regarding the 
proposed telecommunications tax 
ordinance at the May 15, 2006 
evening Council meeting; no 
recommendation is made on adoption 
of the ordinance 

Approve establishing a low income 
assistance program with a $1,500 
beginning fund balance coming from 
the General Fund and any available 
Council reserves, and establishing a 
low income assistance donation line 
on the City services bill. 

Held for 
Further 
Review 

Chair Zimbrick called the meeting to order at 12:OO p.m. 

Recommendations 

CONTENT OF DISCUSSION 

I. Economic Development Allocations Orientation (Attachment) 

Community Development (CD) Director Ken Gibb introduced CD Management 
Assistant Judy Somes. Ms. Somes reviewed the materials at the Committee's places 
(attached), including an orientation session agenda, the Fiscal Year 2006-07 



Administrative Services Committee 
May 4,2006 
Page 2 

Economic Development Allocations calendar, an itemized list of allocation amounts 
requested, and Council Policy 96-6.03: Economic Development Policies. She said 
today's orientation session is an opportunity for citizen members to meet the 
Administrative Services Committee. Ms. Somes explained that the application 
consists of a cover letter, narrative (six page maximum) and the applicant's financial 
information, plus any attachments. Following the March 31 submission deadline, 
applications are reviewed by CD and the Finance Department. Ms. Somes then 
prepares a memo to Mr. Gibb that outlines results of the review and includes the 
agency's cover letter, narrative, financials, and attachments. She noted that 
applications must address Council goals as shown on page 4 of Council Policy 96- 
6.03. Mr. Gibb added that staff emphasize minimum application requirements at the 
pre-application orientation session. 

Ms. Somes said economic development funding comes from transient room taxes, 
which are split at 50% for economic development goals and activities, 30% for 
Corvallis Tourism, and 20% for economic development allocations. This year, 
allocations funding totals $202,390 and requests total $278,500. Ms. Somes said 
additional materials will be delivered to Committee members either Friday or Monday. 
Presentations to the Committee are scheduled for 5:30 pm on May 16 at the Majestic 
Theatre. Each agencywill have ten minutes to present their funding request, followed 
by a five minute question and answer session. Deliberations are scheduled for 4:30 
pm on May I 8  at the Majestic Theatre. Ms. Somes asked Committee members to 
bring their scores from the presentations at 4:00 pm or shortly thereafter so staff can 
compile the results and deliberations can begin promptly at 4:30 pm. An average 
score will be determined, Committee members will discuss their recommendations, 
and funding award decisions will be made. An evaluation survey will be distributed 
at the end of deliberations, with feedback being used to improve next year's process. 

Chair Zimbrick observed that more allocation funding exists this year than last year 
and he asked how the allocation that was returned last year was factored into the 
figure. Ms. Somes said the total amount includes the returned funds. Mr. Nelson 
noted that the allocations funding is a transparent process; presentations and 
deliberations meetings are taped, open to the public, and include written minutes. 

The item is for information only. 

I I. Telecommunications Service Tax (Attachment) 

Customer Services Manager Tony Krieg reviewed the previously distributed staff 
report. He said approximately 50 people attended the April 13 telecommunications 
service tax public forum. Testimony was given by 16 people, which included a mix of 
industry managers, County residents where the tax does not apply, local business 
representatives, and Corvallis citizens. The staff report addresses issues raised at 

Louie
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Administrative Services Committee 
May 4,2006 
Page 3 

the forum that fell within the ordinance's purview. Staff recommends taking the issue 
to the May 15, 2006 City Council meeting for a decision about whether to adopt the 
ordinance. 

Councilor Brauner noted that today's meeting was scheduled for deliberations, but 
more people would like to testify on the issue. He added that other Councilors asked 
if there would be a public hearing before the Council. Councilor Brauner said instead 
of making a recommendation about adoption of the ordinance, he would prefer to 
recommend scheduling a public hearing for the evening Council meeting on May 15 
so additional comments can be considered. He added that he was mis-quoted 
following the April public forum and wished to clarify that he did not say everyone who 
was against the tax was from the telecommunications industry. 

Councilor Davis agreed that he wants good feedback from the community, so he 
supports recommending a public hearing before the Council. 

Chair Zimbrick asked if anyone from the audience wished to speak, emphasizing that 
the meeting was not a public hearing. 

John McNamara, Tax Director for AT&T, said he does not favor the tax. From a 
technical perspective, the tax will apply to both wholesale and retail transactions, 
which creates difficulties for service providers. He cited an example where Qwest 
would charge AT&T a 30 cent access fee to connect a Corvallis to Seattle call over 
the AT&T network. While AT&T would charge its customer $1 for the call and absorb 
the 30 cent fee from Qwest, the tax would be assessed on $1.30. Mr. McNamara said 
most taxes are only levied on retail transactions and the true cost of the proposed tax 
would end up being around 7% to 7.5%. He added that the revenue estimates do not 
consider that long distance companies will also be subject to the tax, resulting in more 
money coming to the City than what is projected. Councilor Brauner asked 
Mr. McNamara if he had any suggested language to address the concern. 
Mr. McNamara said the tax should be clearly defined as being on retail receipts, not 
gross receipts. Chair Zimbrick asked that at the May 15 public hearing, staff address, 
where possible, the concerns being raised at today's meeting. 

Jason Henson, 3020 NW Walnut, said he does not support the tax, noting that if it is 
implemented, he would have his cell phone bill sent to his business address in 
Albany. 

Stacev Sprinkle, Director of Tax Policy for Verizon Wireless, distributed two 
documents from her organization regarding the proposed tax (attached). 



Administrative Services Committee 
May 4,2006 
Page 4 

Roqer Evans, no address given, said he testified at the previous public forum. He was 
surprised that staff did not modify their recommendation after hearing comments at 
that meeting. Mr. Evans believes people will find a way to get around the tax, that the 
City might raise less revenue than originally expected, and that the tax has the 
potential to drive businesses out of Corvallis. He said the Fire Department has no 
connection to the tax and he encouraged the Committee to have an open mind when 
considering whether to adopt the tax. 

Rick Schroff, 2773 NW 9th Street, believes the tax is discriminatory and that citizens 
should have an opportunity to vote on the matter. 

Larrv Heacock, 2990 NW Princess, urged the Committee to follow the intent of 
Constitution. He opined that Corvallis already has an anti-business attitude and the 
tax would drive existing businesses out of town. Mr. Heacock said the City's income 
increases every year and he believes people will evade the tax. 

The Committee unanimouslv recommends that Council hold a public hearing 
regarding the proposed telecommunications tax ordinance at their May 15, 2006 
evening meeting; no recommendation is made on adoption of the ordinance. 

Committee members agreed they prefer that the entire Council hear public comments 
and decide whether to adopt the ordinance. 

Mr. Nelson clarified the Committee's direction that the May 15 Council packet should 
contain information included in today's ASC packet, staff's observations about the 
concerns raised at today's meeting, including the wholesale versus retail issue, the 
observation that the 5% tax would evolve to a 7% to 7.5% tax, and if possible any 
additional non-proprietary revenue estimates. The May 15 packet should also include 
telecommunications tax documents provided in previous Council packets. The 
Committee agreed. The public hearing will begin at 7:30 pm. 

I I I. Low Income Utilitv Bill Assistance Proqram (Attachment) 

Mr. Krieg said staff proposes adoption of a low-income payment assistance program 
to help with delinquent City services accounts. The City currently refers customers 
to social service agencies, but it is usually after service has been scheduled to be shut 
off or is already disconnected. Staff met with United Way Director Sharon Gibson, 
who recommended modeling the program after the agency's Family Fund program. 
The City would refer the customer to an agency who pre-screens clients for low 
income eligibility. The customer would then be referred to United Way, who would 
then contact the City to arrange payment. 

Staff recommends establishing a $1,500 beginning fund balance, which would serve 
an estimated 15 citizens per year. The initial source of funding could be the General 
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Fund (GF), the utility service funds (USF), a one-time reduction of social services 
monies, and/or customer donations. Staff suggests using one of the City's funds to 
establish the balance and adopting a permanent low income donation line on the City 
services bill. The low-income payment assistance fund would be reviewed annually, 
with the $1,500 target balance being supplemented through donations and, if 
necessary, the GF or USF. If approved, the new fund would begin on May 4,2006. 

Councilor Davis said he supports the program and it is another example of 
implementing social equity in Corvallis. He commended staff for their research; 
Councilor Brauner agreed. 

Ms. Brewer said the United Way has probably already paid some City utility bills 
through their Family Fund. The proposed program is better from a staff perspective 
because the City would not be required to assess eligibility and maintain confidential 
files. Councilor Brauner said he prefers that the $1,500 beginning balance come from 
the GF, but he does not believe it should be the permanent source of funding. He 
suggested that some Council goals monies may exist as another initial funding 
source. The item could come back to the ASC for review in six months when staff 
returns with a discussion about the status of deleting late fees, and then again in 
another six months when staff returns with the one year review of the new Municipal 
Code chapter regarding utility services. 

Chair Zimbrick asked if the balance would be capped at $1,500. Ms. Brewer said the 
City would pay $1,500 to the United Way, who would manage it as a fund and report 
usage to the City. Time is needed to assess the amount of voluntary donations, but 
keeping a targeted balance of $1,500 is recommended. Ms. Brewer added that the 
money would be dedicated for City services billing only. 

The Committee unanimouslv recommends that Council approve establishing a low 
income assistance program with a $1,500 beginning fund balance coming from the 
General Fund and any available Council reserves, and establishing a low income 
assistance donation line on the City services bill. 

IV. Other Business 

The next Administrative Services Committee meeting is scheduled for May 16, 2006 
at 5:30 pm in .the Majestic Theatre for Economic Development Allocations 
presentations. 

The meeting was adjourned at 1 :06 pm. 

Respectfully su bmitted, 

Scott Zimbrick, Chair 
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' Telecommunications Senice Tax 
Public Outreach Plan 

Focus: The Telecommunications Service Tax is Equitable, Efficient, Essential, and Existing 

Audience: Everyone in Corvallis. 

Communications: 

A guest article will be presented to the Gazette-Times summarizing the Telecommwlications 
Service Tax and what the revenue will be used for. 

The first article in the City will focus on: small cost to individuals, big benefit; how to figure 
the cost for the individual, and the fact that this will cost less for the most basic telecom 
service. Share information on the use of the revenue for Fire vehciles. 

The second article in the City will focus on what we have already done to raise revenues and 
decrease costs. 

Additional information will go to advisory boards and commissions. 

Information will go to employees. 

Powerpoint presentation will be published on the local government access channel. 

Power point, staff reports, and FAQ have been published on the web site and will remain 
there with references to those resources listed in the newsletter articles. 

We will look at the possibility of doing a stuffer in the City Services bill for September. 

ATTACHMENT A 
Page 328-a 



Alternatives to Finance Fire Vehicles/Facilities: 

Notes: 
The five year levy assumes raising $2.5 million over the course of five years, with vehicle acquisition and 
construction of the training facility, etc. timed to occur during the five years. 
GO debt assumes a $2.5 million issue and would fund replacements planned over a five year period, matching with 
the debt payback period, along with the Fire training facility, etc. 
To get to the same level of expenditure with the Telecommunications Service Tax as the property tax, the average 
telecommunications bill would have to be between $62 and $75 per month. 

Page 328-b 

Operating Levy - 5 yrs 

GO Debt 

Annual RevIExp 

500,000 

600,000 

Tax Rate 

0.1493 

0.1791 

AV = $250,000 

37.3 1 

44.77 



M E M O R A N D U M  

May 1 1,2006 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Gary Boldizsar, Chief of Police , 

SUBJECT: Consolidating Public Safety Records Functions 
(Benton County Sheriffs Office to Corvallis Police Department 
Memorandum of Understanding between the City, Benton County, AFSCME 
Council 75 local 2064 and 2975) 

ISSUE: 

In addition to two Intergovernmental Agreements on the Consent Agenda for May 15, 2006, 
detaihg the Personnel Transfer and Operations between the City and County, a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) by and between all parties negotiating required elements of consolidation is 
necessary and guided by Oregon Revised Statutes 236.605 - 236.640. Council action is required. 

BACKGROUND : 

During 2003, the City of Corvallis and Benton County entered into a joint study to determine the 
feasibility of consolidating law enforcement services. Although complete consolidation was not 
recommended, City Council adopted eight collaborative objectives including consolidation of the 
Benton County S h e S s  Office records unit with the Corvallis Police Department records unit. 

A joint steering committee comprised of both City and County officials responsible for 
implementing consolidation and collaborative initiatives have agreed that most records functions will 
be conducted by Corvallis Police Records staff under the supervision of the Corvahs Police 
Department, operating under Corvallis records protocols. Ultimately, Benton County Records staff 
will become City of Corvallis employees. The Benton County Sheriffwill maintain .5 FTE for civil, 
probation and parole and jail records work. 

DISCUSSION: 

In addition to the agreements between the County and City, an MOU is required negotiating the 
consolidation of employees from AFSCME Council 75 Local 2064 to Local 2975. 

City and County staff worked with AFSCME Local 2064 and Local 2975 to negotiate the MOU 

7 
meeting the needs of both governments, AFSCME and the effected employees. All parties are in 

ATTACHMENT C 
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Mayor and City Council 
Consolidating Public Safety Records Functions 
May 1 1,2006 
Page 2 of 2 

agreement regarding the MOU. The MOU is incorporated into this report as Attachment A. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recornends that Council authorize the City Manager to sign the Memorandum of 
Understanding. 

Review and Concur: 

Page 328-g 



Memorandum of Agreement 

The City of Corvallis (City); the County of Benton (County); and, the American Federation of 
State County and Municipai Empioyees, Oregon h-SCME Councii 75, Locai 2064 representing 
County employees, and Local 2975 representing City employees agree to the following terms 
regarding the intergovernmental transfer of Records Clerks (Eimployees) ftom the County to the 
City: 

The employees shall retain their ori3@.nal County date of hire for the purposes of vacation, 
sick leave, and working conditions and their time of represented service with the County 
for purposes of seniority (represented service shall be the total service time in both the 
AFSCME Local 2064 and Benton County S h e w s  Deputies Association bargaining 
units). The County, City, and Union agree that the employee who is eligible for the 
County Health and Dental Insurance Retirement Plan will maintain that benefit in a 
separate Agreement and will not be eligible for the City Health and Dental Insurance 
Retirement benefit. 

2) The City shall place the employees on Step 4 of the current with PERS salary schedule 
for their new City position of Records Specialist. The employees shall maintain their 
current merit date and shall not be required to serve a probationary period for the Records 
Specialist position. 

3) The employees shall retain their total vacation and sick leave accruals which shall be 
transferred to the City. 

4) The City is committed to meet the work schedule needs of the employees, especially 
those after school horns needs for the coming school year as long as operational needs 
can be met. 

5) The City and the Local 2975 shall conduct an orientation session within a week of the 
transfer with the employees to discuss benefits, policies, and working conditions. 

6) The employees will be given the opportunity to select City provided health and dental 
insurance benefits during AFSCME open enrollment in May 2006 (May 1-22). This 
agreement, the transfer, and the benefit choices shall become effective July 1,2006. 

For the City For the County 

For Local 2975 For Local 2064 

Date Page 328-h 



City of Corvallisl Benton County 
Intergovernmental Agreement 

Transferring Public Safety Records Employees 

The CITY OF CORVALLIS, a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon, hereinafter referred to as CITY, and Benton 
County, a municipal corporation of the State of Oregon, hereinafter referred to as COUNTY, and jointly referred to as 
PARTIES, or individually as a PARTY, mutually agree as follows: 

.AU notifications necessary under this contract shall be addressed to: 

City of Corvallis Police Department Benton County Sheriffs Office 
Attention: Chief Gary Boldizsar Attention: Sheriff Jim Swinyard 
PO Box 1083 180 NW 5& Street 
Corvallis, OR 9733 9- 1083 Corvallis, OR 97330 
541 766-6925 541 766-6858 

1. TERM: CITY and COUNTY agree that this intergovernmental agreement is entered into pursuant to ORS 
190.010 and to ORS 236.605-236.640. It is the intent of the PARTIES that this agreement be 
effective upon execution. 

2. SCOPE: This Agreement specitically relates to the transfer of two employees of the COUNTY who shall be 
transferred and become employees of the CITY effective July 1,2006. This Agreement provides for 
the terms of this transfer. 

2.1. Employees to be transferred are TSany Crain and Lois Struble hereinafter known as the employees. 

2.2. Transfer is effective July 1,2006. 

2.3. COUNTY is to pay all sums owed in wages or other compensation through a final check or automatic 
deposit for transferred employees as of June 30,2006 in accordance with COUNTY policy and the 
applicable labor contract. 

2.4. COUNTY shall provide for continuation of the employees health insurance and other benefits through June 
30,2006. 

2.5. CITY shall hire the employees as of July 1,2006 as Records Specialists in accordance with the provisions 
of the Intergovernmental Agreement on Operations between the PARTIES and any applicable labor 
agreements. 

2.6. CITY shall be responsible for the employees as of July 1,2006 and for all expenses related to their City 
service as of July 1,2006 subject to the agreed upon contract charges for service pursuant to the 
Intergovernmental Agreement on Operations. 

2.7. COUNTY shall be responsible for any liability, grievance, or claim as a result of the transfer of the 
employees or any action pursuant to their status as COUNTY employees prior to July 1,2006 and shall 
indemnify and hold the CITY harmless from any and all such expense subject to the limitations of the Tort 
Claims Act and this Agreement. 

3. COMPENSATION: 

3.1. Transfer of funds to provide for current liabilities associated with the transferred leaves and benefits of the 
employees shall be the responsibility of the COUNTY. Payment of such costs from COUNTY to CITY shall 
occur no later than July 1,2006. Costing of such liabilities shall be as follows: 

, 
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3.1.1. The agreed upon value of all leaves transferred to CITY fiom COUNTY. 
3.1.2. The agreed upon value of health benefits for the month of July 2006 for the employees. 

3.2. Ongoing costs associated with the costs to provide law enforcement records smvices shall be in accordance 
wi t .  the separate Intergovernmental Agreement for Operations between CITY and COUNTY. 

4. The PARTIES intend that, in performing this agreement, each shall act as an independent contractor and shall have 
the control of the work and the manner in which it is performed. Neither CITY nor COUNTY is to be considered 
an agent or employee of the other. 

5. INDEMNIFICATION: Subject to the limitations and conditions of the Oregon Tort Claims Act ORS 30.260- 
30.300, each party agrees to hold the other harmless, to ind- and to defend the other, its officers, agents, 
volunteers and employees fiom any and all liability, actions, claims, losses, damages or other costs including 
attorneys fees and witness costs that may be asserted by any person or entity arising &om, during, or in 
connection with the performance of the work described in this agreement, when such liability, action, claim, 
loss, damage or other cost results fiom the actions of that party in the course of this agreement. Nothing in this 
agreement shall be deemed to create a liability for any party in excess of the Oregon Tort claims limits for 
either party. 

6. INSURANCE: The PARTIES shall provide insurance as indicated: 

6.1. Workers' compensation insurance in compliance with ORS 656.017, which requires subject employers to 
provide Oregon workers' compensation coverage for all their subject workers. 

6.2. General Liability insurance with a combined single limit, or the equivalent, of not less than $500,000 each 
claim, incident, or occurrence for Bodily Injury and Property Damage. It shall include contractual liability 
coverage for the indemnity provided under this contract, and shall be in a form at least as broad as 
Commercial General Liability IS0 form CG 0001. 

6.3. Each insurance endorsement shall state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, or canceled by either 
party, reduced in coverage or in material limits except after thuty (30) days prior written notice by cehtied 
mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the other PARTY. Each PARTY shall furnish acceptable 
insurance d c a t e s  to the other with original endorsements for each insurance policy signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. CCertifcates will be received and approved by prior 
to its issuance of a Notice to Proceed. Each PARTY shall be financially responsible for all pertinent 
deductibles, self-insured retention and/or self-insurance. 

7. PARTIES shall comply with all applicable federd state and local laws, rules and regulations on 
nondiscrimhation in employment. The parties agree not to discriminate on the basis of race, religion, sex, 
color, national origin, family status, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identScation, age, source of 
income, or mental or physical disability in the performance of this agreement. 

8. PARTIES shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub. Law No. 101-3361, ORS 
30.670 to ORS 30.685, ORS 659.425, ORS 659.430, and all regulations and admhdmtive rules established 
pursuant to those laws. 

9. This writing is intended both as the final expression of the agreement between the PARTIES with respect to the 
included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement. No modification of 
this agreement shall be effective unless and until it is made in writing and signed by both PARTIES. 

Dated this dayaf 
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Dated this 

I 

Benton County 

day of 

City of Corvallis 

Benton County Sheriff 

Approved as to form: 

Benton County Attorney 

City Manager 

Approved as to form: 
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Somes, Judy 
..... . . . . I .  . . ,  , 

From: Richard ~ r y a i t  [altavistadesign@comcast.net] 

Sent: Friday, May 12,2006 5:40 PM 

To : Somes, Judy 

Subject: kiternate Solution for Van Buren Bridge 

Judy: 

Can you foiward the following letter and petition attachment to the Mayor and City Manager in advance of the next 
Council meeting? I don't have e-mail addresses for them. 

Thanks - Dick Bryant 

Dear Mayor Berg: 

During my years serving on the Corvallis Riverfront Commission, there was strong support voiced for a bike and 
pedestrian bridge connecting the new Riverfront Park with Berg Park. That vision is still strongly held, supported, and 
now achievable. b 

The current ODOT proposals to construct a new highway bridge in the vicinity of the old Van Buren Bridge fall well short 
of meeting the functional, aesthetic and budget needs for this project. 

As an alternative solution,.the Committee to Save and Relocate the Historic Van Buren Bridge is currently circulating an 
advisory petition that contains a concept we believe will best meet the varied interests of the City and ODOT. Our 
proposed alternative solution relocates and reuses the old Van Buren Bridge to a location that is much more suitable for a 
bike and pedestrian river crossing. 

We hope that you can support the solution offered in our petition and can help to discuss the merits of our proposal with 
ODOT staff. Further, we believe that your support for the alternative solution outlined in the petition narrative can help 
turn ODOT towards a better answer to a much needed new bridge. 

On May 10th the Benton County Open Space and Parks Advisory Board passed an advisory motion that supports 
relocating and saving the old Van Buren Bridge. , 

Your help in opening doors to promote this alternative bridge solution can certainly influence ODOT to re-examine their 
thinking. ODOT currently finds themselves floundering with five options that seem to satisfy no one. ODOT really needs 
help to remove themselves from the horns of the dilemma they appear to be caught on at the moment. It is time for 
ODOT to set aside the old solutions they have been pushing for 13 years and look at our alternative solution as a fresh 
idea that can pump widespread support into this badly needed project. 

ODOT has the ability to outlast the opposition, but outlasting the opposition is not an example of government operating at 
its best level. The time has come to stop wasting consulting engineer dollars and staff time on old ideas that are all out of 
step with this community. 

The alternate concept proposed in the petition will save tax-payer dollars while achieving a solution that meets the 
multiple concerns and objectives of reasonable people. 

Just imagine the spectacular view of the river we will be able to enjoy from a bike and pedestrian bridge that is located 
well away from the noise and pollution of cars and trucks streaming by on the new replacement bridge. A 
relocated historic bridge that is converted to enjoyable bike and pedestrian use is ultimately one of the best sustainable . 

gifts that ODOT can give the citizens of our community. 

Richard Bryant, co-chair ATTACHMENT D 
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Citizen Preference Petition 
Historic Van Buren Bridge Replacement 

The Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) recently proposed several 
design options to construct a new bridge crossing the Willamette River in the vicinity 
of the historic \,/an Buren Bridge. 

None of the five options presented are suitable solutions to the problem. The five 
proposed options will result in conditions that we believe will be out of character with 
the community. The five current optipns will not serve the best interests of the 
citizens of our community or the State of Oregon. 

Problem: 
The five current design options presented by ODOT will result in one or more of the 
following negative impacts: 

The historic Van Buren Bridge may be lost through demolition. 

The historic Van Buren Bridge will be aesthetically compromised if it remains 
in the current location. Imagine the "visual logjam" that will result if three 
bridges are forced to occupy the space meant for only two bridges. 

If the historic Van Buren Bridge remains in the current location, the Rivelfront 
Park will be significantly degraded by the new and remaining bridgehead 
structures. 

If the historic Van Buren Bridge remains in the current location, the joy of 
using the historic structure as a bike and pedestrian bridge will be severely 

- compromised. The adjacent traffic noise, congestion,'loss of river views and 
air-pollution will create a completely negative experience for bikers and 
pedestrians wishing to cross the river. 

The total project cost of the current ODOT options will be higher than 
necessary due to the cost of engineering and constructing a temporary bridge, 
possible need to acquire private property, and extended construction time. 

The time required to complete any of the five current ODOT options will result 
in extended community disruption. Extended construction time will lengthen 
the time that transportation routes, daily activities, and adjacent properties are 
disturbed. 

The City and County will lose property tax revenue if ODOT is required to 
purchase private property to construct a replacement bridge. 

Page 328-j 
Page I 



Citizen Preference Petition 
Historic Van Buren Bridge Replacement 

Proposed Solution: 

1. Relocate and save the historic Van Buren Bridge, for use as a bike and 
pedestrian river crossing. Relocation site on lSt Street well south of Van 
Buren. Suggested 1 Street sites: 

Adams Avenue & lSt Street 
Mid-block crossing between Adams and Jefferson 
Jefferson Avenue & lSt Street 

2. Construct the new Van Buren Bridge to fit within the current Van Buren public 
right-of-way. 

Historic Bridge Relocation Advantages: 

1. Historic Van Buren Bridge is preserved and re-used. 

2. Creates a scenic, safe, and quiet Willamette River crossing for pedestrians 
and bike riders. The parks on the east and west side of the river are linked by 
a preserved historic bridge that provides the following benefits: 

Beautiful vistas up and down the river from the relocated bridge. 

Moves the historic bridge away from the noise and air-pollution 
generated by traffic on the new Van Buren Bridge and the existing 
Harrison Bridge. 

Avoids the "visual logjam" of three bridges piled closely together 
between Harrison and Van Buren. 

No "taking" of private property is required to construct the new Van 
Buren replacement bridge. No loss of property tax revenue for the City 
or County because all private land remains in private ownership. 

No loss of parking on 1'' Street or Van Buren. 

Reduces overall project costs and construction time. 

Reduced construction time means less disruption of transportation 
routes and activities along the Riverfront Park and the Downtown area. 
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Citizen Preference Petition 
Historic Van Buren Street Bridge Replacement 

We, the undersigned, want ODOT to save and relocate the historic Van Buren 
Bridge as part of the planned bridge project to improve traffic flow crossing the 
Willameiie Fiver at Van Buren. 

The historic Van Buren Bridge should be relocated to an appropriate 1'' Street 
setting between Jefferson and Adams. 

Name Address Date 

Petition sponsored by the Committee to Save and Relocate the Historic Van Buren Bridge. 
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Re: proposed language for  city charter Page 1 of ; 

[Date PrevITDate NextITTkread PrevI~Thread NextlrBate IndexIrThread Index] 

?e: proposed language for city charter 

To: "Rob Gandara" < Ward5@xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx~ 
Subjecf; Re: proposed language for city charter 
From: "Rob Gandara" < Ward5@xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx~ 
Date: Sun, 14 May 2006 21:24:51 -0700 (PDT) 
Cc: kat hy . louie@xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx, ward l@xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx, 
ward2@xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx1 ward3@xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx1 
ward4@xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx1 ward5@xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx1 
ward6@xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx1 ward7@xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx1 

Importance: Normal 
In-reply-to: ~1096.24.22.126.206.1147666905.squirrel@xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx~ 
References. ~000801~67513$e8829~20$4100000a@DaveL~ 
~1096.24.22.126.206.1147666905.squirrel@xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx~ 
User-agenf: SquirrelMail/l.4.4 

one smal l  change 

> Hey, 
> 
> Kathy cou ld  you pr 'n t  t h i s  and have i t  on our p laces a t  noon.   hanks 
> 
> Sect ion  4 ~ e s p o n s i  b i l i t y  t o  a l l  People. The c i t y  s h a l l  exerc ise  i t s  
> power t o  ensure t h e  equal p r o t e c t i o n ,  t reatment  and representa t ion  o f  a l l  
> persons w i t h o u t  d i  sc r im i  n a t i  on i n c l  u d i  ng, bu t  n o t  1  i m i  t e d  t o ,  age, 
> c i t i z e n s h i p  s ta tus ,  c o l o r ,  fami 1 i a1 s ta tus ,  gender 
> i ndent i  t y  o r  expression, m a r i t a l  s ta tus ,  mental d i  sabl i t y ,  mati  onal 
> o r i  g i  n  , physi  ca l  d i  sabl i t y  , race re1 i g i  on re1 i g i  ous observance, sex, 
> sexual o r i e n t a t i o n  and source o f  income. c o r v a l l i  s  i s  a  community t h a t  
> honors d i v e r s i t y  and d i ve rse  i n t e r e s t s ,  and asp i res  t o  be f r e e  o f  
> p re jud i ce ,  b i g o t r y  and hate. 
> 
> I f e e l  i t  deserves i t s  own sec t i on ,  r a t h e r  than muddling sec t i on  3 .  we 
> would need t o  renumber the  r e s t  o f  t h e  document. 
> 
> 
> 
> 

References: 
o Federal regulations re: Van Buren Bridge 

From: Dave Livingston 
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2005-06 Benton County 
Needs Assessment 

A Partnership Between 
Benton County 

city of Corvaliis 
Cowailis Clinic 

Samaritan Health S e ~ c e s  
Oregon State University 

Un~ted Way of Benton County 

I '' 
'- ": g, ' ' @ @ ' 
: :. .. . . @ a 

New Component of the Survey 

> - ,  
" * *  * .oa 

'I).. so... 

:::: . . 

Community Needs and Issues 

Methodology .... Cogan Owens and Cogan 
i n  association with Davis Hibbltts and Midghall 

Stakeholders were asked what they thought 
were the key elements of a healthy 
community 
Followed up by asking service providers and 
the participants in the random sample survey 
to respond to the key elements identified 
All were asked to rank the importance of the 
elements 

f .36  
o l l i - 0  a*... 

a... a.m.. 

:::: . . 

P i ) B  
"no. OdW*. ..... :::: .... . . 

Key Elements of a "Healthy 
Community" 

Low Income Households Needing Assistance in Last 
12 Months (top ten responses) 

Not abie to get Dental Care 27% 
Anxiety Stress and Depression 27% 

s Not Able to Get Medical Care 21% 
Money For Food 21% 
Money for Housing 20% 
Money for Utilities 20% 
Assisting an Elderly Person 18% 
Assisting a Disabled Person 18% 
Money for Clothing or Shoes 12% 
Not Able to Get Mental health Care 10% 

ATTACHMENT F 
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Stakeholder Interviews conducted with I 1  
Community Leaders 
Random Sample Telephone Survey of 500 
C0unty residents (including 213 low-income households) 

Mail Out Service Provider Survey (47) 
Two focus Groups ... Substance Abuse and 
Health Care 
Secondary Research (21 different sources, 
list on page 10) 

< O 
i * 

O*. 

0.. *a*.. 

a.e. .... . . 

Un-prompted response to 
"Most Significant Problems Facing Benton County" 

Strong EconornyIAdequate Employment 
Ability to meet basic needs for food shelter, 
clothing, education and health care 
Opportunities to Pursue a Healthy Lifestyle 
Cultural Activities 
Community Interaction and Involvement 

See Bar Chart on Page 7 

- O F 1  
U S  b e  on... ..... o m s o  
e... 
..om . . 

Drug and Alcohol Abuse 10% 
Lack of Affordable Housing 6% 
Underfunded Schools 6% 
Unplanned Growth 5% 
Poor Quality of Schools 5% 
Unemployment 5% 



Recommendations 

Increase public education and awareness 

Community Forums to discuss issues, impacts and 
strategies 
Media Coverage, with an emphasis on succesful 
programs and gaps in resources 
Expanded efforts to publicize volunteer opportunities 
and civic engagement 

Encourage cooperation and collaboration 
among service providers, public agencies, 
and business community, particularly in 
health care funding 

Establish working groups to explore and evlauate 
health care service and funding issues 
Encourage OSU faculty members to study these 
issues in depth 
Evaluate models used by other jurisdictions to address 
these issues 

Recommendations (Continued) 

In Closing 

n711 
" , * a  5... 

li... D.... .... .... . . 

The partnership to conduct the Community 
Needs Assessment is a great start for future 
partnerships to solve community issues. 

For a copy of the needs assessment you can 
download from www.Unitedwavbc.~eak.orq 

Allocate additional resources to address 
substance abuse problems at all levels 

Recommendations (continued) 

I Advocate for increased public funding I 

C i i l  
ma;. C ! E . . . .  

ii*.. ..... .... .... . . 

Encourage businesses and citizens to focus their 
charitable giving on local non-profits or initiatives that 
address these issues (education, prevention, 
enforcement) 

,-m 
" em. 

Recommendations (continued) 

Place a high priority on public resources and 
strategies that enhance a healthy community 

Note examples of successful programs 
Cite tangible benefits of such efforts 
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Telecommunications Service Tax 
May 15,2006 

City staffreceived anumber ofphone calls regarding the teleco~~~nunications services tax beginning 
about 4:15 pm today. One of the callers said she had received a recorded message fiom an 
organization instructing her to call a telephone number (the Customer Services Manager in the 
Finance Department) to register her vote on the telecommunications services tax proposal. 

Staff received about 50 phone calls by 5:00 pm fiom citizens casting their vote against the 
telecommunications services tax. 

ATTACHMENT H 
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511 5/06, via telephone 

Mike and Kristina Sreniawski 
725 NW Sundance Circle 
Corvallis OR 97330 
Ward 9 

I oppose any new taxes on my home phone, cell phone, or internet service without a vote. 

511 5/06, via telephone 

Kenneth and Linda Rowe 
3430 NW Roosevelt Drive 
Corvallis OR 97330 

Ward 8 

Please vote no on the new telephone tax, most particularly affects the home phone. 

5/15/06, via telephone 

Robert Parker 
2290 NW Hazel 
Corvallis OR 97330 
Ward 8 

New taxes at this time do not seem right to me. The government needs to control its spending. I 
wish I had a .  open check book. I'm trying to raise kids. 

511 5/06, via telephone 

Jessica Chabino 

1 122 SE Bell Avenue 

ComalGs OR 97333 

Ward 3 
ATTACHMENT G 
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511 5/06, via telephone 

Gloria Scoville 

2070 NW Dogwood Drive 

Corvallis OR 97330 

Ward 7 

Requesting "no" vote on telecommunications tax issue. 

511 5/06, via telephone 

Karen Darsie & Lawrence Haley 

915 NW 30th Street 

Corvallis OR 97330 

Ward 5 

Requesting "no" vote on telecomunications tax issue. 

511 5/06, via telephone 

Martin Hellickson 

3 120 NW Greenbriar Place 

Corvallis OR 97330 

Ward 8 

Requesting "no" vote on telecommunications tax issue. 

511 5/06, via telephone 

Haroldine John 

5569 SW Redtop Place 

Corvallis OR 97333 

Ward 1 

Requesting "no" vote on telecommunications tax issue. 

5/15/06, via telephone 

Randy Boj anowski 

2245 NW 14th Sb-eet 

Corvallis OR 97330 
Page 328-q 
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1. [Date Brev] [Date Next] [Thread Qrev] [Thread Next] [Date Index] [Thread Index] 

~web~Telecommunications service tax 

Subject: ~web>Telecommunications service tax 

From: stewart wershow <wershos@,,xxxxxx-ra> 

Date: Mon, 15 May 2006 15:59:33 -0700 

This is an enquiry e-mail via %s from: stewart wershow (wershos@xxxxxxxx) 
My name is Stewart Wershow and I live at 1541 NW 12th Street in Corvallis. 
I support the proposed telecommunications service tax and urge its adoption. 
Contrary to what some think this tax is fair and equitable. 
At present, telecommunication services are not treated equally. Land lines are 
taxed (through a franchise fee) while wireless is not. This proposed tax 
levels the playing field for all. 
The money raised will be used for critical and unavoidable fire department 
needs such as fire vehicle replacement. If the telecommunication fee is not 
adopted, the council will be forced to fund these items with property tax 
funds. From my reading of the city's budget that would require a reduction in 
funding to the parks and the library. Since our parks and library are among 
the main reasons people choose to live here, such reductions would hurt 
property values in Corvallis. 
I have attended the recent budget commission meetings and have served on the 
City Council for four years from 2001 to 2004. I know there is no spare fat 
in the budget. The telecommunications service tax will broaden the funding 
base for the fire department and not add to the property tax payer's burden. 
I urge its adoption 

Prev by Date: Re: Your life, calvx tube 

Previous by thread: Re: Your life, calm tube 

Index(es) : 

Date 

Thread 
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1. [Date Brev][Date Next][Thread Prev][Thread Next][Date Index][Thread Index] 

<web>Cel Phone Tax 

To: w a r d 7 @ , x x w x x x x x x x x x x ~ x ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  

Subject: <web>Cel Phone Tax 

Frorn: "Gerald D. Waite" <,odwpgw@,xxxxl~~~l~~~x> 

Date: Mon, 15 May 2006 14:58:09 -0700 

This is an enquiry e-mail via %s from: Gerald D. Waite (gdwpgw@xxxxxxxxxxx) 
I strongly object to the imposition of this tax. There is no logical basis 
for this tax. 
Its time the city live within a budget and NOT request tax increases or new 
taxes whenever it wants more money. Families don't get raises whenever they 
want more money. The city needs to budget responsibly with the resources it 
has currently available. NO NEW OR RAISED TAXES. 
If you vote for this tax I guarantee I will not vote for you for re-election 
Gerald Waite 

Prev by Date: Love: The irresistable desire to be irresistablv desired 

Next by Date: Reminder: Upcoming Network Events 

Previous by thread: Love: The irresistable desire to be irresistablv desired 

Next by thread: Reminder: Upcorninp Network Events 

Index(es) : 

Date 

Thread 
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1. [Date Prev][Date Next][Thread Prev][Thread Next][Date Index][Thread Index] 

Cell phone tax 

To: Betty Griffiths Ward 8 < w a r d S @ , ~ x m l ; x ~ x x ~ x m ~ x ~ >  

Subject: Cell phone tax 

From: Ken Kingsley <enka@xxxxmmxxx> 

Date: Mon, 15 May 2006 15:56:47 -0700 

In-reply-to: <4439753D.2020404@,sxxxg~sx~ r r  > 

User-agent: Microsoft-Entourage/l0.0.0.1309 

Title: Cell phone tax 

Hi Betty! 

I urge you to vote against adding a cell phone tax to raise funds for our 
emergency services. I agree that we need to find ways to finance these 
programs, but it should be based on all citizens contributing equally, not just 
those with local cell telephone numbers. For example, as proposed, those 
OSU students with cell phones from other communities who benefit from our 
emergency services would not have to contribute. 

Let's find a fair way to fund these programs. 

Thank you, 

Ken Kingsley 

Prev by Date: Reminder: Upcoming Network Events 

Previous by thread: Cell Phone Tax 

Next by thread: Earth Charter Celebration and You're Invited! 

Index(es) : 

Date 

Thread 
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1. [Date Prev][Date Next][Thread Prev][Thread Next][Date Index][Thread Index] 

Telecommunication Service Tax 

To: < m a v o r ( i i > , x x x m ~ ~ r a x >  

Subject: Telecommunication Service Tax 

From: "Dorothy Evans" <devans@,x 7> 

Date: Mon, 15 May 2006 14:16:56 -0700 

Dear Mayor Berg, 

As senior citizens, my husband and I live on Social Security. Necessary frugality limits the use of our our 
cell phone to emergency only when traveling to various medical facilities. 

Your proposed sales tax on our cell and land line phone would be an additional financial hardship for us in 
these times of rising fuel and food prices. 

We believe any new tax should be put on the ballot to be decided by the voters of Corvallis. I believe it is 
arrogant to assume everyone is able to afford and can support this tax. 

Respectfully, 

Bob and Dorothy Evans 

Prev by Date: Love: The irresistable desire to be irresistablv desired 

Next by Date: Reminder: U~comine Network Events 

Previous by thread: Love: The irresistable desire to be irresistablv desired 

Next by thread: Reminder: Upcoming. Network Events 

Index(es): 

Date 

Thread 
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1. [Date Prev][Date Next][Thread Prev][Thread Next][Date Index][rThread Index] 

Telecommunications tax 

To: < m a v o r @ , , x x x x x ~ x x x x x x >  

Subject: Telecommunications tax 

From : "S K ALLEN" <sandv al len99@,nxm> 

Date: Mon, 15 May 2006 11:58:25 -0700 

Seal-send-time: Mon, 15 May 2006 11 :58:25 -0700 

I strongly object to the proposed telecommunications service tax ordinance. I don't believe you 
should impose any new tax without allowing the voters of Corvallis to decide if they support or 
oppose the tax. 

Please do not tax our communication services. 

Sincerely, 

Sandy Allen 

Prev by Date: SAVE 82%: VLAGR*, AMBLE*, CIALI*, XANA*, RNOTRI:k, 
LEVITR*, CIPRO, MEFUDI*, CELEBRE*, VALIU* occasion 

Next by Date: Recister todav for the NIJ Conference! 

Previous by thread: SAVE 82 % : VIAGR*, AMBIE*, CIALI*, XANA*, RIVOTRI*, 
LEVITR*, CIPRO, MERIDI*, CELEBRE*, VALIU* occasion 

Next by thread: Register today for the NIJ Conference! 

Date 

Thread 
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2720 NW Mulkey Avenue 
Corvallis,OR 97330-2437 

753-5960 
May 15,2006 

Mayor md  City Council Members: 

I would like to coinment in FAVOR of the telecomnunications service fee. 

Corvallis has had h c h s e  fees for land line telephone, electric power and na.tural gas utilities 
for a number of years and these help support basic city services. 

A telecoin1nunications service fee is a reasonable addition to the above fees reflecting the 
changing coin~nunication world that we live in today. , 

At one time toll bridges in Benton County instituted fees for animals that were taken across the 
bridges; as animal crossings disappeared the fees were removed as transportation methods 
changed My point is that changing times require changes in fees and it is appropriate at tlvs 
tiine to iinpleinent a service fee on telecommunications. 

It would also "level the playing field" as then both land h e  telephone senice and 
teleco~unication s e ~ c e  would have equal fees. It is an injustice to have a service fee on one 
of two similar services and not the other. 

Telecomunicatiozls should be like any other business that functions in Comllis and help pay 
for basic city services. 

Lastly, the fees that are listed on the billing statements make the whole process "transparent" so 
that the customer knows exactly what is talung place. 

Robert R. Lowq 
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17. Date Prevlpate Next]-Preread Nextlpate IndexlTThread Index] 

~web>Telecommunications Tax 

To: ward9r 

Subject: Cweb>Telecommunications Tax 

From: John Lynch <jllvnch2(ii?xxxxxxxxx9xxx> 

Date: Mon, 15 May 2006 09:38:07 -0700 

Reply-to : <jllvnch20,-> 

This is an enquiry e-mail via %s from: John Lynch ( j l l y n c h 2 @ ~ )  
please, no new taxes! Now is not the time to add to the tax burden. Vote no on 
the telecommunications tax. We need the police and fire departments, so cut 
the parks & rec budget or library services. 

Thank you 
John Lynch 

8Prev by Date: JSPAMl Communitv Wireless Authorities Meet in 1 Week 

Next by Date: JSPAMl Plavine this Mav on National Citv Network 

Previous by thread: ~web>Telecommunications Tax 

Next by thread: Van Buren Bridge Petition 

Thread 
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<web>Telecommunication Tax 

To: mavorC 

Subject: <web>Telecommunication Tax 

From: Charley Fisher <sucharm,-> 

Date: Mon, 15 May 2006 10:29:55 -0700 

This is an enquiry e-mail via %s from: Charley Fisher (suchar@xxxxxxxxxxxx) 
Mayor Berg, 
I am sending this e mail in support of the telecommunications tax you and the 
council are considering. While it is difficult to say that anyone wants more 
taxes, I have two reasons to support this particular tax. First of all, with 
the changing technology from hard wire to wireless communication, the tax 
system should change as well to reflect the change in technology. Secondly, 
the wise use of the tax revenue by the city is what makes Corvallis the 
desirable place we all enjoy. As a member of the Park and Recreation Advisory 
Board for many years, I have seen first hand how those tax dollars have been 
used wisely to leverage more revenue from outside sources, the careful 
processes with which Park and Recreation projects have been studied and 
prioritized and the general scrutiny that accompanies budget management. I 
trust that other departments are as well managed and if additional revenue is 
provided for Parks and Recreation it will get that careful scrutiny and allow 
f! 
or some projects that are desired and even needed, but slightly lower on the 

priority list. 

Thank you 
Charley Fisher 

Prev by Date: JSPAM1 Plavine this Mav on National Citv Network 

Next by Date: <web>dedicated cell phone tax 

Previous by tbread: <web>Telecommunication Tax 

Next by thread: YES to tax on cell phones! 

Index(es) : 

Date 

Thread 
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<web>dedicated cell phone tax 

To: mavorf' 

Subject: <web>dedicated cell phone tax 

Fronz: Rolland Baxter <baxter(ii>,,xxxxxxgxxxx> 

Date: Mon, 15 May 2006 10:35:43 -0700 

This is an enquiry e-mail via %s from: Rolland Baxter (baxter@xxxxxxxxxxx) 
Good morning Helen, 

I have some comments on the communications tax. 

If the City needs additional revenues to support services, then fees and taxes 
need to be raised. I don't like taxes, but I do like services, so I tend to 
support reasonable fees and taxes (as do most of your citizens). 

But, I do not support this tax as you appear to have structured it. My major 
problem with the proposed TAX is that you appear to dedicate it to one 
service. For that reason, I oppose this tax. Taxes should be a general 
revenue to the general fund and then allocated out each year on the basis of 
need and priority. By dedicating to one department, you basically signal that 
you intend to support this service possibly to the detriment of a balanced set 
of services. Or else you think that people will support it because they 
generally support fire and police services. In any case, I don't support 
dedicating this tax and I suspect many others don't either. So make it a 
general income to the General fund. You can still allocate it each year as 
necessary, but you won't later be held up by the fire department when they 
say, "yea, but it is our money and you can't use it for (library, roads, 
parks, etch ...y ou fill in the next service that may need a bail-out). 

The City also has a credibility problem with some citizens. They remember 
that you said you wouldnlt open the new station on 53rd unless you could 
afford it without any additional staff and equipment. That may not be 
precisely what you said, but that is what they thought. Now I hear people ask 
the question "what happened to this commitmentn. You may want to answer that 
question in a forum where people will see the response. 

I hope people see through the self-serving campaign by the "oregon 
Telecommunications Assnu and ignore their input. It won't cost the telecoms 
but a few pennies to handle this tax and they certainly don't pay it . . . . . . .  we 
do, the citizens. So the Council should heavily discount their input. I 
would also discount the input from their little "campaignu. they don't offer 
any good reasoning for opposition other than "a tax is bad". And that should 
not be sufficient. 

Have a nice hearing. 
Page 328-z 



1. [Date Prev] [Date Next] [Thread Prev] [Thread Next] [Date Index] [Thread Index] 

Telecommunications Tax. 

To: Rob Gandara < w a r d 5 @ , x x ~ x x x x x x x ~ >  

Subject: Telecommunications Tax. 

From: obermire <obermirerc@,,xx~~x9xx> 

Date: Sun, 14 May 2006 10:24:19 -0700 

Dear Rob, 

My wife Carolyn and I are opposed to any new city tax on telecommunications. We currently 
pay over $20/ month in junk fees on our telephone statement. Any new taxes should be placed 
before the city voters. If money is needed for upgrading fire department equipment I believe 
the taxpayers within the fire district will approve such funding. However, the proposed 
telecommunications tax is not dedicated exclusively for the fire departments needs and could 
and probably will be used for other purposes in the future. 

Sincerely, 

Robert Obermire 
937 NW 11th St. 
Corvallis , OR 
541/758-2105 

Follow-Ups: 

Re: Telecommunications Tax. 

From: Rob Gandara 

Prev by Date: ISPAMl Tre:l After market news 

Next by Date: park in^ restrictions on 13th St. 

Previous by thread: JSPAMl Ire:l After market news 

Next by thread: Re: Telecommunications Tax. 

Index(es) : 

Date 

Thread 
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My Cell Phone Page 1 of 1 

i p a t e  Prev] [Date Nest] [Thread Prgy] [Thread Next1 [Date Irides] [Dlead Index] 

My Cell Phone 

To : ~ I Z ~ ~ ~ ~ I ~ , X ~ X X ~ X X ~ X X ~ X X ~ X ~ ) ~ X X X  
Subject: My Cell Phone 

a From: Char Wessels <cham~(6J?r~mxi> 
Date: Sun, 14 May 2006 11:28:'68 -0700 

Dear Mayor and Councilpersons, 

The only reason I have a Cell phone is in case of an emergency while driving. I am 
an old lady and need it for help. I very seldom use it for anything else. 
It is already too expensive and I would hate to have 5% added on to my bill. Please 
Do Not Pass the Tax Ordinance now being considered. 

Thank You, 

Char Wessels 

Prev by Date: Re: Smokeonc_e_, get h_o__~kedfor-b:e 
Next by Date: [SPAM] Community Wireless Authorities Meet in 1 Week 
Previous by thread: Re: Smoke once, yet hooked for live 
Next by thread: [S-P-AkQ .Com_inuni~.Wirel.essA~h_o_ritiesSsM_e_e~ 1-Weeh 
Index(es): 

o Date 
o Thread 
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[Date Prev] mate Next] [Thread P r - ]  [Thxead Next1 Date Il~dexl [Thread Index] 

5% telecommunications TAX 

To: <n~ay~r@,xxxxx~?ixx~~xx?~);~~~~~?~;~x~ 
Subject: 5% telecommunications TAX 
From: "Lillian" <smitldal3 5 @,X=~YXXX> 

Date: Sat, 13 May 2006 16:51:00 -0700 

Mayor Berg, 
If I had a vote (which in Corvallis we do not) I would vote NO on the 5% telecommunications 
Tax. Having attended some of the Council meetings I am aware that many on the Council 
pretend to listen but actually hear their own voice. So I have little confidence that this will be 
voted down. What ever happened to Democracy???? 
Lillian Smith 

Prev by Date: <web>Web Reauest 
Next by Date: [QUARANTINED] re: The hottest Dick 
Previous by thread: Re: This thinv is awesome! 
Next by thread: [OUARANTINEDl re: The hottest ~ i c k  
Index(es): 

o m  
o Thread 
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PROPOSED PHONE TAX Page 1 of 1 

I pa te  Prev] [Date Next] [_Tlhead Prev] [Thread Next] Date Index] [Thread Index] 

PROPOSED PHONE TAX 

a To : MAY ~ R ~ . ~ x ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ x x ~ x x ~ x ~ Y x x ? u ~  
a Subject: PROPOSED PHONE TAX 
a From: DAVID WAGNER <dasha3 3 @ ~ Y T ; x Y ? ~ . >  

a Date: Fri, 12 May 2006 11:42:19 -0760 (PDT) 

Helen Berg; 

I think it's time to stop the taxing mentality of this city. Our city government does not need any more 
money. Cowallis could cut its budget by 30% and still have enough funds for the necessary functions of 
this city. For a town of only 50,000, Corvallis, relative to other cities of its size, has a much larger 
budget than they do. 

Be fiscally responsible, for a change, and vote against the proposed phone tax ordinance. 

David Wagner 

a Prev by Date: EVP Town Hall M ~ P  - June 7 
a Next by Date: Re: Telecommunications Service Tax Ordinance 
a Previous by thread: <~veb>telecommunicatipns service tax 
a Next by thread: PPAMl Howard Dean in Ore~on! 
a Index(es): 

o Date 
0 Thread 
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<web>Cell phone tax Page 1 of 1 

[Date Prey] [Date Next] [TI-read Prevl [Thread Next1 Date Inde>i] [Thread Index] 

<web>Cell phone tax 

To : w a r d 8 @ x ? ~ ) ; x ~ ~ ~ x x ~ ~ ) ; ~ x x x x x ~ x x x  
Subject: <web>Cell phone tax 
From: Gilbert Seid <gvseid@m=~=x> 
Date: Fri, 12 May 2006 13:53:16 -0700 

0 Reply-to : <gvseidiiix~,~xx?~~>ixxx> 

This is an enquiry e-mail via % s  from: Gilbert Seid (gvseid@xxxxxxxxxxx) 
Please vote NO on cell phone tax. 
Thank you, 
Gilbert Seid 
Antoinette Friel 
Erin Friel-Seid 
Galen Friel Seid 
All are voters in Ward 8 

Prev by Date: [SPAMI Howard DeaninOregon! 
Next by Date: cweb>Telecommunications Tax 
Previous by thread: <web>Cell Phone Tax 
Next by thread: Cascscaade event- tto0beshown_onnnCaab1e_ -I11V 
Index(es): 

0 -  

0 mE3d 
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I <web>telecommunications service tax 
- 

To: wards@ 

Subject: <web>telecommunications service tax 

From: Machelle Nelson <drsoil~,xxxxxxxxxxxxmr> 

Date: Fri, 12 May 2006 07: 19: 13 -0700 

Reply-to: <drsoil@,xxxxxwrxxxxxxx> 

This is an enquiry e-mail via %s from: Machelle Nelson ( d r s o i l @ ~ )  
I strongly object to the proposed telecommunications service tax ordinance! ! !  I do not 
believe you should impose this new tax without first allowing the voters of Corvallis to 
decide. 

Follow-Ups: 

Re: <web>telecommunications service tax 

From: Rob Gandara 

Prev by Date: <web>Telecommunication Tax 

Next by Date: Meetin? Reminder 

Previous by thread: Re: <web>Telecommunication Tax 

Next by thread: Re: <web>telecommunications service tax 

Index(es) : 

Date - 
Thread 
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<web>Telecommuncations Tax 

To: wardl(i3, 

Subject: <web>Telecommuncations Tax 

From: Jim Wafer <wima(ii,xxxxxxxxx> 

Date: Fri, 12 May 2006 14: 12:04 -0700 

This is an enquiry e-mail via %s from: Jim Wafer (wjma@xxxxxxxxx) 
I am urging you to vote against the proposed telecommunications tax. I think 
it undermines the credibility of the city council when it passes a tax without 
giving the citizens of Corvallis a chance to vote on the tax. If you want to 
level the playing field with other providers, I suggest you reduce the tax on 
other providers so that the overall effect of the tax is revenue neutral. 

Thanks for your considertaion. 

Jim Wafer 
1606 SW Country Club Place 
Corvallis, OR 97333 

Prev by Date: EVP Town Hall Mtg - June 7 

Next by Date: Contact Information 

Previous by thread: <web>Telecornrnunication Tax 

Next by thread: Contact Information 

Date - 
Thread 
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<web>cell phone tax 

To: ward9r 

Subject: <web>cell phone tax 

From: Michael and Marjorie Kinch <Imkinch@xxnxxxxxxx> 

Date: Fri, 12 May 2006 13:01:42 -0700 

This is an enquiry e-mail via %s from: Michael and Marjorie Kinch 
(mkinch@xxxxxxxxxxx) 
Please dump the proposed cell phone tax. It is not a progressive tax and will 
affect many adversely. The city does not spend money to support phones, so 
they should not tax them. If the fire dept or whatever needs more money, they 
should get a bond for that purpose. 

Prev by Date: EVP Town Hall Mtg - June 7 

Next by Date: JSPAMl Howard Dean in Oregon! 

Previous by thread: <web>Cell Phone Tax 

Next by thread: Martin Luther King 

Index(es) : 

Date - 
Thread 
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8. [Date Prev] [Date Next] [Thread Prev] [Thread Next] [Date Index] [Thread Index] 

<web>Web Request 

To: mavor@,x 

Subject: <web>Web Request 

From: chloe jarvinen <chloe@,xxxgmcwmx> 

Date: Fri, 12 May 2006 08:59:14 -0700 

Reply-to: <chloe@,xxxxxxxxxx> 

This is an enquiry e-mail via %s from: chloe jarvinen (chloe@xxxxxxxxxx) 
w e  would like to register our opposition to the Telecommunications Service Tax 
Ordinance. This issue should be a ballot issue. 

Chloe and Dick Jarvinen 

Prev by Date: <web>telecommunications service tax 

Next by Date: meet in^ Reminder 

Previous by thread: <web>Web Request 

Next by thread: <web>Web Request 

Index(es): 

Date 

Thread 
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Re: Telecommunications Service Tax Ordinance Page 1 of 2 

I 
p a t e  Prev] [Date Nest] [Thread Prevl [Thread Next] Date Index] [Thead Iadsx] 

Re: Telecommunications Service Tax Ordinance 

o To: < ~ y o r ~ m ~ x ~ ~ ~ ~ x x x ~ x ~ x ~ x ~ m ~  
a Subject: ~ e :  ? e l e c o c a t i o n s  Service Tax Ordinance 

From : "Meghan Dailey " <Bigi-PbQenix@-u> 
a Date: Fri, 12 May 2006 1 1 :51:18 -0700 
a References: COO1 501 c675eb$e27b;edO$3 9541 Oac@,xx?o;>ix?ui~~x~~~x> 
a Seal-send-time: Fri, 12 May 2006 1 1 :5 1 : 18 -0700 

Thank you for your prompt reply. I have reviewed the memorandum, and the city 
council has niy support on the proposed 5% telecomnunications tax. 

Sincerely, 
Meghan Dailey 

----- Original Message ---- 
From: Mayor 
To: N g h a n  Dailey' 
Cc : m_ay,r~\?!~~-archiivee@~x~xxxxxxx_x_x_xxxx_x~xXxxxx 
Sent: Friday, May 12,2006 10:45 AM 
Subject: RE: Telecommunications Service Tax Ordinance 

Dear Megl~an, Thank you for writing and for your concern for Corvallis. Please see the 
attached inemorandm in answer to yous good question. 

Helen berg 

From: Meghan Dailey [mailto:Brigit-Phoenix@xxxxxxx] 
Sent: Thursday, May 11,2006 7:36 PM 
To: Mayor 
Subject: Telecommunications Service Tax Ordinance 

Hello, 

I recently received a illailing asking me to send a postcard to you stating that I do not 
wish to have a 5% tax on illy cellular phone usage. Before I ask that this not be voted 
into law, I would like to laow what the proposed plan is for using the tax. Please let 
me know what the tax will be spent oil, or please point nze in the right direction to find 
out. 

Page 328-aj I Thank you for your time, 



Tax that violates our state constitution Page 1 of 1 

-. , . , . . , . . . . , , . . . 

[Date PLE] IJ?ateHe~?l [Thead Prevl [ThlSead Next] [Date Index] [Thread Index] 

Tax that violates our state constitution 

e To: mayor@,xxxmxxmxxxlu;xxm~xxx~53;xx 
Subject: Tax that violates our state constitution 
From: c ~ _ a _ p c a d d y - @ ~ . x , ~ -  
Date: Fri, 12 May 2006 21:39:13 +0000 

You pass this phone tax and you lose my support. 
Signed, John Christensen 
voter 

Prev by Date: <~~eb>Telecommunications Tax 
Next by Date: [SuperUpdate] SSup-~_r~_ten_&_n_t's'sUp-date_e_~152 
Previous by thread: <web>Telecommunications Tax 
Next by thread: Isupel-Update] Supsrintendent- 
Index(es): 

o m  
o Thread 
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Cell phone Tax - Let the people vote Page 1 of 1 

pa t e  Prevl (Date Nest1 [Thread Prevl [Thread Next1 Date Index] rTlread I~ldes] 

Cell phone Tax - Let the people vote 

o To: i n a y o r f ~ ~ ~ x ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ x x x x ~ x ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  
Subject: Cell phone Tax - Let the people vote 

XY> From: " ~uliet-St.rahl" <m.~si.c~ove~;~j ~ ~ - G ~ ~ ~ ~ - - . - -  
Date: Fri, 12 May 2006 17:28:52 -0700 
Donzainkey-signature: a=rsa-shal; q=dns; c=nofws; s=beta; d=gmail.com; h=received:message- 
id:date:fkom:to:subject:mime-version:content-type; 
b=XKpomwxRe2 WwEI3 g80 5b J ~ J ~ Y N P Z ~ C ~ ~ L T A ~ C O Y O S ~ K ~ B ~ U F D H I V ~ ~ ~ E ~ H ~ U O S ~ ~ B ~  

Mayor Berg: 

No tax with no vote. City council is not qualified to impose taxes. Let the people vote. All tax 
increases need to be by plebiscite. 

Todd ~ k a h l  
1 173 Charlemagne Place 
Corvallis Or 97330 
541-75878092 

by Date: S ~ a m  Mail Removal, 
Next by Date: .[.[SPM.._h,_e_lpphg.eme.r:ggee~_c_e 

.m Previous by thread: [Superupdate] Superintendent's Update #I52 
Next by thread: ISPAM] helping emercence 
Index(es): 

o Date 
o Thread 
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<web>Proposed TaxIFee on cell telephones Page 1 of 1 

[Date Prevl [Date Next1 [Thread Prevl [Tluead Next] pa t e  Index] [Thread Index] I 

<web>Broposed Tax/Fee on cell telephones 

o To : ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ > , ~ ~ ~ ? ~ ; x ~ x x : ~ ~ - x ~ Y x x s x x x x x : x  
Subject: <web>Proposed Tax/Fee on cell telephones 
From: Janet Wagenschutz <Sailetggdell@r3;xzxizmP 
Date: Thu, 11 May 2006 1726: 10 -0700 
Reply-to: <J~~etgaden(iixxxxxxx?~~xx> 

This is an enquiry e-mail via %s from: Janet Wagenschutz (Janetgarden@xxxxxxxxxxx) 
Dear Scott Zimbrick, 
It does not make sense nor does it seem 'above board' to me to attach at fee(a tax, 

If you and city council determine that our fire or safety services are in need of 
I believe that the only reason this is being proposed as a 'fee', to to keep the dec 

Prev by Date: It's Pressenration Month! 
Next by Date: <web>Telecommunication Tax 
Previous by thread: It's Preservation Month! 
Next by thread: <web>Telecommunication Tax 
Index(es): 

o Date e 

0 Thread 
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Cell phone tax Page 1 of 1 

I [Date Prey] [Q&e Next1 [Thread Prev] [=cad Nex?] pa t e  Index] [Thread Index] 

Cell phone tax 

e To : r n a ~ ~ o r ~ @ , x x ~ x ~ x x ~ ~ x ~ ~ ~ : x m ~ x  
a Subject: Cell phone tax 
a From: moffatdw@xxm~xxxxx 

Date: Thu, 11 May 2006 20:52:49 +0000 

The reason I'm opposed to the cell phone tax is that it represents the worst thinking by politicians, which goes this way: fiere is so~nefhing neicl rlzc~f benejits mmty 
peoj71e; let's tux if! It isn't necessary to tax everything. 

Please use the power of your office to defeat this tax. 

Thank you 
Donald Moffat 

Prev by Date: Recommended Bud~et  for 2006-07 Released on Monday (May 15) 
Next by Date: Conversations with DEQ 

a Previous by thread: Recommended Budget for 2006-07 Released on Monday N a y  15) 
a Next by thread: Cell phone Tax 

Index(es): 
o Date 
o Thread 
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<web>Sarpport for Cell Phone Tax 

To: w ard4@,i>,xxxxxxxxw;xxxxxxx~xx 

Subject: <web>Support for Cell Phone Tax 

From : Marge Stevens <mar~estevensl @,xxxxxxxxxxx> 

Date: Thu, 11 May 2006 21:39:45 -0700 

Reply-to : <mar ~estevensl @,xxxxxxxxxxx> 

This is an enquiry e-mail via %s from: Marge Stevens (margestevensl@-) 
Dear Counselor Tomlinson, I was reminded to write in support of the proposed cell phone tax 
for replacing fire equipment by some literature I received in the mail today. I have found 
an earlier email writer has eloquently expressed my thoughts on this subject, so I refer you 
to the ernail from Doug Van Pelt of May 10, with which I agree. Thank you. 

Prev by Date: RE: EVP Town Hall Mtv - June 7 

Next by Date: Meeting Reminder 

Previous by thread: <web>Telecommunication Tax 

Next by thread: ISPAMl Howard Dean in Ore~on! 

Index(es) : 

Date 

Thread 
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Date  Prev1 [Date Next] [Thead Prev] [Thread Next1 Date Index] [Thread IncIex1 

tax without a vote 

e To : m a v o r ~ x x x ~ ~ ~ ~ x ' 9 i ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  
Subject: tax without a vote 
From: Elliott Isabel1 <ielliott2@,xx?~yxxx~> 
Date: Thu, 11 May 2006 16:44:02 -0700 (PDT) 
Domainkey-signature: a=rsa-shal; q=dns; c-aofws; s=s1024; d=yahoo.com; h=Message- 
1D:Received:Date:From: Subject:To:MIME-Version:Content-Type:Content-Trmsfer-Encoding; 
b=XIVs/3jpcaJDdYhF4mT5zWjuJZsGrUetu2ZQUUtr5B/xEjnj cYHOiFEmyeOgcCYcZBv4JokyR1 

how dare you even think of such a thing. its bad 
enough that you are a bunch of old idiots, that wont 
let a store come to this town, where is home depot? 
where is wall mart? where are all the outher stores 
that the people of this town want, you wont let 
anything in but when Maters want to build a stuipd 
building, that will do nothing for the people of this 
town, its go ahead, well you are all going to be 
kicked out the next election from the mayer down, and 
its not soon enough, we need progressive people, not 
you brain dead nuts, 

isabell elliott 
a voter. . . . . . 

Do You Yahoo!? 
Tired of spam? Yahoo! Mail has the best spam protection around 
http://mail.yahoo.corn 

Prev by Date: C.o~n~~.~s.ations.-with-II)E(Z. 
Next by Date: Cell phone Tax 
Previous by thread: Conversations with DEQ. 
Next by thread: telecommunication tax 

e Index(es): 
o Date 
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Cell phone Tax Page 1 of 1 

[Date Prev] [Date Nest] [Thread Pre_y] [Tl~read Negtl Date Index] [Thread I ~ ~ d e s ]  

Cell phone Tax 

c TO : <~nayor(~,~xxx~x~);~~x~xxxxx~);~-)~,~~ 
Subject: Cell phone Tax 
Fronz: "G A CRITTENDEN" <GCJA-SPER6@xxm-=> 
Date: Thu, 11 May 2006 16:48:33 -0700 
Seal-send-time: Thu, 11 May 2006 16:48:33 -0700 

I think it is an outrage that you and the city council would even consider a tax without the vote of the 
people. I know why you don't want to put it to a vote because you know people are tired of paying 
more and more taxes and would vote no. It is not fair to tax a certain part of the population. Not 
everyone has a cell phone, and some of those that do are like me, senior citizens that use them basically 
for emergencies. If this tax goes in a lot of us will not be able to afford the increase and will have to 
cancel our service, of course then you will go after our home service. If you would allow more 
businesses to come into Col-vallis to increase the tax base you wouldn't have to be coming up with 
crazy ideas like a cell phone tax to fund the fire department. It's sort of not letting anyone smoke 
anywhere in the city yet when you want to tax something you tax cigarettes doesn't make sense to me. 
Sincerely an angry senior citizen on a fix income, 
Gerrie 

Prev by Date: tax without a vote 
Next by Date: telecommunication tax 
Previous by thread: Cell phone tax 
Next by thread: Conversations with DEQ 
Index(es): 

o m  
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<web~Telecommunication Tax 

To: wardlr, 

Subject: ~web>Telecomrnunication Tax 

From: Carolyn J Cooper <carolvn.cooper(ii).xxxxxx> 

Date: Thu, 11 May 2006 15: 13:40 -0700 

This is an enquiry e-mail via %s from: Carolyn J Cooper 
(carolyn. cooper@xxxxxx) 
Please vote against the Telecommunication tax. I pay way too much in taxes 
already and do not want another tax. If this funding is important let me 
decide if I am willing to fund it. 

Prev by Date: First Draft Feasibility Report 

Next by Date: EVP Town Hall Mtg - June 7 

Previous by thread: First Draft Feasibilitv Re~ort  

Next by thread: ~web>Telecommuncations Tax 

Index(es) : 

Date - 
Thread 
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DateP~] [DateNext] [Thread Prev] [Thread Ne-a] [Date I11dex1 [Thread Index] 

Proposed taxlfee on cell phones 

c To : ~ n ~ a y o r @ ~ ~ ~ x ~ x x x ~ ~ x x ~ ~ ~ ~ ) ; ~ x ~ ~ x ~  
Subject: Proposed tadfee on cell phones 

r From: "Janet Wagenschutz" <janetgardei1@mm'~=> 
r Date: Thu, 11 May 2006 17:38:51 -0700 

Dear Mayor, 
Thanks you for your many years of service for Corvallis. I would hope that one of the last items you DO NOT 

support, will be the cell phone fee- a tax by any other name. 
I understand that the mayor only votes in case of a tie. I do urge you not to support this method of raising 

monies for basic city safety services. Generally, if presented with well reasoned information and opportunity to 
dialog, I usually support paying for services and would welcome an opportunity to VOTE on this issue. I do not 
support having fees used as an end around proper citizen voting on money issues. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 
Janet Wagenschutz 

r Prev by Date: telecommunication tax 
r Next by Date: <web>Telecommunication Tax 
r Previous by thread: telecommunication tax 
r Next by thread: <web>Telecommunication Tax 
r Index(es): 

o Date 
0 T!3~e_a_! 
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7. [Date Prev][Date Next][Thread Prev][Thread Next][Date Index][Thread Index] 

Phone Tax 

To: ward7r , ~~VO~@,XXMLXXXXXP - 

Subject: Phone Tax 

Fvonz: Daryl L Monk <dlmonk@,xxxxxxxx> 

Date: Thu, 11 May 2006 23:12: 10 -0700 

Dear Mayor Berg and Councilor Zimbrick, 
I am adamantly opposed to the proposed cell phone sales tax. 
This tax is not equitable to everyone in the city. We have a cell phone 
and a land line. 
Other people may have more cell phones or none at all. How does the use 
(or non-use) of a phone relate to fire department budget? 

If there is a need to fund the fire department, a more equitable solution 
should be found. 
Several years ago, I objected to the use of city funds to build a new 
fire station out on Walnut Blvd. (in the middle of nowhere) without the 
funds in the budget to support the additional staff. Look where we are 
now ! 

I also wonder about the priority of putting the fire department budget 
out on the limb while leaving other budget items intact? 

Sincerely, 
Daryl Monk 
1220 NW Kline Place 
Cowallis, OR 97330 

Prev by Date: <web>Support for Cell Phone Tax 

Next by Date: <web>telecommunications service tax 

Previous by thread: <web>Support for Cell Phone Tax 

Next by'thread: <web>telecommunications service tax 

Index(es) : 

Date 

Thread 
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5. [Date Prev][Date Next][Thread Prev][Thread Next][Date Index][Thread Index] 

telecommunication tax 

To: 

Subject: telecommunication tax 

Fronz: micah brosius <p m amo@,i),xxxxxxxxx> 

Date: Thu, 11 M a y  2006 16:58:16 -0700 (PDT) 

Domainkey-signature: a=rsa-shal; q=dns; c=nofws; s=s1024; d=yahoo.com; h=Message- 
ID:Received:Date:From:Subject:To:MTME-Version:Content-Type:C~ntent-Trmsfer- 
Encoding; 
b=OS5yDbTy4wrApO 8OPnbvepVCTULYHKZ57EpVYE8HaFsMAZOT2 JOo7UfYSmcA 
87Nslj O/P3uJNuTLATCQW40rOpV7Ti6iEDgqkMdk+48 JgcaQA+wTRDal6aw8FjP9tW 
M9dvyGRXwpQc4PNozzfKOPbRmU18hlQ7mWcIyvFv82wU= ; 

I am a registered voter here in Corvallis, and I do 
vote. 

I strongly object to the proposed telcommunications 
service tax ordinace. The proposed ordiance would 
impose a selective sales tax on wieless services, 
internet phone services and would even increase the 
cost of my home phone. 

If our city needs more revenue and funding, there are 
other means to attain them. 

I strongly believe that you should not impose a new 
tax such as this without first allowing the voters of 
Corvallis to decide how they feel about the matter. 

Please don't tax our communication services. 

Sincerely 
Micah Brosius . 

Do You Yahoo!? 
Tired of spam? Yahoo! Mail has the best spam protection around 
htt~://mail.vahoo.com 
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YES to tax on cell phones! Page 1 of 1 

-, , .  , ,  - 
I [Date  PI-^] [Date Nest1 [Thread Prevl [Thread T4~-4] [Date Index] [Thread In&&] 

YES to tax on cell phones! 

0 To : ~yor@,xlu;xxxr;xxxxxx~xxx)c7~);xx~, ward3 @ , x ~ x x ~ x x x x x x m x m x x m x x  
Subject: YES to tax on cell phones! 
From: Andy Gray < w d y g . @ ~ ~ , m . m = >  

o Date: Thu, 1 1 May 2006 19: 19:46 -0700 
User-agent: Mozilla Thunderbird 1.0.7 (Windows/20050923) 

A group of corporations sent me a card asking me to write to my city 
representatives, so how could I refuse? I say "YESu to a 5% tax on cell phones in 
Corvallis! These scoundrels have been using the public domain for profit without 
paying for it (the public Nairwavesm over which signals are sent). They think they 
don't have to pay their fair share for the government services we all use, like 
regular phone companies do. In addition, I have to put up with competing cell phone 
towers sprouting up all over the valley, drivers almost running me over while 
yapping away on the phone, and having to listen to people engaged in the most inane 
conversations imaginable (uwassup?n, "1 dunno" "I'm eating a candy barN) just 
because they have unlimited minutes. 
Actually, a 5% tax is not enough. We should outlaw talking on the phone while 
driving, and then tax cell phones 50% so that we can afford enough police to 
enforce it! 
Andrew Gray 
Corvallis, OR 

Prev by Date: ~~re_Ib.~T_e_~ero~~ln_m~u_'u~~~ati~n~Taz 
Next by Date: TelecommunicA~ons-~er~~_e_TaxxQrr~ip_a~ce 
Previous by thread: <web~Telecommunication Tax 
Next by thread: Telecommunications Service Tax Ordinance . 

Index(es): 
o Date 
o Thread 
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1.  [Date Prev][Date Next] [Thread Prev] [Thread Next] [Date Index] [Thread Index] 

<web>Web Request 

To: m a y o r @ , , x x x ~ x x x x x x x ~  - 

Subject: <web>Web Request 

Fvoln: Lita Verts <L.verts@,,muxxxxxxxxx> 

Date: Wed, 10 May 2006 16:23:28 -0700 

Reply-to: <L.verts@,-> 

This is an enquiry e-mail via %s from: Lita Verts (L.vertsoxxxxxxxxxxx) 
Helen, At the CACOT meeting this a.m. [May 10, 20061, I told them of your 
request that I speak at the Council meeting on Monday evening about the 
Telecommunications Tax. There were 5 members present, and to my surprise, 3 
of them opposed the tax or more accurately the process of assessing this tax. 
They seemed to feel that there should be a public vote on it. 
I will still come to meeting on Monday as a private citizen and speak for it, 
because to me it is a matter of fairness. We have two commercial businesses, 
one pays a tax, but is losing business to the other which does not. However, 
I cannot speak as a member of CACOT without jeopardizing the issue by airing 
the opposition to it. Please let me know your pleasure. Respectfully, Lita 
Vert s 

Prev by Date: RE: Van Buren PMT meet in^ - June 14, Wed. 1-4 pm 

Next by Date: EVP Town Hall Mtg - June 7 

Previous by thread: <web>Web Request 

Next by thread: <web>Web Reauest 

hdex(es) : 

Date 
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Testhmy AGAINST the p r 6 ~ 0 ~ e d  cell ghipfie use tax. 

Roger F. Evans 
3 1 35 KW Greenwood 
Corvallis, OR 97330 

In my judgment the staff& the committee have not provided the necessary accwa te wowation for the cOuticil to enad ae proposed tu. 

1. The base of the tax in uncertain at best. It appears that a user could switch their 
phoiie %mice to a different geographic location and avoid the tax. 

2. The tax rate has not been determined in a meaningfil way. It is just to bring in 
more Bane to cover exPCme s- 

3. The committee must have had reservations about this tax, as they could not 
recommend it. 

4. It is not a fair tax in that it many discriminate against those who cannot afford it. 
5. The worst conditim is that it may Mve the busiiiess, which we would like hi 

CorvaUis to move to a different city. 
6 .  The city has other utiljty bases that would better serve as a legitimate tax base. 

Thank you, for hearing the public, which as ovenvhelmhgly testified against this tax. 
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Memorandum 

To: 

From: 

Date: May 15,2006 

Subject: Telecommunications Service Tax proposal 

I support the proposal before the City Council to establish a 5% tax on gross revenues of all 
providers of telecommunications within the city. 

Addresses critical needs. The initial uses identified for the increased revenue from this 
proposal are fire vehicle replacement and fire training facilities. When I was last on the Budget 
Commission in 2002, we went through a lengthy service prioritization process prior to making 
extensive cuts in services. These Fire services were both seen as significant needs that could 
be delayed temporarily, but would become critical needs in the next few years. We are now at 
that time. Our excellent fire insurance rating saves each of us more in commercial or 
homeowners' fire insurance than will the additional cost of this proposal. 

Having gone through the budget prioritization in 2002, 1 also know that funding these Fire 
services by reducing other city services is not a solution I could support. Only the highest 
priority services made it through the 2002 cuts, and this proposal allows residents to continue to 
receive those services at a modest cost. 

Reasonable cost. This proposal reduces the franchise fee that I currently pay for our land-line 
phone, and adds 5% to our cell phone bill. Based on my family's current land-line usage and 
family cell phone plan, I will save $1.20 on my telephone bill and pay $3.20 more per month on 
my cell phone bill. That amounts to $2.00 extra per month or $24.00 per year. For one person 
on a lower cost plan, I could pay as little as $15.00 per year. I am very willing to pay that or 
more to maintain good fire and police protection, keep our excellent library open every evening, 
and maintain our parks and recreation services. (Especially since I will still be saving $1 8.00 
per year from what we paid annually in telephone franchise fees before getting cell phones.) 

Fair and equitable. Franchise fees in the past have reimbursed the community for the use of 
its right-of-way. Although cell towers don't occupy city property, they have utilized federal 
exemptions to limit land use controls that citizens want on where cell towers are placed. It is fair 
that, as users of cell phones, we provide some compensation to the community as a whole for 
taking away its voice in cell tower placement. This proposal takes the added step of reducing 
the franchise fee on traditional phone services, so that both contribute an equal share to the 
community. 

Good stewardship of our community. Through good management and an excellent staff, 
Corvallis city government has been able to maintain quality services to residents in the face of 
rising costs and a sharply reduced property tax base. Even though the majority of Corvallis 
residents voted against Measure 5 and Measures 47/50, we have had to reduce services that 
the community supported in order to stay within new property tax limitations that rise more 
slowly than inflation. It is responsible and prudent for the City Council to explore reasonable 
and affordable ways to maintain a level of services that residents, through the annual City 
Survey and other means, tell you that they want to keep or enhance. 

It is also prudent for the Council to make this decision, given its relatively modest impact on 
each individual, rather than incur the high cost of an election. Thank you for your thoughtful 
consideration of this proposal. ATTACH I\/IENT-J 
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TO: Mayor Helen Berg 
Councilors Jerry Davis 

Patricia Daniels 
George Grosch 
Charles Tomlinson 
Rob Gandara 
Emily Hagen 
Scott Zimbrick 
Betty Griffiths pp 

Hal Brauner 

PR: Amanda Dalton 
Direct Northwest 
Willamette Association of REALTORS03 

May 15,2006 

Mayor Berg and Members of Council: 

Amanda Dalton, P.O. Box 98 1 Salem, OR 97308 and I am testifying tonight 
on behalf of the Willamette Association of Realtors, representing its 369 
Realtor and affiliate members in and around the City of Corvallis. 

As you can imagine, phones and cell phones in particular our lifelines for our 
members to their clients. Many of our members are small business owners, 
employing 2 - 3 employees and some operate solely on the cell phone. Some 
have small phone bills and others large - but all will feel the impact this 
proposed tax will have on their monthly phone bills. Many simply do not 
have the flexibility in their budgets to pay for this significant increase. 

Now is not the time to support higher taxes on Corvallis business owners and 
residents, nor is it the time to add deterrents to the community to attract new 
businesses. 

While our members understand the City's need to provide adequate revenue 
for public safety needs, there is no direct link between a tax on services 

arnanda@,directnorthwest. corn 
503-364-7233 
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provided by the telecommunications industry and the proposed initial use of 
the funds in the first year for fire related needs. Where will these funds be 
spent in subsequent years? 

We are also concerned about the wide range of estimated revenue between 
the city's projected $700,000 and the industry estimates at $2 million. As 
well as the equability of the tax on all residents and the abilities for many to 
simply select third party providers or out-of-town billing addresses. 

Finally, we once again encourage you to let the voters have the final say in 
this proposed tax increase and ask that you send this proposal to them for a 
vote. 

We thank you for your time. 
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Corvallis's proposed "Telecommunications service tax" 
Expansion to include other communication services 

The City's proposal for expansion of a "tax" to additional communication services is nothing more 
than a targeted sales tax increasing the cost to provide such services in the city and creating a 
fundamental shift in tax policy. This new tax is very regressive and will especially hurt consumers on 
fixed incomes and in the low-income categories. It could also prove devastating to small, local 
business owners who do not have flexibility in their budget to pay for a significant 5% increase to 
telecommunications services, which are essential to operate their businesses. 

The City contends that this proposal would "level the playing field" for all communication service 
providers operating in the city, however that is a misconception. The existing local taxes imposed 
upon landline companies were enacted for the privilege of using the localities public ways or it was 
imposed upon a company for its franchise to operate as a utility within the city, which also entitled it 
to use the public ways. Under the current proposal, any payments made for uses of the public ways 
assessed as a percentage of revenue under the privilege tax or franchise agreement will be offset 
against this new tax for those companies. The proposed tax provides a credit for the operating 
expense incurred for facilities placement by some carriers but not others -not leveling the playing 
field at all. 

The wireless industry does not receive the benefit of using the public ways and pays fair rent for all 
facility placements to the property owner, whether placed on public or private property. Long- 
distance carriers pay a charge per lineal foot for their facilities placements. Additionally, wireless 
carriers do not need to enter into a franchise with a city to operate as a utility. Wireless providers are 
not a "utility" and they have paid for their franchise in the form of FCC licenses, which they have 
paid substantial money to obtain from the Federal government. 

Both long-distance carriers and wireless providers pay substantial compensation (wholesale revenue) 
to the local exchange (LEC) carriers for using the LEC facilities throughout their networks and under 
interconnection agreements for terminating traffic on the LEC networks. Since the current proposal 
imposes a tax on the gross receipts of all communication services provided within the city, the current 
proposal will impose a "double" tax on communication services provided by certain providers. Both 
the wholesale and retail revenues of carriers will be subject to this tax, substantially increasing the 
costs to provide communication services to residents of the City of Corvallis. 

While we understand the revenue needs the city is looking to address, any tax proposal should be a 
broad based imposition that affects all taxpayers equitably. Not a targeted imposition such as the 
proposed telecommunications services tax. Eliminating these historic "utility" impositions are very 
important when lawmakers consider the role the communications infrastructure and services play in 
our Country's ability to compete in the global economy. 

The City has estimated that this tax expansion will be minimal to consumers of communication 
services, bringing in revenue of approximately $700,000. However, the industry has estimated this 
new tax will be very costly to consumers of communication services and will in fact bring in almost 
$2,000,000 of additional revenue. Almost three times more than what the City has estimated. 

If the City Council believes the Telecommunications service tax is the right policy, it should take this 
issue to the general public and allow them to vote on whether the new tax is appropriate. Preliminary 
information indicates that residents of Corvallis are not supportive of this targeted tax. 
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